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Profits Preservation and Transformation
Establishment Centuries of Legacy

Profitability is essential for an enterprise in order to demonstrate its value. Ever since its
establishment 40 years ago, the Group has been persistently identifying and seizing business
opportunities, transforming itself, strengthening its core businesses, forging ahead and generating
profit for its shareholders every year. With the concerted effort of the management, the diversified
business profile is what makes the fertile soil for the Group to flourish like a tree.

Building a centennial enterprise is not just a slogan or a one-time corporate initiative. It is a
constant effort and a consistent development policy that requires continuous talent support. A
centennial enterprise must have the following qualities: (1) robust adaptability; (2) diversified
development; (3) strong commitment to core values; and (4) high alertness (for details, please
refer to the section entitled “Building a Centennial Enterprise” in the Chairman’s Statement). Only
with these values can an enterprise move forward through ups and downs, stay abreast of market
developments and achieve sustainability.

In addition to creating value for its shareholders, the Group also has to earn the recognition
of the society and satisfy the needs of different stakeholders. It will fulfil its corporate social
responsibilities, strike a balance among economic development, the environment and the society,
and realise sustainability. Last but not least, after years of success in maintaining profits and
transformation, the Group is striving towards the goal of building a centennial enterprise. It calls
for the concerted effort of the entire staff to create value and fight for the future.
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Corporate Information
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REGISTERED OFFICE
Clarendon House

2 Church Street
Hamilton HMT11
Bermuda

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL
PLACE OF BUSINESS
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611-619 Castle Peak Road
Tsuen Wan
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Hong Kong

WEBSITE
http:/www.karrie.com
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Executive Directors
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Mr. YAM Chung Shing

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Mr. SO Wai Chun

Mr. FONG Hoi Shing
Mr. HO Cheuk Ming
Mr. YAM Chung Shing

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Mr. SO Wai Chun

Mr. HO Cheuk Ming

Mr. YAM Chung Shing

KARRIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED =R B K #ERER AT

2 ERE
Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HMT11
Bermuda

BRNEERTEEXME

BB

R
FILAE611-6195%
HEIEKRE
1018

#uk

http:/www.karrie.com

=
BITES

SR (EERTTEAAE)

BR % gk /N 8
Hel st
RE X et

FHUTES

o] £ B e A
(FEBTTEFFE L)

I RR XX 5 &

BYFHITES
#EMERLE
TR L
EFEHELE

BEREES
BEERLE
papi=R it
o] £ B S A
EFEHELE

FMESS
BEERLE
o] 2B A4
TEMELE



COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. TANG Wing Fai
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KPMG
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8th Floor Prince’s Building
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Central, Hong Kong

LEGAL ADVISER
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HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE
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Key Information for Shareholders

TERREHR

FINANCIAL CALENDAR 2019
Financial Year End
31 March 2019

Announcement of 2018/19 results
26 June 2019

Last day to register for the entitlement to attend and
vote at the 2018/19 Annual General Meeting
16 August 2019

2018/19 Annual General Meeting
23 August 2019

Last day to register for 2018/19
Final Dividends
28 August 2019

2018/19 Final Dividend expected
Payment Date
18 September 2019
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—E-N\F/-NAEEXREAGANY
—E-AFANAZTAH

EEBE-ZE-N\F -IEE
BRRAFAERREZBEEELAN
—E-AFNA+TARH

—E-NFE/-IhERREBFRS
—E-AFENAZF+=H

ZE-NF/-AFERERE
REETAEH
“E-AFNAZTNR

B =2-N\E - AFEXRHRE
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—E-AFNAATNB

SHARE CAPITAL % Zx
As at
BZE
31 March 2019 30 June 2019
—E-hEF —E-NF
=A=+—H ~NA=1+H
Authorised (HK$) EE (B IT) 400,000,000 400,000,000
Issued (HK$) 2ET0ET) 199,183,320 199,183,320
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Key Information for Shareholders

ANALYSIS OF SHAREHOLDING STRUCTURE AND

SHAREHOLDER DISTRIBUTION

As at 30 June 2019, the Company had issued 1,991,833,200
shares (the “Share”) of which approximately 25.36%" was
held by the public. As at that date, the Company had a total
of 854 registered shareholders. The following table shows
the distribution of ownership according to the Register of
Members and the Participant Shareholding Report generated
from the Central Clearing and Settlement System as of 30

TERREH

RELEBRERRD M2

HE-_ZT—NAFRA=1H AQAH#3H%
£71,991,833,2008% & 1A ([Ax 1) - EH AR
R EL1H2536%" c BERAB AR
RIEAEMAERS54% - IRIERERMM R
FREERWEGR-_ZE—NLFASA=
THRENZSEERERS  BHARE
TUTHRESMHMEREREESLE

June 2019:
Number of % of % of total
registered number of ~ Number of issued share
Category shareholders  shareholders Shares capital
i 1 HERTT
5 KRB  BRRLH% FRBE ROKA%
New Sense Enterprises Limited 1 0.12% 487,608,000 24.48%
Castfast Properties Development 512 [ i &= ¥ &

Co., Ltd. ARAR 1 0.12% 330,000,000 16.57%
The Wedding City Co. Limited &% WMERAT 1 0.12% 260,000,000 13.05%
Ho's family® I RxR & 3 035% 400,462,000 20.11%
Directors® E 5 0.59% 8,604,000 0.43%
Individuals EAREE 666 7798% 20,509,730 1.03%
Institutions, corporates and KBEREE

nominees EXREEARAEA 177 20.72% 484,649,470 24.33%
Total At 854 100.00% 1,991,833,200 100.00%
Notes: (R

(1) Public shareholding represents shares held by the public,
excluding those held by New Sense Enterprises Limited, Castfast
Properties Development Co., Limited, The Wedding City Co.,
Limited, Ho’s family and Directors of the Company.

(2)  Ho’s family comprises Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai, Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer, Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming, Non-executive Director

and Deputy Chairman and Ms. Ho Po Chu.

(3)  Directors represent Directors of the Company excluding Mr. Ho

Cheuk Fai and Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming

(4)  The Company repurchased 622,000 Shares, which had not been

cancelled.

NERFFREMR K (BRNew Sense Enterprises
Limited * FEFHEMRER DA - 15
WHBERRR (IRRERERRES
iR EEIN) RRANLAFAENRD
HE o

] R SR Wk R 2 % FR 1T BB B Al e B 50 4
P TEFHBEIRFMEALERME
KA -

BEERR (RAEELE R SHELEESN)
ARABZEE °

A A B B T622,0000% - HAFEH -
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Key Information for Shareholders

TERREHR

MARKET CAPITALISATION mE

As at 31 March 2019 BE-_ZE-h&E=A=+—H
(Closing Price: HK$1.20) (& :1.20% T)
HK$2,390,199,840 2,390,199,8407% 7T

As at 30 June 2019 BE-Z-hEXA=1H
(Closing Price: HK$1.13) (hE:1.13%8T)
HK$2,250,771,516 2,250,771,516/8 7T

Share Price Movement and Trade Volume in Financial Year 2018/19

2N - hHBFEZREEZRARX

Share Price (HK$) Share Price (HKS)

ef| () ef| ()
T30 1.30

1.20
1.10
1.00
0.90 r T T T 1 0.90
Apr 18 Jul 18 Oct 18 Jan 19
Trade Volume Trade Volume
(Shares in million) (Shares in million)
mRE (B8 k=g (B8R
3 3
72 2

Apr 18 Jul 18 Oct 18 Jan 19
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Key Information for Shareholders

STOCK CODE

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
Main Board

1050

BOARD LOT
2,000 Shares

SHAREHOLDER SERVICES

Any matters relating to your shareholding, such as transfer
of shares, change of name or address, and loss of share
certificates should be addressed in writing to the Hong Kong
branch share registrar of the Company:

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Rooms 1712-1716, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2862-8628

Fax: (852) 2529-6087

INVESTOR RELATIONS
For enquiries, please contact:

Mr. Choi Wai Hin, Henry

Chief Financial Officer

Karrie International Holdings Limited
10th Floor, Southeast Industrial Building
611-619 Castle Peak Road

Tsuen Wan, New Territories

Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2411-0913

Fax: (852) 2415-1608

Email: ir@karrie.com
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BFRE
2,000 %

B8 36 AR A
L AEARN BIROZEE @
FERGEE  BRSAS AL - BRR
% BUEEARERNOTERNBG
FERHE:

BEREPRESFELARATA

BEBEF
2 FRIERI83IH
A AL,

17#81712-1716F
B F : (852) 2862-8628
{E & : (852) 2529-6087

REERRE
MBEMER  FRSE:

BEHLE
BEREYBE
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FREE

B A K611-6195%

R I KEIR

B &E 1 (852) 2411-0913
{5 H : (852) 2415-1608
S & : jr@karrie.com
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Corporate Calendar

%j(% H 70N

August
8 H

2018 October
10 A

November

1A

February
2 A

April
4 A

May
5A4

The construction of the Group’s PRC headquarters, in Fenggang Dongguan was
completed. The building, named as Karrie Group Tower, is now in operation
SEUNTEREAEZATHER ExHRERALDERENEENE
EEXRALR

Received the Outstanding Import and Export Enterprise Awards 2018 —
Corporate Achievement Award from The Hong Kong Chinese Importers’ &
Exporters’ Association for the second consecutive year

BREFEHEDAOBEREELOLRKNE2018 - MK ]

Received the Best Quality Supplier Award 2018 from Inventec
BREERBEDOISREREHRERNE

Received the Social Capital Builder Logo Awards 2018 from the Community
Investment and Inclusion Fund under the Hong Kong Productivity Council
REBLENRERMEREAZESBEME S AR H L2018 - 75
82

Received the 10 Years Plus Caring Company Logo for 2005-2019 from The
Hong Kong Council of Social Service

EEBETeREE 2 B3ENM0FPlusE 7 E B2 1(2005-2019) 2 7%

Received the Best in Reporting Awards — Small Market Capitalisation (Main
Board) of the ESG Awards 2019 from BDO

EBDOE MR - G REIAKNK2019) B E[HEESCREANE - TR
ANEEEN

Received the title of Hong Kong Green Organisation from the Environmental
Campaign Committee

ERREDZEERNRBERECREIRT

Received the title of EcoChallenger from the BOCHK Corporate Environmental
Leadership Awards 2018
EBIRREBPERRRBAEKRZ2018/BERREFBE EcoChallenger] &
fir

Received the Smart Way Ahead 2019 — Outstanding Serviceability Award from
Lenovo

R AR S REA2019 - EHRAE]

KARRIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED Z FIEBR = RBR A A



Financial Highlights
CURi R

Share Price Movement of the past 5 years

BERFZREES
Share Price (HK$) Share Price (HK$)
fE (B) BME (BT)
1.8 1.8
1.2 1.2
0.6 0.6
0.0 0.0
T T T T T
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

Revenue HK$ million

WABEBRET
2898 2,920*
' 2,700*
2,591
2015 2016 2017 2018
Include continuing operations only
ABIEREREER

Basic earnings per share HK cents

BREAGEFEAL
92
84
59
38
2015 2016 2017 2018

2019

2019

Profit attributable to equity shareholders HK$ million
REFEARGENEEET @

183
168

17
16

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

Dividends per share HK cents

B EBA
89 0
65
33 35
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
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Financial Highlights
B E

Turnover percentage by Products
REmBINERFEITR

Continuing operations

Turnover percentage by Geographical Location
(based on the country in which the final
destination of shipment is located or services are

BB provided)
B el and Plsic s RERMELHANEEETIERERRN
e ERNMIRBREEMEERD EK)
Electronics Manufacturing Services Business
=R
ETRRATRB M japan Hong Kong The PRC
Real Estate Bu;ness and others B E8 =]
b H
Di = ?E%ﬁ& Jm [ Asia (excluding Japan, Hong Kong and the PRC)
i T (TR - EERFE)
B Consumer and Services Business North America | W‘;Sfem Europe
HEERIRGEER B M 2l
0% 1% 2%
5 \
31% 33% 31% 28%
2019 2018 2019 2018
41% 44%
3% N, 15% N\,
2019 2018 % Changes
“E-h#E —Z)N\F EDER S
HKS$ million BEET
Continuing operations FEEEER
Revenue LON 2,651 2,920 9%
Gross profit EH 440 423 +4%
Operating profit &2 A 316 264 +20%
Profit for the year from FRRARHELE
continuing operations ES il 221 218 +1%
Loss for the year from FERBDRIE
discontinued operations BEXBLBR = 35 -100%
Profit attributable to equity shareholders BERsBARERN 221 183 +21%
Total assets AEBE 2,464 2,644 7%
Shareholders’ equity BERER 1,167 1,188 2%
In Million &R
Number of shares BB 1,992 1,995 -
Per Share Data EREH
HK cents BN
Basic earnings E A F 11.1 9.2 +21%
Diluted earnings M 5E 1% 8 A 11.0 9.1 +21%
Total cash dividends BHLKRE 8.0 8.9 -10%
HK$ BT
Net asset value per share BREERE 0.6 0.6 -
Financial Ratios B L=
Gross profit margin (%)* 3B I E M (%) 16.6 14.5 +14%
Net profit margin (%)* 38 PR A (%) 8.4 7.5 +12%
Current ratio B & 2.2 1.8 +22%
Quick ratio REHE 17 14 +21%
Net gearing ratio (%) FRITEELLE %) 34.0 29.8 +14%
Interest coverage* ] SOR & R 19.4 21.2 -8%
Dividend payout (%) T8 EL K (%) 721 96.7 -25%
Revenue to net bank borrowings* WO FRATE & b 6.7 8.3 -19%
Non-current assets to total equity (%) FRPEEEERBELE%) 74.4 75.8 2%

* Include continuing operations only

REBEFEKERTE
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DEFINITIONS

Basic earnings
per Share

Diluted earnings
per Share

Net asset value

per Share

Gross profit
margin (%)

Net profit
margin (%)

Current ratio

Quick ratio

Net gearing
ratio (%)

Interest coverage

Dividend
payout (%)

Revenue to net
bank borrowings

Non-current assets
to total equity (%)

Profit attributable to equity shareholders

Weighted average number of Shares

Profit attributable to equity shareholders

Diluted weighted average number of Shares

Net assets

Number of Shares as at year end

Gross profit from continuing operations

— : x 100%
Revenue from continuing operations
Profit for the year
from continuing operations
x 100%

Revenue from continuing operations

Current assets

Current liabilities

Current assets less inventories

Current liabilities

Bank borrowings less cash and bank deposits

Total equity

Earnings before interest expenses, tax, depreciation
and amortisation from continuing operations

Interest expenses from continuing operations

Dividend per Share

: x 100%
Earnings per Share

Revenue from continuing operations

Bank borrowings less cash and bank deposits

Non-current assets

Total equity

Financial Highlights
B E

=%
R AARRER
epanyy  EERBAEEEH

DO P25 B K

EBaRBARGLHN
BEMETIRA

SREEREH

) BEFE
SREES
RERE FERE
RERELS
L5 EF|
\% 2N | 00 00
2 B E (%) REREGEEE X 100%
ZWA
ERERARELY
£ At
i% /j'—\,i,}@ il % I ]00%
RALAI ) rapmaE
e AL ON
REHEE
REE e
! REEE
RBEEREY
HEH & =
& RBERE
EEsEs  BROEERBLREAEX
3 (%) EnEE

REFELLERB MBS
o B T E R AR A
REHBREEHINEH

MEREL R

ns FL/%
& B L& (%) f%% x 100%
s eyl
KA RERBREEB WA
RARTEELE BAOEERBEREAER
nBEE FnBEE
HEGAE Hm
EE % (%)
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Chairman’s Statement

EERE

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND RESULTS
For the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group was
principally engaged in:

—  Metal and Plastic Business (“M&P”): manufacturing and

sale of metal and plastic products, including server
casings, moulds, plastic and metal parts and household
products;

—  Electronic Manufacturing Services Business (“EMS”):

manufacturing and sale of magnetic tape data storage,
point-of-sale (“POS”) system, office automation
products and other computer peripherals; and

— Real Estate Business: urban renewal, real estate project
investment, property leasing and development.

FEXBRESE
BE_T-AF=A=t—HBI &%
BEERSE:

— heBBEB(RZRE)  RiE
FHERERZEBER  BHEMAR
RO REA - BRES BN
REEMF:

— BFEERIXB(EFRID:
BUE RSB BURMETT S -
AL MAEXEERREM
ERMAEEEM K

— BHEXRE: ERNE FHER
ARE MEHERER -

hEBBEK
METAL AND

PLASTIC BUSINESS

e AR 28 Sh 7
SERVER CASINGS

EFERRIXHK
ELECTRONIC

MANUFACTURING
SERVICES
BUSINESS

KARRIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED EZFIBIFRZRBR A A

L& E Y
POS SYSTEM

17 fif 2 &
STORAGE PRODUCT



(1) Business Review

Results

For the year ended 31 March 2019, the revenue
of the Group was HK$2,651,169,000 (for the year
ended 31 March 2018: HK$2,919,880,000), which
decreased by approximately 9% when compared
with the corresponding period last year. Profit for
the year attributable to the equity shareholders of
the Company amounted to HK$221,386,000 (for
the year ended 31 March 2018: HK$182,563,000),
which increased by approximately 21% when
compared with the corresponding period last year.

The drop in revenue was mainly due to the
decline in revenue from both M&P and EMS
(the “Industrial Businesses”). The direct impact of
the trade dispute between China and the United
States on the Group’s business is relatively minor
as only an insignificant portion of the Group’s
industrial products are directly sold and exported
to the United States. However, the number of
orders was inevitably affected by the prevailing
external uncertainties and hence the fence-
sitting. The revenue of the Industrial Businesses
for the year ended 31 March 2019 decreased
by approximately 16% to HK$2,425,461,000
when compared with the corresponding period
last year (for the year ended 31 March 2018:
HK$2,870,921,000). The operating profit of these
segments was down by approximately 20%
to HK$208,114,000 when compared with the
corresponding period last year (for the year ended
31 March 2018: HK$260,432,000).

Chairman’s Statement

EEHRE

(—) ¥¥%EE
. ¥&75m|
HE_ZT—NhhF=ZA=1+—
AEtFE AEBEZHWAE

2,651,169,000/8 T (B = = &
—N\F=ZA=+t—HILFE:

2,919,880,00078 JT) & & F ﬁ
BT PEX)9% + AR R

B AEAE & T A221,386, ooo
BLTEE_Z—N\F=ZA=1
—HIEFE : 182,563,000/87T)
BEFREAEINT 421% °

WATRTERRTEBRE
FTRITIEEBDHRKRAY
BRIST R - BR  AEET X
EMBRIVEEHEEHDORE X
Bl - AEBZAULE AREEHE
BEEZERN - BEIINER
BAEAT BE2R/ARE -
FIETRREFE TEZE
BREBE-_Z—NAF=ZA=1+
—HIEFEZRAREFRH
TF&ET #916% £ 2,425,461,000
BTEEZE-—N\E=A=
+—E¢$ﬁ'287o9z1ooo
BIL) e MBBAD M2 L& H
B8 £ F [/ BT B 4920% =
208,114,0008 T (B 2 =& —
NEFEF=ZA=+—HILFE:
260,432,00058 7T) °
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Chairman’s Statement

ERE®WE

The Real Estate Business recorded a revenue of
HK$225,708,000 for the year (for the year ended
31 March 2018: HK$48,540,000). Such increase
was mainly attributable to the gradual delivery
of the units of Phase 3 of Castfast Villas (5218
% JZ) and the completion of the sale of Area B,
Castfast Villas (¥R EEBIR) during the year.
Accordingly, the operating profit of this segment
also surged to HK$107,772,000 (for the year
ended 31 March 2018: HK$3,665,000). With the
Real Estate Business beginning to reap its harvest,
a greater profit contribution is expected.

Industrial Businesses

Revenue for year 2018/19 dropped by
approximately 16% when compared with last
year, which was principally the net result of the
following:

(@ the drop in the revenue of M&P for the
year ended 31 March 2019 of approximately
14% to HK$1,348,230,000 when compared
with the corresponding period last year
(for the vyear ended 31 March 2018:
HK$1,576,143,000), mainly due to the
prudent attitude of clients in making
purchases and a drop in product demand
in view of the cautious market sentiment
amid the Sino-US trade dispute and global
economic uncertainties.

KARRIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED EF EEZERER AT

FEHEFEFE - ANFE S
I A £225,708,0007% 7T (Bl &
“E-NEFE=ZA=1+—HIHF
€ : 48,540,000/87T) * WA £
AEFERAFEEERNEE
SEF-HBEBEEULETKE
IEREBRIBEEHEMTE
it 2> B8 2 48 & ) 75 A 1tk K
8 + F+ 2107,772,0007% 7T (&
2T/ \FE=Z/A=+—HIt
F [ 13,665,000 7T) ° B i
EEBFREABKEE - ¥
BFHE B & e IE K o

TEXEXKSH
TN\ NEFERERAEE
FREN6%  FTE2:

@ HheZBREE_ZT—
NWE=RA=+—HI#F
B2 W AR EFRETF
T #914% %1,348,230,000
BTEEZZ - N\F
—A=+—HILFE:
1,576,143,0007 JT) ° W
ATREEZHRPEE
S8 5 & 2 BRSO T BP
BHEREZHR MBER
AUMBEE BEPEE

B -



the drop in the revenue of EMS for the year
ended 31 March 2019 of approximately
17% to HK$1,077,231,000 when compared
with the corresponding period last year
(for the year ended 31 March 2018:
HK$1,294,778,000), mainly owing to
the Group’s strategic decision to reduce
the manufacture of lower-margin office
automation products and the decrease in the
sale of storage products.

the decline in the Industrial Businesses
as fears of a global economic slowdown
lingers. However, with the concerted

efforts and unremitted dedications of the
Group’s management and staff, the Group
saw a steady development of the Industrial
Businesses and maintained a leading position
in the international server casings production
market.

Chairman’s Statement

EEHRE

EFRIREBEE=ZF—
NWNE=ZRA=+—HI#F
EZWAREFRENE
T #917% %1,077,231,000
BLTEHEZZ—NF
—A=+—RHLFE:
1,294,778,000/% Jt)  *£
T 5 RS I R
REEZBEFEREZ
MAENEEmRFR
ERtEER LT -

TEEBHRZZRERE
MEEBTE  MAML
B EBERELAEEEE
ERETEF—0 BEd
W TERFEHF/URRE
BR - RERER @R
mINREEMSHNAESE
AL -
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Chairman’s Statement

ERE®WE

(d)

the order from a world-leading renowned
technology enterprise for server parts and
casings. Such further breakthrough in
clientele expansion has demonstrated the
further consolidation of the client base and
the efforts made by the Group in addition
to maintaining good relationship with its
existing clients. Meanwhile, the Group has
to make timely adjustments to its product
mix by phasing out the production of low-
margin products so as to divert investment
to server casings and related products. On
the other hand, orders have been secured
from existing clients for new-generation
server casing projects until 2022. The Group
has also successfully expanded into server
and electric vehicle peripheral products and
obtained relevant orders.

BRTERIBEEPERR I
ARG AEBEER
EPEHEBDRSR
B EEIRERNIH
B b EBMERRET
R INRAARE R R B
E-—FEZRARNEENT
FER - FAFN £EHR
REEBAE - SERIELR
B ZFRHEEMNE
EmLfE SHTRAM
AR 25 50 3% N 48 B B an 1O
RE A AEBEDK
NERIR A TP 8 —
HREIMREEINRIRBETER
E-T__F i RAK R
& B R T 7 40 17 iR 25
EHEREEM WE
EHERETE -

The Best Quality
Supplier Award 2018

The Smart Way Ahead
2019 — Outstanding
Serviceability Award
from Lenovo
BBBEEIERES
2019 - £ 8 A 75 82 |

The Best in Reporting
Awards — Small Market
Capitalisation (Main
Board) from BDO

BDO %8 % [ & EESG R
EREE - R TE]

from Inventec

O EFE[2018
mEREHER ]
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the Group’s established policy of lowering
production cost by continuously increasing
its automation capacity. This has allowed
the expansion of the scope of automation
application and enhancement of automation
standard. The Group’s workshop of the
installation and assembly line has undergone
full automation. In terms of technique
innovation, the Group has completed the
integration of the plastic injection products
processing procedures. The processes of
numerically-controlled bending as well
as polish and trimming have been fully
automated, thereby reducing the number
of transfers during production, effectively
boosting production efficiency and reducing
the pressure of rising labour costs.
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BELEE

Automation Project

Chairman’s Statement

MEEA

Increase in Efficiency

EERE

2EHPAER
Automatic
assembly line

BHE)METEE
Automatic
standoff

HERA3DR B i
A B WO IR B
The 3D AOI
checking for
receive project

EEFEEEiy ey
Automatic
assembly and
stick label

mERBER
1% 8118 B
Movable optical
CCD check metal
slug/chip in the
tool.

R20% B T#{E

From 20 operators

R4 B TH#R1E

From 4 operators

R4Z B T#RE

From 4 operators

R4z B T#1E

From 4 operators

REHEE AR -
ERETRKSE £
BE s
Change the CCD system
fixed method, easy
to move between the
different machine and
installation

BEHEISA
BOETAEL B4
R E604

Now reduce
-> 15 people,

the efficiency of
UPPH was improved
from 25 to 60 pcs

REEHBBRHE
EGR-T-UN

—> Now fully

ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19 & ¥k

automation,
reduce 4 people

REHE2A
Now reduce
2 people

REHE2A
Now reduce
2 people

BeRERA
ARmBERAY
Raise the utilization
ratio and commonality
of equipment
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Chairman’s Statement

ERE®WE

the adoption of the human resources
management system to unify its electronic
management information platforms for the
purpose of enhancing human resources
management and standardising operation
efficiency. With the introduction of the
appraisal of key performance indicators
(“KPl(s)”), the evaluation mechanism for
talents has been further perfected. The
Group also attaches great importance to
team building, expanding the reserve of
talents, stepping up training and cultivating
team spirit with a view to meeting the
Group’s requirements for business growth.

Real Estate Business

The Real Estate Business has begun to reap its
harvest with a revenue of HK$225,708,000 for
the year (for the year ended 31 March 2018:
HK$48,540,000), which was mainly attributable
to: 1) the delivery of, and recognition of revenue
from, over 170 units of Phase 3 of Castfast Villas
(F¥ESE) during the year; and 2) the recognition
of revenue from the sale of the remaining 16 units

of Area B, Castfast Villas

(Z1EZEEBER). The

progress of the major projects is as follows:

@

The construction work of the residential
project of Phase 3 of Castfast Villas (5 # %
EZ), which is a joint residential development
project, has been completed. The development
project, from which the Group would enjoy
50% of the profits, has a saleable floor
area of approximately 61,000 square metres
with a total of more than 600 units. As at
31 March 2019, the total number of units
delivered was approximately 170, with an
area of approximately 16,000 square metres.
The average selling price was approximately
RMB24,000 per square metre and the relevant
revenue was recognised. On the other hand,
approximately 300 units with an area of over
28,000 square metres were pre-sold up to 31
May 2019 and the average selling price was
approximately RMB26,500 per square metre.
Approximately 80% of the units of the project
were sold. The revenue therefrom will be
gradually accounted for in the coming year
after the completion of the relevant formalities
and delivery, thereby contributing to the
Group’s profit.
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Project nature

Chairman’s Statement

EEHRE

Residential project in Fenggang(1) — Phase 3 of Castfast Villas

REEERE(-) — SEREXE=H

50% interest in residential development project

HAEMH 50%# i 2 (T EHRIEA

Location Youganpu Da Long Industrial District, Fenggang Town, Dongguan City, Guangdong Province, the PRC
wE TREERER=MEEE R EBRETER

Saleable area Approximately 61,000 square metres/600 Units

EEdE #161,000F 77 5k 600 fE # i

Pre-sale date On Sale

HERH HER

Completion date Completed

®IBAH B

Project status Over 470 units have been pre-sold, in which over 170 units with average selling of RMB24,000
HEER per square metre have been delivered and recognised as revenue. The remaining pre-sold units

accounted for over 28,000 square metres and the average selling price was approximately
RMB26,500 per square metre

HEERRELN470Z MEN P FHHEEBORET FHKARKE24,00009170% HE B R
R BRBA - HETREEN - H514928,000% FHK - FHEERE THKARK26,500
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Chairman’s Statement

ERE®WE

(b) The development of the residential project (b)
of Phases 4 and 5 of Castfast Villas (57 %
5 ), which was redeveloped from the old
Guanjingtou Plant, is making progress as
scheduled. Wholly-owned by the Group, the
project has a floor area of approximately
120,000 square metres. The construction of
the basement was completed and that of the
above-ground structures is underway. The
pre-sale of the project is expected to begin
at the end of 2019.

Residential project in Fenggang(2) — Phase 4 and 5 of Castfast Villas

REEEBE(Z) — BEEEXEENRAH

BEHEEREREZ =
ERESMN - AHEE
ERERWME  BEMH
SExEHE EHE
& #9120,000F A K © 3]
B NELR - IEF
RWE TR  WEHER
2019F FIEFIRTEE

Project nature * 100% owned residential development project

HEME 100%E=EEFEETHRIEAR

Location e Youganpu Da Long Industrial District, Fenggang Town, Dongguan City, Guangdong Province, the PRC
wE TRERER=MREEEHEHRETER

Estimated saleable e Approximately 120,000 square metres/1,000 units

area #1120,000F 77K /1,000 % fiz

fhEt T EEE

Estimated pre-sale e End of 2019

date 2019F F K

et EERH

Estimated completion ¢ Before mid-2021

date 20215 & A 2 Bl

fhErR T HH

Project status e The construction of the basement was completed and that of the above-ground structure is
BEER underway

BEERMIETR  RIEETHETE
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Chairman’s Statement

EEHRE

(€ The progress of the residential development © BINBEHZEZELEE
of Castfast Garden in Boluo County, FTHEHEIEZ#EERT -
Huizhou has been satisfactory. Wholly- RIEEHEREZEHE -
owned by the Group, the project has a 1€ | [ & £930,000% ¥
floor area of approximately 30,000 square TR RIEETH =T
metres and its basement work is underway. BEHAFERERSKE
The pre-sale of the project is expected to S

commence at the end of the year.

Residential project in Huizhou Boluo County — Castfast Garden

EMNEEBEEHEE — FEEE

Project nature e 100% owned residential development project
HAMH 100% 2 AHEAEEERIAA

Location e Dongping Village, Zhangning Town, Boluo County, Huizhou City, Guangdong Province, the PRC
B TEEREEMMEEZEEHEREN
Estimated saleable e Approximately 30,000 square metres/330 Units
area #130,000F 735K /3308 fir

et EER

Estimated pre-sale e End of 2019

date 2019F F K

hErRERAH

Estimated completion ¢ Before mid-2021

date 20215 F A 2 Al

CHE: 4=

Project status * Basement is underway

HEER MIEETHTIELR
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The Periphery Area of Fenggang Property Development Projects

EEFEtERBRARBESE

1

Over 50,000 m? of
large-scale parent-child
theme mall (Upgrading)

BSBFPRBARRT
FEESFRT)




Long Feng Villa GEBLILIFE) -
the only national AAAA grade
wedding themed tourist
resort with 380,000 m2

BERILGE — 15338 B ¥
Ko ZEIE—BEEEER
AAAARR fi iz =

....... Fullhouse
""""""" World
Wonderland
— an innovative
children’s
theme park

Rt R RIRE
L%4E — Rl
...... REFELE

Three themed
hotels offering a
total of over 390
comfortably
furnished rooms

=IFAREEE
TBIE - $L1R 4390
ZETEERE

Castfast Club, provides various
services, ranging from F&B,

living to education, health and
entertainment, is close to the end of
construction.

BRI ETI8E -
Z R REEHECARITETR
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Chairman’s Statement

ERE®WE

(d) In spite of the fact that the global economy
is losing its growth momentum and the
international environment is marked by
increasing complexity, the Real Estate
Business has performed well. The 47 units
in Area B, Castfast Villas (&% EBR)
were sold and such revenue were recognised
in full, and the sales target of Phase 3 of
Castfast Villas (2FE5 EE) were met. With the
establishment of a professional team and the
optimisation of the operation flow of the Real
Estate Business, the Group is all set for the
opportunities and challenges of this business.

IV. Discontinued Operation
The consumer and services business was disposed
of on 29 March 2018 and was accounted for as
a discontinued operation during the year ended
31 March 2018.

Conclusion

Over the past year, the Group remained committed to
the idea of staying trendy while upholding quality and
demonstrated the “nothing is impossible” entrepreneurial
approach. As to the Industrial Businesses, the Group
continued its efforts in increasing its automation capacity,
securing new clients and researching and developing
new products, hence further cementing the solid
groundwork of the Industrial Businesses. For the Real
Estate Business, as the projects have been in progress
as scheduled, the relevant revenue has resulted in profit
and such contribution has shown a rising trend. The
strength and potential of the Real Estate Business have
turned into a new revenue stream of the Group, which
will thrive as an enterprise with higher value.

(2) Dividend Policy
In the results announcement for the first quarter of year
2006/07, the Board announced the adoption of a new
dividend policy, which outlines the factors that should
be taken into account in determining the amount of
dividend for distribution, such as the profit attributable
to equity shareholders of the Company, cash flow
and investment budgets. After careful consideration
of the aforementioned factors, and for the purpose
of maintaining the track record of consecutive annual
payment of dividends since the listing, the Board has
recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK5.0
cents per share to all the shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company on
30 August 2019.

(3) Geographical Distribution
The Group has adopted a diversified approach in
product delivery and does not rely on one single
market. Details of the Group’s geographical distribution
are set out in the segment report in note 5 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements of this annual report.
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Prospects

The Group anticipates a number of challenges ahead.
Firstly, the cost of labour will continue to surge.
Secondly, businesses are expected to keep a tight rein
on their purchasing activities in view of the US-China
trade dispute and global economic uncertainties. In
response, the Group will take the following measures:

@

It will tighten its relationship and cooperation
with the existing customers while developing
new customers and projects and continuing to
identify new business development opportunities,
particularly those in relation to server peripheral
products, artificial intelligence and the
environmental protection industry;

It will increase investments in server mechanical
products by way of the proposed acquisitions
of a number of high-end production equipment,
which mainly include large 5-axis CNC processing
machines, high-speed injection molding machine,
high-precision riveting punch, high precision wire
cutting machine and graphite electrical discharge
machine, in order to meet its business expansion
needs and strengthen its competitiveness;

It will promote talent development and enhance
the technical capability and expertise of the staff
in order to respond rapidly to the fast-changing
business environment and improve its adaptability;

It will put more effort to the develclEment of
Phases 4 and 5 of Castfast Villas (FIE X E)
by building distinctive nelghbourhoods that
supplement nearby hotel, art and cultural industry,
tourism, leisure and resort developments in
order to revitalise the local economy, and take
advantage of the development opportunities
across the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao
Greater Bay Area, in which the Group’s property
projects are located. Situated at the periphery of
Shenzhen, Fenggang of Dongguan enjoys a prime
geographical position. According to the amended
urban rail transit development plan of Shenzhen,
Line 10 of the Shenzhen Metro will extend and
|s s expected to add a station near Castfast Villas
(B 5 Z), thereby strengthening the integration
of Shenzhen and Dongguan by linking Fenggang
of Dongguan with Pinghu and Longgang of
Shenzhen. This will bring Fenggang of Dongguan
to the living circle of Shenzhen. Furthermore, the
Group will also commence the pre-sale of the
project in Boluo, Huizhou as soon as possible
in order to generate revenue. The Real Estate
Business as a whole has begun to make significant
profit contribution to the Group, and is expected

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement

ERHRE

to contribute even more revenue to the Group
and become a lucrative business. The Group
is optimistic about the future of the Real Estate
Business and will continue to identify suitable land
plots for different types of development; and

It will foster the long-term development of the
Real Estate Business under the macro-economic

BERULOIRE— SRR - KR

AEBBABENESR - AE
) % F5 1 B 3% OR AR % R R R

LB O VYEEESHESN
e BERARIER &

(@ MR RAEBIENRE
T FHEXBESAREE

=

control measures implemented by the central s FRIBEIYIAIER
government of mainland China, and actively ZK’*.FW@ RIEE - ftE™
develop and roll out projects in accordance with - BEREE EFE%E’J%%%

the philosophy that “residential properties are EH51 A2 PXH & B AR
necessity, not commodity”. It will also adopt a

flexible sale strategy to achieve its sales target.

We are well aware that no enterprise can get into the BIVRBEETEELZEE » —K
groove and stay put. The Group will be innovative and e REBEBEBENRE - A
versatile to grasp every opportunity, achieve sustainable EREZH BRKEBER  BERX
development, and maximise profits for its shareholders. RARAME  [REMEN - 5=
Karrie will not only seize the moment, but also lead the MEAWERE] BERE@A
trend. It will stay ahead of its peers and make room B BEHM—FRES -

for development.

EEPRELAOESRENR01BEL AR ARE | 2 F K
i SETFHERVEMIEMBTLENETRR

BB B RARRREEA AT ERBEE -
“Outstanding Import and Export Enterprise Awards
2018” from Hong Kong Chinese Importers’ & Exporters’
Association. Mr. Ho Wai Hon, Brian, Assistant to Chairman
of the Group and Head of the Finance and Accounting
Department, received the award from Paul Chan Mo-po, JP,
the Financial Secretary of the Government of the HKSAR.
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Building a Centennial Enterprise

Building a centennial enterprise is not just a slogan or a
one-time corporate initiative. It is a constant effort and a
consistent development policy that requires continuous talent
support. A centennial enterprise has to show its value, move
forward through ups and downs, stay abreast of market
developments and achieve sustainable development.

Profitability is essential for an enterprise in order to
demonstrate its value. After nearly 40 years of development,
the Group is still developing and enhancing its investment
value by identifying and seizing business opportunities. The
management also spares no effort to generate profit for the
shareholders every year. Nevertheless, maintaining growth
and profitability is never easy. To surmount the wide array
of challenges in the ever-changing business environment, the
management believes that a centennial enterprise must have
the following qualities:

(1) Robust Adaptability:

Being committed to the idea of staying trendy while
upholding quality, the Group will surmount all
difficulties and turn challenges into gains by constant
adjustment and transformation. To procure further
development, it will seize all opportunities and rise to
every challenge by expanding automatic production,
launching new products, adjusting its strategy from
time to time, responding flexibly to changes and staying
ahead of its peers;

(2) Diversified Development:

To lay a solid foundation, the Group has to diversify its
products and customer base. The management cannot
stay put in terms of creativity. Comprising members
from different background, the Group’s team is well
equipped with a wide range of expertise. The Group
also diversifies its business lines to expand its income
stream. Diversification will mitigate the impact of
adverse developments and allow the Group to grow
steadily;

Chairman’s Statement
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MEETY MREEEFEUENER
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ARAEE AXFERNER DA
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BEBE EEENSHITEH SFLRK
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Chairman’s Statement

ERHRE

3)

Strong Commitment to Core Values:

With a prudent strategy and a clear direction, the
Group has been focusing on, and stepping up
investment in, its core Industrial Businesses. It is
enlarging automated production to enhance production
capacity and efficiency. Following the “nothing is
impossible” entrepreneurial approach, it has become a
pioneer among its peers in solving the deadlock faced
by the labour-intensive industry; and

High Alertness:

The Group will not get complacent, stand pat and stay
put. It will move forward by constantly developing new
products, expanding its customer base, nurturing its
talents and cultivating younger team members. Instead
of practising the leadership framework of “a lion leading
an army of sheep”, the Group emphasises on team
participation in preventing and mitigating the impact of
crisis on the Group.

3)

BEFMEE:

AEEERBE BIRAE  FF
O TERER  TEMATEERR
MIRE - HBESEEE  RAE
REM K - RBTTHRATER - AT
EEAEIDERE BRET
EREENER: M

FmEEER:
AEBRETEFEH  BREER
MR - MEBRRAKRK &
B ES  RAOTPER 1§
BAT  AEEREAN TA—EF
FHRE-BFIORLE I8
BAREENFE -

EBDOEMH[RIE - & NE AR KE2019]
B[ REESCHREANE - TR/ 1A
Received the Best in Reporting Awards

— Small Market Capitalisation (Main Board)

of the ESG Awards 2019 from BDO
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In addition to generating tangible or intangible assets for its
shareholders, the Group also has to earn the recognition of
the society by creating long-term value for both the society
and the environment and satisfying the needs of different
stakeholders. It will fulfil its corporate social responsibilities
by, among others, donating to educational institutions and
being committed to the protection of the environment. It aims
to realise development sustainability and strike a balance
among economic development, the environment and the
society. With the aim of becoming a sustainable enterprise,
the Group will take into account not only the amount, but
also the quality of its profit growth during its development.

The Group upgraded its headquarters in order to renew
its corporate vitality and demonstrate its determination to
become a centennial enterprise. After years of success in
maintaining profits and transformation, the Group is striving
towards the goal of building a centennial enterprise. It calls
for the concerted effort of the entire staff to create value and
fight for the future.

FINANCIAL RESOURCES
Borrowings

With the commencement of Real Estate Business, net
interest-bearing borrowings® as at 31 March 2019 were
approximately HK$396,312,000 and the net interest-
bearing borrowings ratio (being the proportion of total net
interest-bearing borrowings over total equity) was 34% (as
at 31 March 2018: net interest-bearing borrowings were
approximately HK$353,749,000 and net interest-bearing
borrowings ratio was 30%). The financial position of the
Group remains healthy.

# Represent bank borrowings less cash and bank deposits (“net
interest-bearing borrowings”)

Non-current Assets to Shareholders’ Fund Ratio
maintaining at below 1

The non-current assets to total equity ratio as at 31 March
2019 maintained at the healthy level of 74% (as at 31 March
2018: 76%), which represents the Group’s non-current assets,
such as plant and machineries are using its stable total equity
as a support.
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Capital Expenditure (“CAPEX”)

The initial estimate of the CAPEX Budget for the financial
year 2019/20 is approximately HK$150,000,000, of which
HK$148,700,000 relates to the Industrial Businesses and
HK$1,300,000 is for the investment property. The CAPEX
was mainly used for acquiring new machinery and equipment
and computer system.

Resources Available

Currently, the total interest-bearing borrowings are
approximately HK$620,342,000. The Group is confident that
with the cash in hand and bank deposits of approximately
HK$224,030,000 and the unutilised banking facilities of
approximately HK$1,051,549,000, it is able to meet its
current operational and capital expenditure requirements and
to make strategic investments when opportunities arise.

Exchange Rate Exposure

Most of the Group’s assets, liabilities and transactions are
denominated in HKD, USD and RMB. Foreign currency risk
arises from commercial transactions, recognised assets and
liabilities and net investments in foreign operations that are
denominated in a currency other than the Group’s functional
currency, which in turn exerts pressure on the Group's
production cost. To mitigate the impact of exchange rate
fluctuation of RMB on its business, the Group will actively
communicate with its customers in order to adjust the selling
prices of its products and may use foreign exchange forward
contracts to hedge against foreign currency risk (if and when
necessary).

Contingent Liabilities
As at 31 March 2019, the Group had no significant
contingent liabilities.

TEA-BREAK WITH INVESTORS

We are glad that the “tea-break with investors institutional
or individual” has been successfully held for many years.
The Group adheres to the principles of “openness, fairness
and equality” and believes that all investors should have
the same right to get access to the Company’s information.
With these principles in mind and considering that the tea-
break remains to be an effective and efficient way for the
Company to communicate with its investors, the Group will
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continue to organise tea-break with individual investors. The
next tea-break is scheduled on 24 August 2019 from 12:00
noon to 2:00 p.m. at East Ocean Seaview Restaurant, 11/F.,
One Peking Road, Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

Interested investors are invited to visit the Group’s website at
www.karrie.com for more details. Application form can be
downloaded from the website or obtained by calling 2411-
0913 during office hours. Only investors whose applications
are confirmed can join the function. Investors are encouraged
to grasp this opportunity to communicate directly with the
management of the Company.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

The Group had approximately 3,360 employees on average
(an average of 3,910 employees in the corresponding period
last year) during the year. With a good reputation in the
local community, the Group has rarely encountered major
difficulties in recruiting employees.

Employee remuneration packages are determined in
accordance with prevailing market standards and the
employee’s performance and experience. The Group will also
grant bonuses to employees with outstanding performance
based on its own audited business performance and the
appraisal and reward system. Other employee benefits
include medical insurance and mandatory provident fund.

In addition, to cope with domestic development in the
PRC and the actual need for talent-retaining, the Group
establishes a “Cooperative Home & Car Ownership Scheme”
to encourage and finance potential elites in buying a flat and
a car as a means to retain talents who may otherwise be
lost in the competitive labour market.

Performance Based Incentives

The Group adopted performance based bonus system
and objective performance assessment. Employees with
outstanding performance will now receive more bonus than
before the new system was implemented.
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DIVIDEND

The Board has recommended to pay a final dividend of
HK5.0 cents per Share (2017/18 final dividend: HK4.75 cents
per Share), to shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company on 30 August 2019.
Together with the interim dividend of HK3.0 cents per Share
(2017/18 interim dividend: HK1.6 cents per Share and special
dividend of HK2.55 cents per Share), total dividend paid/
payable for this year amounted to HK8.0 cents per Share
(2017/18: HK8.9 cents per Share). The final dividend will be
subject to the approval of the shareholders of the Company
at the forthcoming annual general meeting (the “AGM”) of
the Company to be held on 23 August 2019.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee currently
made up of one non-executive Director and three independent
non-executive Directors whose duties include resolving issues
in relation to audit such as reviewing and supervising the
Company’s financial reporting process and internal control
systems. The audit committee and the management have
reviewed the accounting principles and major policies adopted
by the Group and have discussed the auditing, internal control
and financial reporting in the current year with the external
auditors. The audit committee has reviewed the consolidated
annual results of the Group as of 31 March 2019.

APPRECIATION

I would like to thank our customers, suppliers, bankers,
shareholders and others who have extended their invaluable
support to the Group, and my fellow Directors, managers and
all staff for their considerable contributions to the Group.
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APPENDIX 1

The Group’s policy to distribute 30% or more of its profits attributable to shareholders as dividend

Chairman’s Statement
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Dividend and Dividend Policy:
RERKREHE:
An unbroken 23 years’ record of dividend payment

—+ = F BURIK B 1 R

FEEREREERBRREMLBEF30%FH A EAEIRS

All dividend paid shown below is in HK cents per Share

THBREROKEZREZUBWUTE

Interim Final Special Dividend
Interim Final  Subtotal Special Special  Subtotal Total Payout Ratio
b A KBERE RE
I K Mt BERE BARE Mt &t i Jae
(excluding)*  (Including)®
(FefFam)* (BERER)’
1996/97 Nil £ 5.40 5.40 Nil & Nil £ Nil & 5.40 24%  NATEB
1997/98 Nil & 1.00 1.00 Nil & Nil & Nil & 1.00 13% NATEA
1998/99 2.00 2.00 4.00 Nil & Nil % Nil & 4.00 58%  N/A i F
1999/00 2.20 2.20 4.40 Nil & Nil £ Nil & 4.40 77%  NA TEB
2000/01 1.10 3.80 4,90 Nil & 6.20 6.20 11.10 69% 156%
2001/02 5.00 5.90 10.90 5.00 14.10 19.10 30.00 50% 138%
2002/03 8.00 11.00 19.00 Nil £ 5.00 5.00 24.00 60% 75%
2003/04 8.00 12.00 20.00 Nil & Nil £ Nil & 20.00 87%  N/A i F
2004/05 8.50 12.50 21.00 Nil & Nil % Nil & 21.00 58%  N/A i F
2005/06 9.00 13.00 22.00 Nil £ 3.00 3.00 25.00 48% 55%
2006/07 8.50 3.00 11.50 Nil & Nil £ Nil & 11.50 38%  N/A T F
2007/08 0.75 Nil % 0.75 Nil & Nil & Nil & 0.75 27%  N/A TER
2008/09 Nil £ 1.50 1.50 Nil & Nil % Nil & 1.50 39% NATER
2009/10 Nil & 1.00 1.00 Nil & Nil & Nil & 1.00 45%  N/A T F
2010/11 Nil £ 110 1.10 Nil & Nil % Nil & 1.10 32% NATEHR
2011/12 Nil £ 1.00 1.00 Nil & Nil £ Nil & 1.00 38% N/ATER
2012/13 Nil 1.20 1.20 Nil £ Nil & Nil 1.20 61% N/A TiEA
2013/14 Nil £ 1.00 1.00 Nil & Nil & Nil & 1.00 58%  N/A i F
2014/15 0.50 1.80 2.30 Nil £ 1.00 1.00 3.30 61% 87%
2015/16 0.75 2.75 3.50 Nil & Nil £ Nil & 3.50 59%  N/A T F
2016/17 1.30 4.20 5.50 Nil £ 1.00 1.00 6.50 65% 77%
2017/18 1.60 4.75 6.35 2.55 Nil & 2.55 8.90 69% 97%
2018/19 3.00 5.00 8.00 Nil & Nil £ Nil & 8.00 72%  NA TiEH
Remarks: * Excluding special dividend * Including special dividend
et * NEIER R R B ¢ BRI B
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APPENDIX 2 B 6k —
Inventory & Debtor Turnover Days
FERERRBER
No. of days —°— Inventory Turnover 75 B E)
HE —{:}— Debtor Turnover [ 4§ i 18 85 £
T00
90
BO

13/14 14/15 15/16 16/17 17/18 18/19

(No. of days) (B %) 13/14 14/15 15/16 16/17 17/18 18/19

Inventory Turnover

FE A 45 64 50 59% 56% 55%
Debtor Turnover
JE U iR 48 2 5P 54 40 41 43* 50* 38*

FEREHUUFREFEERAKRSE)
x365H

Inventory turnover (Base on year end inventory value/Cost
of revenue) x 365 days

Debtor turnover (Base on year end debtors/Revenue) x 365 & Y iR 48 &% H (DA G 42 fE U IR ML A) x
days 365H

Inventory Turnover Days 77 & & & i

(No. of days) (H#) 17/18* 18/19*  Change #1&
Raw Materials R 41 %} 18 19 +6%
Work-in-progress + %4 5% ia 8 5 -38%
Finished Goods & X ma 30 31 +3%
Total & &f 56 55 2%

* Include continuing operations only

RBEREKERERK
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APPENDIX 3 B 8k =

Gross Profit Margin & Net Profit Margin
BREFRAERERE

—°— Gross Profit Margin 1282 EF(%)

(%) —C}— Net Profit Margin 3246 F(%)
300
25

13/14 14/15 15/16 16/17* 17/18* 18/19*

(%) 13/14 14/15 15/16 16/17 17/18 18/19

Gross Profit Margin

ERERN 14.3 11.0 12.1 13.6* 14.5% 16.6*
Net Profit Margin
2 R 40 A 1.6 2.9 4.0 7.0* 7.5% 8.4*

HK$(million) (& & & T)

Revenue

WA 2,033 2,591 2,898 2,700* 2,920* 2,651*
Profit for the year

FE & M 33 76 17 168 182 221

* Include continuing operations only
REEFERKERT
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APPENDIX 4

Industrial
Businesses

HK$'000
FExT

300,000
250,000
200,000
150,000
100,000

50,000

0

14/15

B 82 0

Industrial Businesses CAPEX
ITHEXEKETEERE

15/16

16/17

17/18

18/19

19/20*

Industrial
Businesses
CAPEX
TEER
BEEEERE
HK$'000
FA&T

143,067

117,038

52,004

60,660

61,415

148,700

——
Operating
profit for
Industrial
Businesses
TERER
=il
HK$’000
THET

139,568

210,799

219,783

260,432

208,114

*  Budget
* }E%

R T
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Corporate Governance Report

The Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are
committed to achieving high standards of corporate
governance to safeguard the interests of shareholders of the
Company (the “Shareholders”) and to enhance corporate
value and accountability.

For the year ended 31 March 2019 (the “Year”) the Group
has applied the principles of the recently promulgated
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”) and complied with the code provision (the “Code
Provisions”) of the CG Code; save for the deviation from
Code Provisions A.2.1, A.4.1, A.4.2 and A.5 of the CG Code.
This report describes our Group’s corporate governance
practices and explains the said deviations from the CG Code.

Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the
roles of chairman and chief executive should be separate
and should not be performed by the same individual. The
Company does not segregate the roles of its Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer and Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai (“Mr. Ho")
currently holds both positions.

Being the founder of the Group, Mr. Ho has substantial
experience in the manufacturing industry, as well as in real
estate and culture related industries. At the same time, Mr.
Ho has the appropriate management skills and business
acumen that are necessary and are the pre-requisites for
assuming the role of the Chief Executive Officer. The Board
believes that vesting the roles of both the Chairman and the
Chief Executive Officer in the same person would provide
the Group with strong and consistent leadership and allow
the Group to be more effective and efficient in developing
long-term business strategies and executing business plans.
Hence, the Board considers that there is no need to segregate
the roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer
and both roles should continue to be performed by Mr. Ho.
The Board believes that the balance of power and authority
is adequately ensured by the operation of the Board which
comprises experienced and high calibre individuals with
a sufficient number thereof independent non-executive
Directors.

According to Code Provision A.4.1 of CG Code, non-
executive director should be appointed for a specific term,
subject to re-election. Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming was re-designated
as Non-executive Director on 1 June 2007 and he was
appointed as Deputy Chairman on 1 May 2011 without a
specific term. Mr. Ho Kai Man was re-designated as the
Non-executive Director on 1 November 2012 without a
specific term. Although Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming and Mr. Ho Kai
Man are not appointed for a specific term, they are subject
to retirement by rotation according to the Bye-laws of the
Company.
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Moreover, Code Provision A.4.2 of CG Code stipulates that
every director, including those appointed for a specific term,
should be subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years.

According to the Company’s Bye-laws, at each annual general
meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being or,
if their number is not 3 or a multiple of 3, the number
nearest to one-third but not greater than one-third shall retire
from office provided that notwithstanding anything in the
Company’s Bye-laws, the Chairman of the Directors and/
or the Managing Director of the Company shall not, whilst
holding such office, be subject to retirement by rotation or
be taken into account in determining the number of Directors
to retire in each year. Furthermore, any Director appointed to
fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board should
hold office only until the next following annual general
meeting and would then be eligible for re-election. The
Chairman and/or the Managing Director of the Group will
consider to voluntarily retire at the annual general meeting
at least once every three years in line with Code Provision
A.4.2 of the CG Code. As such, the Company considers
that sufficient measures have been taken to ensure good
corporate governance of the Company.

According to Code Provision A.5 of the CG Code, the
Company should establish a nomination committee, which
is chaired by the chairman of the Board or an independent
non-executive Director and comprises a majority of the
independent non-executive Directors. The Company has not
established a nomination committee due to the fact that the
function of the nomination committee was delegated to the
Board, which is responsible for reviewing its own structure,
size and composition in accordance with the board diversity
policy adopted by the Company (the “Policy”) annually;
considering the re-appointment of Directors; evaluating the
Policy as well as assessing the independence of independent
non-executive Directors. The Board has taken sufficient
measures to avoid the conflict of interests in carrying out
such functions. For instance, the relevant Director would
abstain from voting for any resolution relating to his or her
own re-appointment. As such, the Board is of the view that
the members of the Board possess the necessary experience
and knowledge to discharge the functions of a nomination
committee. The Board shall review the composition and
operation of the Board from time to time and shall consider
establishing a nomination committee if such need arises.

The Company will continue to review its practices from time
to time to achieve high standard of corporate governance.
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Corporate Governance Report

A. BOARD OF DIRECTORS
1. The Board of Directors

1.1

1.2

As at 31 March 2019, the Board consisted
of nine Directors, comprising Mr. Ho Cheuk
Fai (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer),
Ms. Chan Ming Mui, Silvia, Mr. Zhao Kai and
Mr. Chan Raymond as executive Directors;
Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming as a non-executive
Director and Deputy Chairman; Mr. Ho
Kai Man as a non-executive Director and
Mr. So Wai Chun, Mr. Fong Hoi Shing and
Mr. Yam Chung Shing as the independent
non-executive Directors. The Board has the
collective responsibility for the leadership
and promotion of the success of the Group’s
business by directing and supervising the
Group’s affairs.

The Board is committed to the Group’s
objectives of enhancing the Shareholders’
value and provision of superior products
and services. The Board is collectively
responsible for formulating the overall
objective and strategy of the Group;
monitoring and evaluating its operating and
financial performance and reviewing the
standard of corporate governance of the
Group. It also makes decisions on matters
such as approving the annual results, interim
and quarterly results, connected transactions,
appointment and re-appointment of
Directors, declaring dividends and adopting
accounting policies. The Board has
delegated the authority and responsibility
for implementing business strategies and
management of the daily operations of the
Group’s businesses to the management.
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*ERAREE

1.3 The Board conducts regular scheduled

meetings on a quarterly basis. Ad-hoc
meetings are convened when circumstances
require.

The Board had met five times for the Year
and considered, reviewed and approved the
Group’s annual results for the year ended 31
March 2018, quarterly and interim results of
the Group for the Year.

The attendance records of Board meetings
and general meeting held during the Year are
set out below:

13 EFESFROTHE
% ARNEREEH B
H B -

EFENAFERDE
ThRg#H  YEEE -
BEHRSERERE "
Z-N\F=A=+—RHZ
EEREMRAEEZ
FELBTHES -

UTRAFEEEE®
#MBRRAGHHFEL

Attendance of individual Directors at
Board meetings and general meeting
during the Year

AEEEZERRRASEE
BERESHHRER
No. of board No. of general
meetings meeting
attended/held attended/held
Ezg EPN -
HERE,/ HERY/
EE DS EE VS
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai fe] 15 128 5% 4 5/5 0/1
Ms. Chan Ming Mui, Silvia CES NN | 5/5 171
Mr. Zhao Kai b 5/5 "
Mr. Chan Raymond R EE 5/5 0/1
Non-executive Directors FHITEE
Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming oy = 8 55 A 5/5 11
Mr. Ho Kai Man R E 5/5 "
Independent Non-executive Directors B HTEE
Mr. So Wai Chun RERLTE 5/5 "
Mr. Fong Hoi Shing 7R 5/5 171
Mr. Yam Chung Shing EEHMLE 5/5 11
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A list of Directors and their role and function
was posted on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange.

To maximize the effectiveness of the Board
and to encourage active participation and
contribution from Board members, the
Board has established an audit committee
and a remuneration committee. Detailed
descriptions of each of these committees
are set out below. All of these committees
adopt, as far as practicable, the principles,
procedures and arrangements of the Board
in relation to the scheduling and proceeding
of meetings, notice of meetings and inclusion
of agenda items, records and availability of
minutes.

The Board has devised its specific written
terms of reference setting out its duties,
responsibilities, powers and functions which
include the following:

e developing and reviewing the
Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and making
recommendations to the Board;

e reviewing and monitoring the
training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior
management;

e taking responsibility for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of the
financial statements in accordance with
the prevailing accounting standards and
laws, approving the financial statements
and appointing and liaising with the
Group’s external auditors;

o reviewing the Company’s compliance
with the code and disclosure in the
Corporate Governance Report in its
Annual Report;
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e overseeing management in the design
implementation and monitoring of the
risk management and internal control
systems;

e liaising with all regulatory authorities
and organisations on all matters relating
to the Group, and monitoring changes
in their policies relating to and affecting
the Group; and

e  ensuring accountability towards and
sufficient communication with the
Group’s shareholders.

2.  Board Composition

2.1

2.2

As at 31 March 2019, the Board comprises
nine Directors: four executive Directors,
two non-executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors. Mr.
Ho Cheuk Ming, a non-executive Director,
is the younger brother of Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai,
the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer.
Mr. Ho Kai Man, a non-executive Director, is
the nephew of Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai, Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer of the Company
and the son of Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming, a non-
executive Director and Deputy Chairman of
the Company.

The attributes, skills and expertise among the
existing Directors are considered appropriate
so as to effectively lead, supervise and
manage the Group, taking into account the
scope and nature of the operations. The
Directors have a mix of core competencies
in areas such as accounting and finance,
business and management,
and quality control techniques, supply
chain management,

production

industry knowledge
and marketing strategies. Details of the
experience and qualifications of Directors
and Senior Management are set out in the
section headed “Senior Management Profile”
in this Annual Report.
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Board Diversity

Pursuant to Code Provision A.5.6 of the CG Code,
the Company has adopted a board diversity policy
on 14 March 2014, which sets out the purpose
and principles regarding board diversity for the
purpose of achieving the Company’s strategic
objectives of balanced diversity at the Board as
far as practicable. Directors’ appointment will be
based on merit and candidates will be considered
against measurable objectives, taking into account
the Company’s business and development.

Selection of candidates will be based on a
range of diversity criteria, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural background and
ethnicity, in addition to educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service. The ultimate decision will be
based on merit and contribution that the selected
candidates will bring to the Board.

During the Year, the Board reviewed the structure,
size and composition of the Board and was of
the opinion that the Board is well balanced and
diversified, and with the appropriate structure,
size and necessary skills, knowledge, experience
and diversity of perspectives required for the
business of the Group. The Board also reviewed
and evaluated the board diversity policy.

On 25 March 2019, the Board adopted a separate
Nomination Policy, which provides the key
selection criteria and principles of the Board in
making decisions in the appointment and re-
appointment of directors and succession planning
of directors, to emphasise our commitment on
transparent nomination process.
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4.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of
Directors

4.1

4.2

4.3

At each annual general meeting of the
Company (“AGM”), one-third of the
Directors are required to retire from office
by rotation. The Directors, since his last
election or appointment who has been the
longest in office shall retire and be eligible
for re-election at the AGM. Pursuant to the
bye-laws of the Company, the Chairman
and/or the Managing Director of the Group
shall not, when holding such office, be
subject to retirement by rotation or be taken
into account in determining the number of
Directors to retire in each year. To comply
with Code Provision A.4.2 of the CG Code,
the Chairman and/or the Managing Director
of the Group will voluntarily retire at the
AGM at least once every three years.

As at 31 March 2019, non-executive
Directors (except Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming and
Mr. Ho Kai Man) including the independent
non-executive Directors are appointed for a
fixed term not exceeding three years and all
non-executive Directors are subject to the
requirements of retirement by rotation and
re-election by Shareholders at the AGM in
accordance with the Company’s bye-laws.

The names and biographical details of the
Directors who will offer themselves for
election or re-election at the forthcoming
AGM are

Shareholders to assist Shareholders in making

set out in the circular to

an informed decision on their elections.
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4.4 Since the whole Board participates in the
appointment of new Directors, the Company
does not establish a nomination committee.
In evaluating whether an appointee is
suitable to act as a Director, the Board
will consider the board diversity policy and
Nomination Policy, the experience and skills
of the appointee; as well as personal ethics,
integrity and the willingness to commit
time in the affairs of the Group. Where the
appointee is appointed as an independent
non-executive Director, the Board will also
consider his/her independence. During the
Year, the Board had also reviewed and
made recommendations in respect of the
re-appointments of retiring Directors, which
were approved by the Shareholders at the
last AGM.

Liability Insurance for the Directors

The Company has in force appropriate insurance
coverage on directors and officers’ liabilities
arising from the group’s business. The Company
reviews the extent of insurance coverage on an
annual basis.

Directors’ Continuous Professional Development
Every newly appointed Director will be given
an induction. As part of the ongoing process
of directors’ training, the Company Secretary
continuously updates all directors on latest
developments regarding the Listing Rules and
other applicable regulatory requirements. All
Directors are encouraged to attend external
forum or training courses on relevant topics
which may count towards continuous professional
development training.

TRERHREE
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For the Year, all Directors have participated in
appropriate continuous professional development
activities either by attending training courses,
seminars, conferences and forums or by reading
materials relevant to the Group’s business and to
Directors’ duties and responsibilities. Each of them
has provided a record of training they received
for the Year to the Company. A directors’ training
course was held on 25 March 2019 concerning
the obligation of Directors to deal in shares, the
supervision of the Listed Companies and Directors

and Senior Management from the Stock Exchange

with relevant cases. The training each Director

received for the Year is summarized as below:

AEE 2REFHVEBLFE
EIIREE - g - gFNw
BRMABEASERGNEER
EELBERBEN T2 H
BEZEXERIEIES - N
FE - FNUEFRHTARQ
AR 2Bl s = —
NE=ZA-+HBEFTT—E
BEREIIRE  WTERES
BEEREEMT BMAYHLED
AAREEMSREEAEDN
EEREMERD - AFES
EEEIEIZHBENT

Attending
training
courses,

seminars,

Reading conferences
materials and forums
HE IR
maE- 28
MERAEER K w8
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai o]t 38 5 A v v
Ms. Chan Ming Mui, Silvia fR & kN v v
Mr. Zhao Kai 85 & v v
Mr. Chan Raymond fR & 3 5E A& v v
Non-executive Directors HHITESE
Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming ] AR % 4 v v
Mr. Ho Kai Man fa] B X 58 A v v
Independent Non-executive Directors BV I H{TEE
Mr. So Wai Chun EETE v v
Mr. Fong Hoi Shing 7B s v v
Mr. Yam Chung Shing EERSTE v v
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Corporate Governance and Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer

The Chairman should be responsible for ensuring
that directors receive adequate, clear, complete
and reliable information in a timely manner.

The Chairman should:

e ensure that the board works effectively and
performs its responsibilities, and that all key
and appropriate issues are discussed by it in
a timely manner;

e ensure that good corporate governance
practices and procedures are established;

e encourage directors with different views to
voice their concerns, allow sufficient time for
discussion of issues and ensure that board
decisions fairly reflect board consensus;

. ensure that appropriate steps are taken
to provide effective communication with
shareholders and that their views are
communicated to the board as a whole; and

*  promote a culture of openness and debate by
facilitating the effective contribution of non-
executive directors in particular and ensuring
constructive relations between executive and
non-executive Directors.

The Chief Executive Officer should be responsible
for managing the Group’s business including
the implementation of strategy and initiatives
with the support of executive Directors and
senior management and within those authorities
delegated by the Board.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Pursuant to Rules 3.10(1) and 3.102) of the
Listing Rules, the Company has appointed three
independent non-executive Directors and one of
them has appropriate professional qualifications
or accounting or related financial management
expertise. Pursuant to Rule 3.10A of the Listing
Rules, the number of independent non-executive
Directors of the Company represents no less than
one-third of the Board.

The Company has received from each of its
independent non-executive Directors an annual
confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Company
considers that all of the independent non-
executive Directors are independent.

Any re-election of an independent non-executive
director who has served the board for more than
nine years, his further appointment should be
subject to a separate resolution to be approved
by shareholders.

BOARD COMMITTEE

Remuneration Committee (“RC”)

1.1 The Board has established the RC in June
2005 with terms of reference, comprising
a majority of independent non-executive
Directors, which meets at least once a
year. It is chaired by Mr. So Wai Chun and
comprises two other members, namely Mr.
Ho Cheuk Ming and Mr. Yam Chung Shing.
All RC members, with the exception of Mr.
Ho Cheuk Ming (non-executive Director),
are independent non-executive Directors.
The quorum necessary for the transaction
of business by the RC is two. The terms of
reference of RC have been updated in March
2012 to comply with the new requirements
set out in the CG Code and were posted on
the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.
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The principal responsibilities of RC are:

e to formulate remuneration policy
of the Group, review and make
recommendations to the Board in
respect of the remuneration policy;

e to consider salaries paid by comparable
companies, time commitment and
responsibilities and employment
conditions elsewhere in the Group;

e to conform to any requirement,
direction, and regulation that may from
time to time be prescribed by the Board
or contained in the constitution of the
Company or imposed by the Listing
Rules or any applicable law; and

o to determine the remuneration and
incentive scheme of the executive
Directors and the senior management.
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The RC met once during the Year and 13 FHZEERNAFER
reviewed its terms of reference, the BIT—RGEDE MU
remuneration policy of the Group and the EHNAERBESRE K&
remuneration packages of Directors and B BT BN R K EE A
senior management staff. It also assessed the EREREBEZEHH T
performance of the Directors and evaluated EAHBEETNRER
the remuneration policy. The attendance AFEHMER - FE
record of the meeting of RC during the Year BEgRAFEEZ 24
is set out below: RS ERINT -

No. of

attended/held

HERE,

ERRE

Mr. So Wai Chun ERER DAL 11

(chairman of RC) (FrWNZEE & F/E)
Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming fa] & B 55 A& 1/1
Mr. Yam Chung Shing EEBEE 1/1
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR EEREREEABHTM
MANAGEMENT
The particulars regarding Directors’ remuneration WRIE E AR BB 81678 T BR
and the five highest paid employees as required FREEMe R AEES M
to be disclosed pursuant to Appendix 16 to BEZE-—FTHBHNAF
the Listing Rules are set out in Note 28 to the WA 2R B mRMGE
consolidated financial statements in this annual 28 °
report.
Pursuant to Code Provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, BECEERTA ZFREX
the remuneration of the members of the senior B15 BHE_ZT-—NF=H=
management by band for the year ended 31 T—HLE - REFMERS D
March 2019 is set out below: BREBEABFHMEI T
Number of
Remuneration bands (HK$) M A8 B (B %) persons
A
1 to 1,000,000 121,000,000 1
1,000,001 to 2,000,000 1,000,001 2,000,000 4
2. Audit Committee (“AC”) 2. BRZEER®
2.1 The AC’s membership, with the exception 21 BEZ_ZT-hAF=A=
of Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming (non-executive +T—H &ZEg %
Director), comprised the independent non- RS 4 (FEITES)
executive Directors as at 31 March 2019: INERBIIENITES
A B
Mr. So Wai Chun BMEESEE
(chairman of AC) (FEEZEETE)
Mr. Fong Hoi Shing 7B A
Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming fa] & 7 5 &
Mr. Yam Chung Shing EEBEE
The Board is of the opinion that members EFxegRR BEREZE
of the AC have sufficient accounting EXREHEERAG LA
and financial management expertise or BERHEX MBS
experience to discharge their duties. NBITRE 2B -
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The operations of the AC are regulated
by its terms of reference. The terms of
reference have been updated in April 2016
to comply with the new requirements set
out in the Revised Code. The updated terms
of reference of the Audit Committee were
posted on the websites of the Company and
the Stock Exchange. The main duties of the
AC include:

* to review and supervise the Group’s
financial reporting process including
the review of quarterly, interim and
annual results of the Group;

e to review the external auditors’
appointment, remuneration and any
matters relating to resignation or
termination;

e to examine the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control which involves
regular review in various corporate
structures and business process;

e to realize corporate objective and
strategy by taking into account the
potential risk and the nature of
its urgency in order to ensure the
effectiveness of the Group’s business
operations. The scope of such reviews
includes finance, operations, regulatory
compliance, internal control systems
and risk management; and

e to discuss the risk management
and internal control systems
with management to ensure that
management has performed its duties
to have effective systems.
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1.1

1.2

2.3 The AC met two times during the Year and
reviewed the interim results of the Group
for the six months ended 30 September
2018 and the annual results of the Group
for the year ended 31 March 2018. The
AC had also reviewed the Group’s financial
reporting system, internal control system,
risk management system and associated
procedures to ensure their adequacy and
effectiveness. The Company Secretary of
the Company keeps all minutes of the AC.
The attendance record of the meeting of AC
during the Year is set out below:

23 BREEBERAFERIT
MAgH TEMNTEE
HE_FT—)\FNA=T
BIEARE AT HESE
rEE-_ZT-NF=ZA=
T—HIEFEHNEZFE
E o BREZEENEHNT
AEENHBEREHE
ED P E R R B
BERAMMBEENEF
NERE TS MME K
M- BREZEQZHR
HRLBALANAF
MEFE BBZRZLZE®
RAFEEFE L E L
LUNNE

No. of
attended/held
HERE
BERRY
Mr. So Wai Chun BEELE 2/2
(chairman of AC) (FEREEETE)
Mr. Fong Hoi Shing 7B A 2/2
Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming fa] £ AR 55 4 2/2
Mr. Yam Chung Shing EERSEE 2/2
C. SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS C. EFETEFRS
The Company has adopted a Code for Securities 11 ARFERAAEBEFTET
Transactions by Directors of the Group (the BARXSGHREF(RRIER
“Company’s Model Code”) on terms no less E<TRD - RERIE T B
exacting than the required standard set out MBI 10T E LT ARIE S
in Model Code for Securities Transactions by HEITRFRHHIZESTRI (1R
Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model Code”) EFRI D ZIERER ©
contained in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules.
Having made specific enquiries to all Directors, 12 RAX2RESFIFLARENR

they have confirmed that they had complied
with the required standards set out in both the
Company’s Model Code and the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 March 2019.
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D. ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
1.  Financial Reporting

1.1

1.2

1.3

The Board acknowledges its responsibility
for preparing the Group’s accounts which
gives a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Company and of the Group
on a going concern basis, with supporting
assumption or qualification as necessary.
In preparing the accounts for the Year, the
Directors have selected suitable accounting
policies and applied them consistently, made
judgments and estimates that are prudent
and reasonable.

The management provides explanation and
information to the Board as to enable the
Board to make informed assessments of the
financial and other information put before
the Board for approval.

The Board endeavours to ensure the making
of balanced, and understandable
assessments of the Group’s position and

clear

prospects and extending the coverage

of such information to include annual

and interim reports, price-sensitive
announcements and financial disclosures as
required under the Listing Rules, reports to
regulators as well as any information that is
required to be disclosed pursuant to statutory

requirements.
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Internal Controls

The Board is responsible for the Group’s system
of internal controls and is committed to managing
business risks and maintaining sound and
effective internal control systems to safeguard the
Shareholders” investment and the Group’s assets.

During the Year, the Internal Audit Department
under the supervision of the Board and the Audit
Committee, has reviewed and reported on the
adequacy of effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group,
covering financial, operational, compliance and
risk management control functions annually. Based
on the results of the review, the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems are still
effective and adequate.

The Board adopted the risk management
policy and three-year internal risk management
audit plan, including structure and system of
risk management of the Group. Internal Audit
Department together with the Audit Committee
will review the adequacy of the effectiveness of
the risk management at least once a year.

The Board’s annual review had considered the
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes, budget of the
Company’s accounting and financial reporting
function.

The internal control system is designed to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance of no
material misstatement or loss and to manage
instead of eliminating risks of failure in operational
systems and achievement of the Group’s
objectives.
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The Internal Audit Department performs regular
audit reviews and report of the risk and key
controls of the Group to the Board and the
Audit Committee. The responsible Department
Heads will be notified of the control deficiencies
noted for rectification. For the Year, the Internal
Audit Department conducted audit over financial
instruments management, IT strategy management,
businesses and customer concentration
management, marching towards Real Estate
Business and other items with high risk index. The
audit results have been presented to the senior
management, the Audit Committee and the Board.

For the purpose of handling and disseminating
inside information pursuant to Rules 13.09 and
13.10 of the Listing Rules and Part XIVA of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of
the Laws of Hong Kong), the Group has taken
various procedures and measures, including
arousing the awareness to preserve confidentiality
of inside information within the Group, signing of
confidentiality agreement, sending blackout period
and securities dealing restrictions notifications to
the Directors and relevant employees regularly,
disseminating information to specified persons
on a need-to-know basis and observing the
“Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information”
issued by the Securities and Futures Commission
in June 2012 stringently.
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3. Risk Management 3. ERER

Risk Management System — EREERSK

The Company established an enterprise
risk management system for ensuring the
appropriate control and governance on the
principal risks that are exposed to the Group,
which includes:

e specifying the concept of risk
management, and determining the
scope of risk management.

e specifying the risk reporting process
and establishing risk governance
framework to identify and assess the
possible impact on the Group.

e establishing risk governance control
points for establishing relevant
countermeasures against the main
control matters involving risks.

e establishing monitoring plan in terms
of priority, conducting monitoring and
review twice a year.

Risk Management Framework

The Board is playing the role as an overseer,
and the Audit Committee is responsible for
risk governance, report the effectiveness of
the risk system of the Group to the Board
and the actual risk executor is the person
in charge of each department. The Board
assigns the representative of Executive
Committee the responsibility of being in
charge of implementing the risk measures.
The internal audit department of the Group
will conduct an independent annual review
on the risk management system of the
Group according to the audit plan on risk
management, and submit the report to the
Board.
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Risk Identification

The Group identifies risk through a mixture
of top-down and bottom-up approaches,
thereby conducting analysis and appraisal
on risk, and identifying the source, type and
index of risk.

For top-down approach, the representatives
of Executive Committee and Risk
Management Department have to conduct
risk identification once every two vyears
through questionnaires, and once every three
years by way of workshop.

For bottom-up approach, the person-in-
charge of the risk will collect the risks from
each department, complete the risk register
under the assistance of risk executor, and
submit to risk management department or
report to respective management personnel.

Risk Assessment

The risk is classified into two levels, namely
intrinsic risk and residual risk. The risk
assessment calculates the risk index on
these two levels according to the established
methods in respect of the possible impact of
each risk on the Group. It controls the sum
of all risk indices on residual risk within the
risk limit pre-set by the Group through taking
control action and mitigation measures.
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V. Risk Handling

The sum of risk indices shall at no time
exceed the cap of risk preference of the
Group. The control measures shall be taken
to conduct risk governance on any risk with
high risk index in a timely manner. The
governance aims at reducing the possibility
of occurrence or mitigating the impact of risk
(and may not be fully eliminated). Each of the
proposed risk management/countermeasure
is assigned to a person in charge with
estimated date of completion, so as to enable
the person in charge of risk easier to monitor
the process of management to ensure risk
countermeasures are come into force.

Auditors’ remuneration

During the Year, the fees paid to KPMG, the
Group’s external auditor HK$3,260,000 for audit
services of the Group and for non-audit related
services approximately HK$400,000, representing
mainly taxation services and other non-audit
service fees.

E. COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

1.

The Company strives to convey to Shareholders
pertinent information in a clear, detailed, timely
manner and on a regular basis and to take into
consideration their views and inputs, and to
address the Shareholders’ concerned. Their views
are communicated to the Board comprehensively.
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The Company adopted a Shareholders’
Communication Policy and will review it on
a regular basis to ensure its effectiveness.
The purpose of this policy is to ensure the
Shareholders are provided with prompt and
equal access to information about the Company
(including but not limited to its financial
performance, corporate goals and strategies,
significant developments, corporate governance
and risk exposure), in order to enable the
Shareholders to assess the Company’s overall
performance, exercise their rights in an informed
manner and engage actively with the Company.

The Company communicates with the
Shareholders through the publication of annual
reports, interim reports, circulars, results
announcements and releases. All communications
to Shareholders are also available on the
Company’s website at www.karrie.com.

We had provided sufficient notice for Shareholders
on all general meetings. The AGM provides a
useful platform for Shareholders to exchange
views with the Board. The Chairman of the Board
and the Board members will make an effort to
attend to answer Shareholders’ questions. External
auditor is also available at the annual general
meeting to address shareholders’ queries about the
conduct of the audit.

Separate resolutions are proposed at general
meetings on each substantially separate issue,
including the election of individual Directors.

All votes of the Shareholders at a general meeting
must be taken by poll according to the Listing
Rules. The chairman of the meeting will therefore
demand a poll for every resolution put to the vote
of the AGM pursuant to bye-law 66 of the Bye-
laws.
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*ERAREE

i

F.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

1.

Results announcement

The Board recognizes that effective communication
with investors is the key to establish investor
confidence and to attract new investors.

As from January 2009, the Company had
discontinued its practice of adopting quarterly
results announcement. Annual reports and
interim reports are prepared and issued to
all Shareholders within the prescribed period
stipulated by the Listing Rules. All
announcements and reports are posted on the
Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s

website. The Company can still provide the

results

Shareholders and investors with an adequate
degree of transparency and information of the
financial position of the Company.

Media and analysts briefings

Press release for media are held on the same day
immediately after the interim and annual results
announced. Briefings for media and analysts by
way of presentation at luncheons, receptions or
telephone conferences are organized thereafter.
During the briefing, the Group’s management
provides an in-depth analysis of the Group’s
performances in respect of the relevant periods
and ensures that the financial performance and
accounts of the Group are well understood.
There is also ample opportunity for the analysts
and media to ask questions and interact with the
executive Directors and senior management.

Tea-Break with individual investors

Since the first quarter of 2004/05, the Group
has been arranging tea-break with individual
investors to build up an interactive and direct
communication channel. This allows individual
investors talking to the management of the Group.
Meanwhile, the Group would give an update
about the status of the Group’s development and
share of their feelings toward the Group. Last year,
a tea-break was held on 25 August 2018.
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Website

The Group
information such as awards received, and the
latest news of the Group’s developments on its
Company’s website. The public are welcome to

regularly releases corporate

give their comments and make their enquiries
through the Company’s website, the management
will give their prompt response.

G. SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHT

1.

Procedures for Shareholders to convene a
Special General Meeting

Pursuant to Section 74 of the Bermuda Companies
Act, members holding at the date of deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid
up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company shall
at all times have the right, by written requisition
to the Board or the Secretary of the Company,
to require a special general meeting to be called
by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition; and such meeting
shall be held within two months after the deposit
of such requisition. If within twenty-one days of
such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene
such meeting the requisitionists, or any of them
representing more than one half of the voting
rights of all of them, may themselves convene a
meeting, but any meeting so convened shall not
be held after the expiration of three months from
the date of deposit of the requisition.

Procedures for which enquiries may be put to
the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries
to the Board in writing at the Company’s head
office and principal place of business or the
Company’s website.
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3.  Procedures for putting forward proposals by 3. BREABRRASLRERR
shareholders at the shareholders’ meeting ZREF
Pursuant to Section 79 of the Bermuda Companies BIEBHEZEIBIFEATEET9
Act 1981, shareholders representing not less than - heRRREKRERT
one-twentieth of the total voting rights of all PR+ 2 —HRERHAD

BC—E%HX?R?TWZIK”\?% i
FRATEEFWHRELER

shareholders; or not less than 100 shareholders
may make requisition in writing to the head office

and principal place of business of the Company: 2F

(@ to give to shareholders of the Company @ MARABEWET—/E
entitled to receive notice of the next annual BRBFRGREZK
general meeting notice of any resolution REARZAREG LEM
which may properly be moved and is %J__E_ﬁibéi&%ﬁ@%
intended to be moved at that meeting; and ZRBE:

(b) to circulate to shareholders entitled to have (b) MAEREEZEXTARE
notice of any general meeting sent to them REgBEZRRERNT

any statement of not more than 1,000 words HBi@1,000F 2 Rt =
with respect to the matter referred to in any Xii‘l]ﬁ/\ﬁﬁﬁAJ:?E =
proposed resolution or the business to be ZRFBEMMEE A
dealt with at that meeting. BRI 2 EIH o

Any enquires or suggestions by Shareholders can e PR ANE B EZE - AT
be sent in writing to the Board or the Company BMARRIENMERE N FEE?
WHTEFEHRRWENRE

of business or email to the Company. WEARRQF o

Secretary at our head office and principal place

H. COMPANY SECRETARY H. 2AR®E
The Company Secretary is an employee of the RAMERARAIEE  HAKE
Company and has day-to-day knowledge of the Group’s WEEEBEMABRLHHESTS
affairs and assists the Board in functionary effectively. BEREE - 2RBEFHBB AR
All Directors also have access to the advice and WMEREREZRERE - £
NRAMECLER  EETID
R+R/NEEREREI -

services of the Company Secretary. During the Year, the
Company Secretary has confirmed that he has taken no
less than 15 hours of relevant professional training.

l. CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Year, there is no change in the Company’s

constitutional documents.
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DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. HO Cheuk Fai, aged 73, was appointed as a Director
of the Company in October 1996 and is the Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer of the Company as well as the
founder of the Group. He is also the director of certain
subsidiaries of the Group. Prior to founding the Group in
1980, Mr. Ho had over 10 years’ experience in factory
management and in
manufacturing plastic, metal and electronic products. He is
responsible for the Group’s overall corporate strategies and

running operations specialised in

objectives. He is also a director of New Sense Enterprises
Limited and Honford Investments Limited, a corporate
substantial shareholder of the Company, and the brother of
Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming, who is a non-executive Director and
Deputy Chairman, the husband of Ms. Ho Po Chu, who is a
member of management team and the uncle of Mr. Ho Kai
Man, a non-executive Director of the Company.

The solid business knowledge and working experience
gained by Mr. Ho throughout the years are recognized by
the academic. He was awarded with fellow membership of
the Asian Knowledge Management Association in September
2003 and Honorary Fellowship by Canadian Chartered
Institute of Business Administration and Honorary Doctorate
in Management by Lincoln University in April 2007.
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Mr. Ho was appointed as member of the 10th Guangdong
Provincial Committee of Political Consultative Conference
in January 2008 and was reappointed as a member of
11th Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference,
Dongguan City, Guangdong Province in January 2007. He
was also awarded as the Honorable Citizen of Dongguan
City and Honorable Citizen of Yixing City. He was also the
Honorary Vice-Chairman of Hang Seng Management College
— Foundation and the Honorary Director of Hong Kong
CPPCC (Provincial) Members Association Foundation. Mr.
Ho currently participates in affairs of different social and
commercial associations, which include Former Guangdong
Province CPPCC Members Association, Overseas Friendship
Association of Dongguan, Former Dongguan City CPPCC
Members Association, The Association of the Hong Kong
Members of Dongguan’s (Hong Kong & Macau) CPPCC,
Guangdong Overseas Chinese Enterprises Association, Hong
Kong Metals Manufacturers Association, World Dongguan
Entrepreneurs, China Association of Enterprises with Foreign
Investment, Dongguan City Association of Enterprises with
Foreign Investment, Dongguan City Fenggang Association
of Enterprises with Foreign Investment, Federation of Hong
Kong Guangdong Community Organisations, Hong Kong
Fenggang (Dongguan) Natives Association Limited, The Hong
Kong Chinese Importers’ & Exporter’s Association, Dongguan
Foundation for the Disabled and Dongguan City Fenggang

Industrial Development Association (3R 5= 1 [Bl i 2 3£ 3% B

RS

Ms. CHAN Ming Mui, Silvia, aged 47, was appointed as an
executive Director in November 2010, and is the General
Manager — Human Resources and Administration of the
Group and responsible for the overall operation of human
resources, administration and IT department of the Group.
Ms. Chan is one of the members of the Executive Committee
and Internal Audit Committee of the Group. She is also
the director of certain subsidiaries of the Group. Ms. Chan
graduated from The City University of Hong Kong majoring
in Public Administration and Management. She joined
the Group in 1996 and has over 20 years’ experience in
administration and management.
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Mr. ZHAO Kai, aged 44, was appointed as a Director of
the Company in November 2012. He has been appointed
as the General Manager and the Convener of Executive
Committee in Manufacturing Sector of the Group with effect
from 1 April 2013, responsible for overall manufacturing
management and operation of the Group. Mr. Zhao
graduated from Xihua University (formerly known as Sichuan
Institute of Technology) in the PRC with a Bachelor Degree in
Foundry Engineering. He had 15 years’ experience in metal
plastic,c mould engineering and project management and
more than 10 years’ experience in production management
and operation. Mr. Zhao joined the Group in December
2011.

Mr. CHAN Raymond, aged 52, was appointed as an
executive Director in June 2016. He is also the Marketing
Executive General Manager and a member of the Executive
Committee of the Group, responsible for the Group’s
marketing and business development. He is also the director
of certain subsidiaries of the Group. He joined the Group
in 1985 and has over 25 years’ experience in sales and
marketing.

Non-executive Directors

Mr. HO Cheuk Ming, aged 65, was re-designated as a non-
executive Director and Deputy Chairman of the Company
with effect from 1 May 2011. He is also the director of
certain subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Ho was appointed as
an executive Director of the Company from October 1996
to 31 May 2007, and was a Deputy Chairman and Chief
Operation Officer as well as the Convener of the Executive
Committee of the Group. He was re-designated as a non-
executive Director of the Company with effect from 1 June
2007. He is responsible for the overall supervision of the
Group’s operation business. He joined the Group in 1980
and has over 20 years’ experience in factory production. He
is also the brother of Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai, who is one of the
executive Directors, the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company, the brother-in-law of Ms. Ho Po
Chu, who is a member of the senior management team
and father of Mr. Ho Kai Man (one of the non-executive
directors).

HElkE  W+Es  RZE——F+—
REZARARAES  FHRZE—=
FHOA-—BEZERAEEREFEHEK
BRATEZESEEEA BESERE
¥ BBEENERE -HAERFAF
BIEEXNS(FIBPEN)I| TESZR) &
ETRREELEN -FHEATHAFHS
BB CIHETITENBEEELR TR
ERTHFIMAEEEEREELE -
EERZE——F+ZAMNMALRER -

MBXEE A+t-m RZT—XREF
NAEZERATES  BEBTARASE
EMSHTEAKERNTEZEESRE -
BEEEMBEBEE BITALRKEHE
ETHBRRIZES - BN —NN\RF
MALREE  HEB_THAFHEET
GRS -

FHITES
AERHEE NTEAR R-T——F
TA—BEAEASRARERNTESRR
BIER - BARAAEEETHEARZ
EF -WMAEEBR-NANAARFTAE-ZF
TLtFRAA=T—RHERARRNT
EF URAKEBEIEREERIN
HWITREBEAREA - BRR-_ZEZTLER
A-—BEEFETRIERTEFT -KES
AEBBBEHEFEE - BR—AN
TEMAXRKE  BEB_THFIRE
EXBER - BRAMEELELE(KARZ
HITEFEKEBZ— » EFERITEAE)Z
FMERKE(RARAISREEAEHE
B B)Z PR RAIRXEE(RRAZ
FHTEERBEZIZRXE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19 & ¥k

65



66

Senior Management Profile

EREBABZEAESR

Mr. HO Kai Man, aged 38, was appointed as an executive
Director from 12 July 2012 to 31 October 2012 and was
re-designated as a non-executive Director in November
2012. He joined the Group in November 2005. He
has been appointed as the Assistant General Manager,
Corporate Planning and Executive Committee member and
is responsible for handling internal and external business
and political contact, establishing of communication
platform, promoting energy-saving, environment protection
and cleaner production etc and maintaining the Group’s
sustainability. He is also the director of certain subsidiaries
of the Group. Mr. Ho graduated from Auckland University of
Technology majoring in Computer Science. He had engaged
in the works of various departments of the Group so that he
has familiarized himself with the business operation of the
Group. He is the nephew of Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai, Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer of the Company and is the son
of Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming, a non-executive director & deputy

chairman of the Company.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. SO Wai Chun, aged 70, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company in
July 2001. Mr. So has been doing business in Hong Kong
and the People’s Republic of China for over 20 years. His
businesses are mainly specialized in financial services and
international trading. In 2000, Mr. So was appointed as
the China Representative of Forestry New Zealand Limited,
which is a subsidiary of Evergreen Forestry Limited listed in
New Zealand.

Mr. FONG Hoi Shing, aged 55, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director in December 2004.
He has extensive experience in accounting, finance and
management. He holds a master degree in professional
a postgraduate diploma in corporate
administration and a higher diploma in accountancy from
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He is an associate

accounting,

member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and an Associate of The Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators.
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Senior Management Profile

Mr. YAM Chung Shing, aged 59, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company in
November 2015,
City Association of Enterprises with Foreign Investment,
the Honorable Citizen of Dongguan, Standing Committee

is an Honorable President of Dongguan

of Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference,
Dongguan City and an Executive Vice President and
Secretary of Association of the Hong Kong Members of
Dongguan’s (Hong Kong & Macau) Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference Committee. He has invested and
developed several projects. He has extensive experience in
business management and project investment.

MANAGEMENT

Ms. HO Po Chu, aged 70, is the Director of Administration of
the Group. She is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Group. Ms. Ho is one of the founding members of the Group
in 1980. She is mainly responsible for supervising human
resources and overall administration of the Group. She is also
the wife of Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai, who is one of the executive
Directors, the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of
the Company, and sister-in-law of Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming, who
is a non-executive Director and Deputy Chairman.

Mr. CHOI Wai Hin, Henry, aged 39, joined the Group in
August 2014 and has been appointed as the Chief Financial
Officer responsible for overseeing the Group’s finance,
accounting and investor relations functions. He is also a
member of the Executive Committee of the Group. Mr. Choi
graduated from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a
bachelor degree in accountancy. He is a Fellow of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Prior to joining
the Group, he worked in KPMG for more than ten years. He
has extensive experience in auditing, accounting, financial
management and has been involved in a number of initial
public offering transactions and capital market transactions.

Mr. LO Wai Kit, aged 49,
Marketing of the Group and a member of the Executive
Committee of the Group, responsible for the Group’s
business development and product management. Mr. Lo

is the General Manager —

graduated from The Hong Kong Baptist University with a
Bachelor of Arts (Honors) in Sociology. Prior to joining the
Group in 2001, he had over 15 years’ experience in Sales
& Marketing.
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Mr. CHAN Wabh Ying, aged 54, is the General Manager —
System Integration and a member of the Executive Committee
of the Group. Mr. Chan graduated from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic (now known as The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University) with a higher certificate in Manufacturing
Engineering. Prior to joining the Group in 1992, Mr. Chan
had over 13 years’ experience in quality management in an
electronic manufacturing company.

Mr. HO Man Chung, Philip, aged 62, the General Manager
of Dongguan Karrie Properties Development Company
Limited (R ZAIFHERZTAERAF) a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, is responsible for the
coordination and planning of real estate business for the
Group. Mr. Ho joined the Group in 2011. He had engaged
in service business for more than 15 years and has over
20 years’ experience in project planning, operation and
management of hotel and property development. He
possesses expertise in various projects development and
management, especially in property development project.
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The Board has the pleasure of presenting the report together
with the audited financial statements of the Group for the
Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The Company is an investment holding company. The Group
is principally engaged in

— Metal and Plastic Business (“M&P”): manufacturing and
sale of metal and plastic products, including server
casings, moulds, plastic and metal parts and household
products;

—  Electronic Manufacturing Services Business (“EMS”):
manufacturing and sale of magnetic tape data storage,
point-of-sale (“POS”) system,
products and other computer peripherals; and

office automation

— Real Estate Business: urban renewal, real estate project
investment, property leasing and development.

Further discussion and analysis of the Group’s activities as
required by Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622 of the Laws of Hong Kong), including a discussion
of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group,
an indication of likely future developments in the Group’s
business and an analysis using financial key performance
indicators, can be found in Chairman’s Statement on pages
12 to 36, in Report of the Directors in pages 69 to 100 and
Financial Highlights on pages 9 to 11 of this Annual Report.

A discussion on the Group’s compliance with the relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
Group is contained in Corporate Governance Report on
pages 37 to 62 of this Annual Report.

The Group’s turnover by principal product business segment
and geographical locations for the Year are set out in Note 5
to the consolidated financial statements of this annual report.
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DIVIDENDS

The Board has recommended to pay a final dividend of
HK5.0 cents per share (2017/18 final dividend: HK4.75 cents
per share), to shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company on 30 August 2019.
Together with the interim dividend of HK3.0 cents per share
(2017/18 interim dividend: HK1.6 cents per share and special
dividend of HK2.55 cents per share), total dividend paid/
payable for this year amounted to HK8.0 cents per share
(2017/18: HK8.9 cents per share). The final dividend will be
subject to the approval of the shareholders of the Company
at the forthcoming annual general meeting (the “AGM”) of
the Company to be held on 23 August 2019.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

Details of the Group’s results for the Year are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss on pages 116 to 117
of this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment
of the Group and of the Company during the Year are set
out in Note 7 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in
Note 19 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Movements in reserves of the Group and the Company
during the Year are set out in Note 21 to the consolidated
financial statements.

For the year ended 31 March 2019, the Company’s reserves
of approximately HK$409,134,000 mainly representing the
contributed surplus and retained earnings were available for
distribution to the Company’s shareholders.

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during
the Year amounted to HK$820,000.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

Due to the fact that the share price of the Company is unable
to fully reflect its intrinsic value, the Company repurchased
4,112,000 Shares on the Stock Exchange during the Year at
an aggregate consideration paid of HK$4,399,940 and these
Shares were subsequently cancelled by the Company. Details
of these transactions are as follows:
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April 2018 1,066,000 1.16 1.12 1,214,920
—Z-)\FNA

May 2018 630,000 1.20 1.15 736,220
—ZF—-)\%4A

June 2018 130,000 1.18 1.16 151,180
—ZE-\FRA

July 2018 318,000 1.17 1.15 368,620
—ZT-N\F+tAH

September 2018 830,000 1.03 1.00 845,060
—ZE-N\FNA

October 2018 1,138,000 1.00 0.91 1,083,940
—E-)\F+AH

4,112,000 4,399,940

Save as disclosed above, the Company has not redeemed any
of its shares during the year. Neither the Company nor any of
its subsidiaries has purchased or sold any of the Company’s
shares during the Year.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group has realized the importance of good utilization
of resources long time ago and not to exploit the rights of
using resources for the next generation. The Group adheres
to the concept of Chairman Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai, with heartfelt
dedication in all details, and saves resources for the next
generation. As such, the Group’s production adheres to the
concept of reducing energy or material consumption from the
sources with the adoption of various environmental friendly
measures and addition of energy-saving equipment. With the
concept of green and cleaner production implemented in
practice, the Group continues to formulate policies for green
production and energy-saving policies, while introducing
different kinds of environmental friendly equipment to attain
the objectives of cleaner production and environmental
protection and to comply with relevant environmental
regulations. It is of paramount importance to have effective
communication and understanding between the Group and
its stakeholders including shareholders, partners, employees,
suppliers, regulators and the public in coming up with
benchmarks and regarding key issues.

In according with Rule 13.91 and the Environmental, Social
and Governance Report Guide contained in Appendix 27
of the Listing Rules, the Company’s Sustainability Report
will be available on the Company’s website and the Stock
Exchange’s website within three months from the publication
of this annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with
regulatory requirements and the risk of noncompliance
with such requirements. The Group has been implementing
systems and allocating staff resources to ensure ongoing
compliance with rules and regulations.

The Group’s operations are mainly carried out by the
Company’s subsidiaries in Hong Kong and the mainland
China while the Company itself was incorporated in Bermuda
and its shares are listed on the Main Board of the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange. Our establishment and operations
accordingly shall comply with relevant laws and regulations
in Hong Kong, Bermuda and the PRC. The Group had
complied all relevant laws and regulations.
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RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS

The Group ensures all staff are reasonable remunerated and
it regularly reviews and improves its policies on remuneration
and benefits, training, occupational health and safety.

The Group maintains good relationship with its customers.
A customer complaint handling mechanism is in place
to receive,
recommendations on remedies with the aim of improving
service quality.

analyse and study complaints and make

The Group is in good relationship with its suppliers and
conducts a fair and strict appraisal of its suppliers.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group adopts an integrated top-down and bottom-up
approach in identifying risks and thereby conducts risk
analysis and assessment to identify the sources, categories
and indicators of risks. The followings are the key part of
the risks and uncertainties identified by the Group:

(1) Finance:
The Group’s investment in financial instruments are
subject to various risks (such as market risks) and it may
result in losses and affect the cash flow of the Group.

In managing the respective risks, the Group formulated
the following counter-measures for the corresponding
principal risks:

e all financial instrument contracts are subject to
discussion by senior management, and submit for
approval by the board of Directors;

e financial instrument contracts that are purchased
through banks are subject to the account
authorized signatory designated by the Group
before becoming valid;
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strengthen the training on senior management on
risk control and knowledge regarding investment
management through the internal and external
resources of the Group; and

develop assessment mechanism for financial
derivatives, and conduct risk assessment by
qualified persons;

(2) Operation:

(i)

(if)

High concentration of businesses and clients
The customers of the Group are mainly
in global

corporations. The Group may be unable to attract

concentrated leading technology
new customers if no new product has been
developed. The concentration of customers and/
or the concentration of geographical location that
exceeds an acceptable level may increase the
business risk and may reduce the market share of
the Group. The Group may also be exposed to
the risk of significant reduction in profit in case
a few important clients are lost.

IT Strategy

Owing to the complications of the business
process of the Group, more time is needed for
testing for the customized reform of the system.
Lack of sufficient and effective testing on the new
IT system may lead to a failure in coordinating
with the operation process of the Group, and thus
affect its operation effectiveness. The IT system
may not be able to update timely and effectively
to adapt to the changes of the operation process
of the Group.
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The Group has already adopted the following
corresponding measures to mitigate operational
risks:

(i) High concentration of businesses and clients:

e develop new clients through multi-
channel and optimize designs, as well
as develop new products; and

° expand to other sectors (such as
real estate industry) for business
diversification of the Group and
broaden the income stream.

(ii) IT Strategy
e the Group engaged a professional
consulting company at the preliminary
stage of system development and
upgrading, and had formulated a
detailed scheme; and

e  Before and after the upgrading and

during the whole process, the IT
targeted
training of every related department,
collected and handled problems found
during the actual operating process

department focused on

one after another, and at the same
time, feedback the problems to the
consulting company in solving them
systematically.
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(3) Risk of the Real Estate Business:

The central government has implemented certain
macro-economic control measures in the real estate
market in the PRC to curb the price hike in certain
cities. These measures, such as purchase restriction,
price restriction and credit control, has put downward
pressure on the real estate market in the PRC and may
have an impact on the revenue of Karrie’s new Real
Estate Business.

To mitigate the risk of the new business, the Group has
adopted the following initiatives in response:

e To better handle the opportunities and challenges
posed by policy changes, the Group has
established a professional team to maintain close
communication with the relevant authorities and
thoroughly study policy trends so as to adopt a
more flexible approach to sales in response to
such changes;

e To reduce costs, deliver quality properties at lower
costs and compete effectively in the market, the
professional management team closely monitors
the quality, progress, safety and materials of the
development projects;

*  The macro-economic control measures will foster
long-term development of the real estate market
and prevent any crash. On the other hand, most
of the Group’s projects are “Old Town, Old
Factory and Old Village Redevelopment” projects
adjacent to Shenzhen in the Greater Bay Area
with relatively low land costs. As such, the Group
will launch its real estate projects in a confident
manner in the stable PRC economic environment.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME
A share option scheme was adopted on 24 August 2012 (the
“Share Option Scheme”). Details of the Share Option Scheme
are summarized as below:

(i) (@ The Share Option Scheme is a share incentive
scheme and is established to recognise and
acknowledge the contributions which the eligible
participants have made or will make to the Group
or invested entity.

(b) The Share Option Scheme will provide the
eligible participants with an opportunity to have
a personal stake in the Company with a view to
motivating the eligible participants to utilise their
performance and efficiency for the benefit of
the Group or invested entity; and attracting and
retaining or otherwise maintaining an ongoing
relationship with the eligible participants whose
contributions are or will be beneficial to the long
term growth of the Group or invested entity.

(i) The Board may at its discretion grant options to:

(@) any director (whether executive, non-executive or
independent non-executive director), employee
(whether full time or part time employee),
consultant, customer, supplier, agent, partner, joint
venture partner or advisers of or contractor to the
Group or invested entity; and

(b) any discretionary trust whose discretionary
objects include any director (whether executive,
non-executive or independent non-executive
director), employee (whether full time or part time
employee), consultant, customer, supplier, agent,
partner, joint venture partner or adviser of or
contractor to the Group or invested entity.
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(iii)

(vi)

The total number of Shares that may be issued by the
Company if all options granted under the Share Option
Scheme have been exercised is 33,920,000, which
represents approximately 1.70% of the existing issued
share capital of the Company as at the date of this
annual report.

The overall limit on the number of Shares which may
be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes for the
time being of the Company shall not, in aggregate,
exceed such number of Shares equaling to 30% of the
Shares in issue from time to time. No option may be
granted under the Share Option Scheme or any other
share option scheme of the Company if it will result in
the above-mentioned 30% limit being exceeded.

The total number of Shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option scheme of
the Company must not, in aggregate, exceed 10% of
the Shares in issue as at the date of approval of the
Share Option Scheme by the Shareholders (the “Scheme
Mandate Limit”), unless Shareholders’ approval has
been obtained. Options lapsed in accordance with the
terms of the Share Option Scheme or any other share
option scheme of the Company will not be counted for
the purpose of calculating the Scheme Mandate Limit.

(@ Unless approved by Shareholders in a general
meeting, no option may be granted to any eligible
participant which, if exercised in full, would result
in the total number of Shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of all options already granted
or to be granted to such eligible participant
(including exercised, cancelled and outstanding
options) in the 12-month period up to and
including the date of such new grant exceeding
1% of the Shares in issue as at the date of such
new grant.
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Any grant of options to a director, chief executive
or substantial shareholder of the Company or its
subsidiaries or any of their respective associates
under the Share Option Scheme must be subject
to the prior approval of the independent non-
executive Directors (excluding any independent
non-executive Director who is a grantee of the
relevant options).

Where any grant of options to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive
director of the Company or any of their respective
associates would result in the Shares issued
and to be issued upon exercise of all options
already granted and to be granted (including
options exercised, cancelled and outstanding) to
such person in the 12-month period up to and

including the date of such grant:

(1) representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the
Shares in issue, and

(2) having an aggregate value, based on the
closing price of the Shares at the date of
each grant, in excess of HK$5,000,000.

then such further grant must be subject to the
approval by Shareholders at a general meeting
taken on a poll.

(vii) The period within which the options must be exercised

(viii)

will be specified by the Company at the time of grant,

but shall expire no later than 10 years from the relevant

date of grant.

At the time of grant of the options, the Company may
specify any minimum period(s) for which an option

must be held before it can be exercised. The Share

Option Scheme does not contain any such minimum

period.
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(ix)

(xi)

At the time of the grant of the options, the Company
may specify any performance target(s) which must
be achieved before the options can be exercised.
The Share Option Scheme does not contain any
performance targets.

A non-refundable remittance of HK$10 by way of
consideration for the grant of an option is to be paid
by each grantee upon acceptance of the opinion.

Subject to adjustments made in a situation
contemplated under the Share Option Scheme, the
subscription price in respect of any option shall be at
the discretion of the Board, provided that it shall not

be less than the highest of:

(@  the closing price of a Share as shown in the daily
quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange on the
date of grant (which must be a business day) in
respect of such option;

(b) the average of the closing prices of the Shares as
shown in the daily quotations sheet of the Stock
Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the relevant date of grant in respect of
such option; and

(c) the nominal value of a Share.
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(xii) Details of share option movements during the Year (xii) RIFEREEINAFE 2 ERE

under the Share Option Scheme are as follows: HEEHIFWT
Numnber
Number Number Number  of options Number
of options of options  of options lapsed/ of options
Exercise Closing Price Price at  outstanding granted  exercised  cancelled  outstanding
Price per hefore date ~exercise date ~at T April  during the  during the  during the at 31 March
Name Date of Grant Share  Exercise Period of grant  of options 2018 year year year 2019
Z2-N\F “R-nE
RERE RERE DA-B RAEE  REEE  WAEE ZA=1-A
BR RiRAz  fiEAZ  HARE  ERTE kR XWEH HATRER
f#e RiLAH EEs EH B i BREZE REHE KREE BREHE R%E
(HKS) (HKS) (HK) (000) (000) (000) ('000) (000)
(B7) (E7) (£7) (&) &) &) &) &3]
(i) Directors/Chief Executives
EERRATHAR
Mr. Zhao Kai 11/08/2014 0419 01/08/2015- 0420 - 2,500 - - - 2,500
#iLE 100812024
11/08/2014 0419 01/08/2017- 0420 - 5,000 - - - 5,000
10/08/2024
Ms. Chan Ming Mui, Silvia 2711012016 070 01/07.2017- 0.69 - - - - - -
Ram) il 26/1012026
2711012016 070 01/0712018- 0.69 - 1,500 - - - 1,500
26/1012026
2711012016 070 010712019~ 0.69 - 2,000 - - - 2,000
26/1012026
Mr. Chan Raymond 2711012016 070 010712017~ 0.69 - 500 - - - 500
REXEE 26/102026
2711012016 070 01/0772018- 0.69 - 1,500 - - - 1,500
26/1072026
2711012016 070 01072019~ 0.69 - 2,000 - - - 2,000
26/1012026
Mr. Yam Chung Shing 2711012016 070 01/0712017- 0.69 110 150 - (150) - -
FEHLE 2611012026
2711012016 070 01/07/2018- 0.69 1.10 150 - (150) - -
26/1012026
2711012016 070 010712019~ 0.69 - 200 - - - 200
26/1072026
(ii) Other Elighle Participants
Eadhsa%
Employees 11/08/2014 0419 01/08/2015- 0420 - 4,000 - - - 4,000
28 10/08/2024
11/08/2014 0419 01/08/2017- 0420 - 4,000 - - - 4,000
10/08/2024
2711012016 070 01/07.2017- 0.69 114 2,640 - (50) (70) 2,520
26/1012026
2711012016 070 01/0772018- 0.69 114 4110 - (1,040 (150) 2920
26/1072026
271012016 070 01072019~ 0.69 - 5480 - - (200) 5,280
26/1012026

* Weighted Average hl#& ¥ 15 #&
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A professional actuarial firm has been engaged in the
year of 2014/15 and 2016/17 to perform a valuation
of the share options granted under the share option
scheme.

According to the Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standard 2 (“HKFRS2”), the fair value of the share
option on the date grant should be amortised in profit
or loss as expenses over the period from the date of
grant until they are exercisable by the grantee. The
expense required to be reported for share options
granted from 1 April 2014 to 31 March 2020 would be
estimated as follows:

2014/15 2015/16 2016/17
(Actual) (Actual) (Actual)
2014/15 2015/16 2016/17

(BER) (BER) (ER)

REBERESS > —HEXRGHEER
APRR-_ZT—N,/ —HFER"
E—R/ L FEERBIEAR
Al EAHEEE -

BESBSVBEREENE_F(H
B REER2]) - BRENR T
HHEMAFEENREENEZDHR
(AR EBZER ATITERE
BeiE) - BT R BRRP R -
RN _ZT—NFENA—HE_-T
—EFZAZ+—HREERE
FTEAR HEFHOT:

Financial Year
BHEE
2017/18 2018/19 2019/20
(Actual) (Actual) (Estimated) Total
2017/18 2018/19 2019/20
(BER) (BER)

(&3 )

P&L expenses 184 IR 52t
(HK$'000) (F&m) 1,267 1,020 2,561
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I/Zl\$ %*?DB@ZEEQ%HX*E
Tﬂf BATR®R k=18 1&
=

Employee share option expenses charged to the
consolidated profit or loss are determined with the

g
EﬂEEHﬁE

trinomial model valuation model based on the following
assumptions:

(=) RZZE-—HFNA+—BERY

(1) The share options were granted on 11 August

2014 R P
Date of valuation 11 August 2014 418 A & —T-NF
NA+—H
Date of grant 11 August 2014 A A —ZT—-F
NA+—H
Option value HK$0.176 — RAXEEE 0.17678 JT.—
HK$0.194 0.194/8 7T
Market price at date of grant HK$0.405 REEBEZ 0.4057 7T
i EE
Exercisable price HK$0.419 1T1E(E 0.4197 7T
Risk-free interest rate 1.97% o 3 B ) 3 1.97%
Life of options 10 years P AE T
BHFEH
Expected Volatility 52.84% & HA R 52.84%
(120 months) (12018 A)
Expected Dividend yield 2.47% FEHERAR R 2.47%
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(2)

The share options were granted on 27 October
2016:

Date of valuation 27 October
2016

Date of grant 27 October
2016

Option value HK$0.239 -
HK$0.271

Market price at date of grant HK$0.70
Exercisable price HK$0.70
Risk-free interest rate 1.00%
Life of options 10 years
Expected Volatility 51.27%

(120 months)

Expected Dividend yield 5.00%

Note: The vesting of the share options is subject to the
performance of the Group.

There are several relevant measures that may be
considered to assess the financial impact of the
share option schemes, including the expense of
share-based transactions under generally accepted
financial reporting standards (e.g.,, HKFRS 2).
The expense of the share-based transactions
is attributed over the period from the original
transaction date (i.e., grant date) to the date when
the recipient’s entitlement to the payment has
been fully realized (i.e., vested).
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2 B R A

5B B 5 —E— N

+A=++H

4 BE —E— N

+A=++H

R EEE 0.2397% 7T —

0.2717% 7T

RIFEEHEZ 0.707% 7T
migEE

TE(E 0.707 7T,

= 7 b | = 1.00%

% +F
B WFH

T8 B % 1R 51.27%
(1201& A)

TEH B IR iR B 5.00%
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The expected volatility is based on the historic
volatility, adjusted for any expected changes
to future volatility based on publicly available
information. Change in the subjective input
assumptions could materially affect the fair value
estimate.

The result of the trinomial model can be materially
affected by changes in these assumptions so an
option’s actual value may differ from the estimated
fair value of the options due to limitations of the
trinomial model.

In assessing the value of the share options granted
during the Year and the expense of share-based
transactions under HKFRS 2 requirement, the
trinomial option pricing model has been used.
The trinomial model is one of the generally most
accepted methods used to calculate the value of
options and expense of share-based transactions.

The parameters of the trinomial model include
the risk free rate, dividend vyield, exit rate and
trigger price multiple. The risk free rate has made
reference to the yield of exchange fund notes as at
the grant date. The dividend yield makes reference
to the dividend history and it is assumed that the
grantee will exercise the option in accordance
with their sub-optimal exercise policy.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws and there was no restriction against
such rights under the laws of Bermuda.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation
available to the Shareholders by reason of their holding of
the shares in the Company.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages
296 to 297 of this annual report.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the Year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company’s Bye-law provides that the Directors shall
be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against
any actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses
as a result of any act or failure to act in carrying out their
functions.

The Company has arranged directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance cover in respect of legal action against the
Directors during the year.

SUBSIDIARIES
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are
set out in Note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.

BANK BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank borrowings of the Group as at 31 March
2019 are set out in Note 23 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The Directors who held office during the Year and up to the
date of this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai (Chairman & Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Chan Ming Mui, Silvia

Mr. Zhao Kai

Mr. Chan Raymond

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming (Deputy Chairman)
Mr. Ho Kai Man

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. So Wai Chun

Mr. Fong Hoi Shing

Mr. Yam Chung Shing

Mr. Yam Chung Shing entered into an appointment letter
with the Company for a term of one year with effect from 1
November 2018; Mr. So Wai Chun, and Mr. Fong Hoi Shing
entered into an appointment letter with the Company for a
term of half year with effect from 1 July 2019 and 7 June
2019 respectively subject to extension by mutual agreement
and retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual
general meeting of the Company as and when required under
the Bye-laws.

In accordance with Article 87 of the Company’s Bye-laws
and paragraph A.4.2. of the Corporate Governance Code as
set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. Mr. So Wai Chun,
Mr. Fong Hoi Shing and Mr. Yam Chung Shing will retire
from office by rotation at the forthcoming annual general
meeting. All such Directors, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election
at the forthcoming AGM has a service contract with the
Company which is not terminable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

On 1 August 2016, Massive Era Limited (“Massive Era”) (a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) entered into the
cooperation agreement with Kar Info International Property
Limited (“Kar Info”), REMRMBEKERBRAT (the
“Project Company”) and Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai in relation to the
PRC Development Project to be developed by the Project
Company (the “Cooperation Agreement”).

Pursuant to the Cooperation Agreement, Massive Era will
invest HK$140,000,000 in consideration of being entitled to
a 50% of the profit to be earned from the PRC development
project upon the completion of the PRC development
project and expiry of the term of the cooperation. The
PRC development project will develop a piece of land in
Fenggang, Dongguan, with an area of approximately 32,000
square meters, into a residential project with a floor area of
over 60,000 square meters.

As Massive Era is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company
and as Kar Info is a wholly owned subsidiary of a company
controlled by Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai, a controlling shareholder
and executive Director (Chairman of the Board and the Chief
Executive Officer) of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, no transactions, arrangements
or contracts of significance to which any of the Group
companies was a party and in which a Director was
materially interested, either directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the Year or at any time during the Year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTION

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group did not
enter into any connected transaction or continuing connected
transaction that are not exempted from annual reporting
requirement under the Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’ S INTERESTS IN EENBETHABZROES
SHARES
As at 31 March 2019 R-E-NF=HA=+—H

The interests and short positions of the Directors and the $@ﬁ%%$&%%ﬁﬁ/\\§&$@ﬂ&
chief executive of the Company in the shares and the TEE@*\HH@‘?%(%%%%(Eﬁ%&ﬁﬂ%ﬂl%%}
underlying shares of the Company and any associated ({3 ﬂ%W'J%J)%XVﬁB)E’UHﬁjﬁ&{E BA R
corporations (as defined in Part XV of the Securities and Tﬁ‘:wﬁﬁﬂ"]jf&;ﬁ\&%% ez K
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)) (a) as recorded in the register 5%7%\(3)‘@ T)§<<§;§3ff1'% W}ﬁﬁﬂ% g\fﬁ
required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO; or (b) as ﬁ%%iﬁfﬁa%—% ; EJZ(b)\1RT)§<<Lﬁ@
otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange )% S 3 {758 5 52 5 #0 12 2 <7 A1) (R
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to ZE?YEUM);@%LKQET REBMERXHHN
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of BRAR (BT - AT

Listed Companies (the “Model Code”) were as follows:

(A) Interests in the Company () REQATFZER
Number of ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
SREEETZEERMA
Corporate/
Personal Family Other % of issued
interests interests interests Total interests share capital
HEEERES
BA%E ZEEZE RtEx - AF#EE RBRESH
Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai [/E@EE 278,712,000 110,350,000 1,077,608,000 1,466,670,000 73.63
(Note 1) (Note 1) (Note 2)
(M &) (M &E—) (M=)
Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming fo] =B 5 A 11,400,000 — 817,608,000 829,008,000 41.62
(Note 3) (Note 2)
(ME=) (M=)
Ms. Chan Ming Mui, Silvia Ff% /) 6,000,000 — — 6,000,000 0.30
(Note 4)
(B &£ D)
Mr. Zhao Kai HEl kA 12,300,000 — — 12,300,000 0.62
(Note 5)
GBS
Mr. Chan Raymond BRI EE 5,000,000 — — 5,000,000 0.25
(Note 6)
(&%)
Mr. Yam Chung Shing EEHLE 500,000 — — 500,000 0.03
(Note 7)
(ML)
Mr. Fong Hoi Shing BRIk 4,000 - — 4,000 0.00
Ms. Ho Po Chu fEXLZL 110,350,000 538,712,000 817,608,000 1,466,670,000 73.63
(Note 8) (Note 8) (Note 2)

(WEN) (HEN) (=)
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Notes:

Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai’s personal interest consists of
278,712,000 ordinary shares of the Company. He is
deemed to be interested in 110,350,000 Shares held by
his spouse, Ms. Ho Po Chu, as beneficial owner.

The 1,077,608,000 Shares comprised (i) 487,608,000
Shares held by New Sense Enterprises Limited (“New
Sense”); and (ii) 330,000,000 Shares held by Castfast
Properties Development Co., Limited (“Castfast
Properties”), 87% of the issued share capital of which
is beneficially owned by Honford Investments Limited
(“Honford Investments”). New Sense and Honford
Investments are each wholly-owned by TMF (BVI) Limited
(“TMF”) as trustee for a discretionary trust, The Ho Family
Trust, and (iii) 260,000,000 Shares held by The Wedding
City Co., Limited (“The Wedding City”), 90% and 10%
of the issued share capital of which is beneficially owned
by Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai and Ms. Ho Po Chu, respectively.
Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai is deemed to be interested in the
817,608,000 Shares in (i) and (ii) as founder of The Ho
Family Trust and in 260,000,000 Shares in (iii) through
The Wedding City. Ms. Ho Po Chu and Mr. Ho Cheuk
Ming are the discretionary objects of The Ho Family Trust
and are thus deemed to be interested in the 817,608,000
Shares held under The Ho Family Trust. Therefore, the
interests of Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai, Ms. Ho Po Chu and Mr.
Ho Cheuk Ming in the 817,608,000 Shares duplicate with
each other.

The personal interests of Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming comprise
11,400,000 Shares.

The personal interests of Ms. Chan Ming Mui, Silvia
comprise 2,500,000 Shares and 3,500,000 outstanding
share options.

The personal interests of Mr. Zhao Kai comprise
4,800,000 Shares and 7,500,000 outstanding share
options.

The personal interests of Mr. Chan Raymond comprise
1,000,000 Shares and 4,000,000 outstanding share
options.

The personal interests of Mr. Yam Chung Shing comprise
300,000 Shares and 200,000 outstanding share options.

The personal interests of Ms. Ho Po Chu comprise
110,350,000 Shares. Ms. Ho Po Chu is also deemed
to be interested in (a) 278,712,000 Shares held and
260,000,000 Shares deemed to be held by her spouse,
Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai, and (b) 817,608,000 Shares duplicate

with each other as referred to Note 2 above.
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B &
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fAilEBEEtE 2B AERZ BB
278,712,000 R ARG AR A5 ©
MEBEERR AR EEREBM
ERRTERERREARTEZ
110,350,000 0% f& 15 ©

1,077,608,000/% &% 7 & 1 (i)
New Sense Enterprises Limited
(INew Sense]) %/ 2487,608,000
R ) mBFEHERRES
RArR(ZEBEERENDFFZ
330,000,0008% fg 17 + E 2 #17 %
K Z2.87% 73 i Honford Investments
Limited ([Honford Investments]) &
%= ¥ B > New Sense X Honford
Investments B TMF (BVI) Limited
(ITMF)) £ & & # 1§ 5t The Ho
Family TrustZ XFEA 2 EHA K
(iNVIEYHER AR (LW ])#F
A 2260,000,0000% & 15 - H 317
fi% 7K 2 90% K2 10% 73 31| £ 0] 12 128 4
ERMEGRLTEDZES - 2
& 55 HE 1 & The Ho Family TrustZ
BISZA - R AR ZE817,608,000
% A% 19 = 8 B () M (i) K (i) 18 40 3
2.260,000,0000% % 19 2 #E &= ° fa
Bk L+ R E RS E AThe Ho
Family TrustZ 2 Xz A 8K
7 The Ho Family Trust#§ 5 2
817,608,0000% f% 0 B #E z ©
Bt e ELE - B LT R
HH%ERZ5 817,608,000 8% A% 1D
ZHETHEHES -

fal &2 B9 % £ Z @ A K %M
11,400,000 % % {7 48 A%, °

FeR 2 IR/ MB 2 (& ABE 25 F3 2,500,000
A% P& 17 K2.3,500,000 1% 7 17 1F 2 B&
A& AE4E K o

i 8l ot & 2 @ A %= F14,800,000
% B% 19 K2 7,500,000 18 AR 1715 2 BB A%
REAB AR o

B 5% S P 2 Bl ARE 25 FR 1,000,000
% A% 19 24,000,000 % & 17 f# 2 88
Fi%; 4 48 pX ©

1 5 3k %t & 2 & A B % 300,000
% A% {5 52 200,0001% 7 17 5 = B& A%
AR K o

il 8 % &2 £ 2@ A# %A
110,350,0000% % 17 48 AX o fa] &
RLZtTHEBRAEFEQ EREBM
ERECEREZBBEAEEL
278,712,0004% A% 15 260,000,000
A% B ¢ 2 (0)817,608,000 A% A% 7 2
M R BNERRZ LT (WM E
“Fr)ER R

= Bl
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(2) REBEE 2 RBERKR

(B) Interests and short positions in associated corporations

()  Karrie Industrial Company Limited (“KICL") i) EFNERBERAATENERD
Number of non-voting deferred shares
BRERELRHOHUE
Corporate/ % of issued % of issued
Personal Family Other Total share Short share
interests interests interests  interests capital  Positions capital
EERE
BAEZ ZEEZ HttEz -SHEE FRAsK HE BREIHL
Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai 43,000 43,000 43,000 43,000 85.98% 43,000 85.98%
s (Note ) (Note 1) (Note 2 (Note 1) (Note 2)
(WeE—) (HE-) (ME=)  (WE—  (WED)
Ms. Ho Po Chu 7,000 7,000 7,000 7,000 13.99% 7,000 13.99%
fEkz+ (Note 1) (Note 1) (Note ) (Note ) (Note 2)
(ME—  (WE-) (ME=)  (WE— (WED)
(i) Karpo Technologies Limited (“KTL") (i) ZENBRERLATRERELD
Number of non-voting deferred shares
BRERELZRORE
Corporate/ % of issued % of issued
Personal Family Other Total share Short share
interests interests interests  interests capital  Positions capital
EEERY
BARZ ZEBEZ HtEx SR BRI #®E BREIHL
Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000  9990% 10,000  99.90%
s (Note ) (Note 1) (Note 3 (Note ) (Note 3)
(ME—  (WE-) (WeE=)  (WE—)  (WE=)
(iii) Karrie Properties Management Limited (i) ZENEHEEEERLQE(F
(“KPML") AEE]
Number of non-voting deferred shares
BREBRELEROHUE
Corporate/ % of issued % of issued
Personal Family Other Total share Short share
interests interests interests interests capital  Positions capital
BARE XEEZ Ht#Exz SH#EE FRaEsk ®E BRAEDHL
Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai 1 1 1 1 8.33% 1 8.33%
B (Note 1) (Note 1) (Note 4)  (Note 1) (Note 4)
(ME—  (WE-) (aEm)  (WeE—)  (ED)
Ms. Ho Po Chu 1 1 1 1 8.33% 1 8.33%
fERZ L (Note 1) (Note 1) (Note 4 (Note ) (Note 4)
(ME—) (WE-) (MaEm) (- (FEm)
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Notes:

1. Karrie International (B.V.l.) Limited (“KIBVI”), a direct
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, has been
granted options to acquire from Mr. Ho Cheuk
Fai and Ms. Ho Po Chu their non-voting deferred
shares in each of KICL, KTL and KPML. Accordingly,
KIBVI is taken to be interested in these non-voting
deferred shares in respect of which Mr. Ho Cheuk
Fai and Ms. Ho Po Chu have each created short
positions. In addition, by virtue of (i) their interests
in the Company; and (ii) the interests as referred to
in Notes 1, 2 and 8 under the section headed “(A)
Interests in the Company” above, Mr. Ho Cheuk
Fai and Ms. Ho Po Chu are each deemed to be
interested in the long positions that KIBVI has in
these non-voting deferred shares. Such interests are
duplicated with their personal interests in these
nonvoting deferred shares.

2. The entire issued share capital of KICL comprises
50,000 non-voting deferred shares and 10 ordinary
shares.

3. The entire issued share capital of KTL comprises
10,000 non-voting deferred shares and 10 ordinary
shares.

4. The entire issued share capital of KPML comprises 2
non-voting deferred shares and 10 ordinary shares.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors and the
chief executive of the Company had any interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company and any associated corporations which were
(@) recorded in the register required to be kept under Section
352 of the SFO; or (b) otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies.
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B &

— +  Karrie International (B.V.l.)
Limited ([KIBVL)) » " A &) Z
BEE2EWBAR  EET
52 BE HE R B ) B S AR AN
EULINENER =B
MEREFNEEMFENE
STEREELTERG o BRI
oA MM E R T E
FIRTREEMNSEELEES
B2 %A KIBVIEIFAZE
EINERRERDZES -
BE BAOKREHSBELALF
AR R )R LA [(FR) R
AprlzigEs | zlaE— =
R N o]t 5 A AN fa] 2
KZTFBHR BRKIBVIRA
ZEERERBELERMDFE
BIETR AR - 25
HBEFMARZEERZE
BB DHERES -

—C ENMNERKREBETRMDH
50,000% < & 1% Z # i &
% 2 R 100% 2 & 38 R A% 15 78
ﬁ °

= RERMBEBEBRTRMMH
10,0000% 2~ #& % 5= #& IE i&
% 17 R 100% 2 & 38 B i% 15 48
;ﬁ o

N =MEEREEETROB2EY
EIGE R E R D RI0/% 2
LB MDA -

BREXFEEN ARARBZEERES
TN B3 8 B A AR F) o AE fa) 4 B
EEE D HERDMESETAE
@ MORR - MxF R AR @REGE
FRB) 352G AT w1 2 B e fit A ac
5E RO KBEGFRESTRDBANARF
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

As at 31 March 2019, Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai and Ms. Ho Po
Chu were interested in certain companies established in the
PRC (the “Competing Companies”) which are or are likely
to, directly or indirectly, compete with the business of the
Group. Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai and Ms. Ho Po Chu are also
the directors of these Competing Companies. Details of the
interests of Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai and Ms. Ho Po Chu in the
Competing Companies are as follows:

Date and place of
establishment

Name of Competing Company

REMLAREW

Principal business

IERHK

Report of the Directors

ESEHE

EENBREEzER

RZZE—AF=ZA=+—H fEEL
ERAERL TR EMPNFRBEKL Z
NEH AL AR EE BB E R
BEHRF2AR(HRFURADEEEZ -
fAlEBrtENPER LN AELRS
MRRICES - MEBEEE RAEKRK
THRZEBFHRB ZERFBOT:

Shareholdings
RE

Dongguan Castfast Door and
Window Products Co., Ltd.
(‘Dongguan Castfast”)

RESEMERRERAR
(RERE])

Yixing Yongtai Electronic
Technology Co. Ltd.
("Yixing Yongtai")

HERXREFHRBRAT
(ME&X%))

RETEABEMERER
RAl(RERAR])

RETEABERERER
RE(REEAE)

AR AB R
2 August 2001,
the PRC
“EE-%\AzA"
HE

25 March 2008,
the PRC

—23/F=A=tEA

T
7 September 2000,
the PRC

“EETEAALE
HE

Property investment and provision

Castfast Properties: 95%

of property management and
consultancy services in the PRC

RPEETHERERRENEER

LEEL v

Property development in the PRC

REEME 5%

Castfast Properties: 75%
Dongguan Karrie Resort
Limited: 25%

RPEETNERE BEFHE: 5%
REBMNERKBAERRAR : 25%

Property investment and development, ~ Kar Info Property Limited: 100%
manufacturing and sales of
computer related electronic

devices

NEREREE LERHEERE BREGEE)EZERAR:100%

BETHA

As at 31 March 2019, Dongguan Castfast had developed
a residential and commercial property project located at
Dongguan, the PRC with a site area of approximately 48,600
sg.m. and a total gross floor area of approximately 233,700
sq.m.

As at 31 March 2019, Yixing Yongtai had developed a
commercial property project located in Yixing, Jiangsu, the
PRC. This project occupied a site area of approximately
107,340 sq.m. and comprised offices, staff quarters and
canteens.

R-ZE-—NE=ZA=+—"H R=x=E
ERE-—BURNFPRREREZEERER
YIEIEE - ({HHETEL) R 48,600 F 5K -
f 48 1 [ m 48 Bl 4 &233,700F 750K ©

R-ZE—NAF=ZR=+—H8  BEKE
ERE-—EUNTBRIIHETE AR
YIFIEE - % BB EE L A107,340
EHRARK THEFE BIBFEREE
TR o
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As at 31 March 2019, 5E 5538 cooperates with Massive RZZT—NF=ZA=+—H RZEHZ
Era Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company to i EiMassive Era Limited (A2 F 2 2 &

develop a residential property project located in Dongguan,
the PRC. This project occupied a site area of approximately
32,000 sg.m. with a total gross floor area of approximately
61,000 sg.m.

The power to make material business decisions for the Group
is vested in the Board. Whenever the Board considers that
there may be a conflict of interest between the Group and
any Director, such Director will be required to abstain from
voting. Therefore, the Board is capable of carrying on the
Group’s business independently of, and at arm’s length, from
the business of Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai and Ms. Ho Po Chu.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2019

The interests or short positions of the persons (other than a
Director or Chief Executive of the Company) in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of
the SFO are as follows:

WEBRAR)AEER—BRUMNPHERE:
FEWE  (HHEELA32,000F 5K
A2 R2 T E F&E 40 561,000 F 5K o

AEBEZEABAERENZTESS
Ewml EEFEARAURLRAE
FEAEEENRERE  ZR2EEH
EMERE At EFSEEBULN
RAFRAEETE RAERLTHE
BmEERNEE 2 X5 ©

EFERR

R-ZE-N&E=A=+—H

ATALT T EBREELRARRZ&ESIT
BAB)RARBIR G RAARER O P HE
RIBARR B ARCEF GO FE33616F
BBz m AR

Number of ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each

BREEIBTIZEBEREA
Personal Corporate/ Shareholding
Name of Shareholders interests Other interests percentage
EEESEN
BRERE [EPN: £ H it #E 5 KRES K
New Sense 487,608,000 — 24.48%

(Note 1 Ffi5E—)

Castfast Properties 3z 18 = i) B 330,000,000 — 16.57%
(Note 2 FfizE )
The Wedding City & #) 3 260,000,000 — 13.05%
(Note 3 MizE=)
Honford Investments — 330,000,000 16.57%
(Note 2 BF&FEZ)
TMF — 817,608,000 41.05%

(Note 4 FffzEPY)
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Note:

Save

The entire issued share capital of New Sense was owned by
TMF as trustee for The Ho Family Trust.

87% of the issued share capital of Castfast Properties is
beneficially owned by Honford Investments. The entire issued
share capital of Honford Investments was owned by TMF as
trustee for a discretionary trust, The Ho Family Trust. The
interests of Honford Investments duplicate with those of the
Castfast Properties.

260,000,000 Shares were beneficially held by The Wedding City.
90% and 10% of the issued share capital of which is beneficially
owned by Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai and Ms. Ho Po Chu, respectively.
The interests of The Wedding City therefore duplicate with
those of Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai referred to in Note 2 to the section
“Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests in Shares — (A)
Interests in the Company” above.

TMF is deemed to be interested in these Shares held by New
Sense, Castfast Properties and Honford Investments by virtue of
acting as the trustee for The Ho Family Trust.

as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2019, no

person, other than the Directors and chief executives of
the Company, whose interests are set out in the section

“Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests in Shares” above,
had an interest or short position in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company that was required to be recorded in
the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the

SFO.
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B &

—  New SenseZ & # B & 1TIRATIHTMF A
{E 7K The Ho Family Trustff & °

T ZRBREHMEDEITRAZ87%IIMHE
Honford Investments® # # & ° Honford
Investments 2 % & B E 1TAX AN T R TMFE
AEE{Z7EThe Ho Family TrustZ 255 A
¥ o Honford InvestmentsZ #£ 23 £ 52 18
EHhEZEZES -

15 4035 B 25 3 5 260,000,000 I  E
DEEITAR AR 2.90% K 10% 5> B i {a] 1 18 4
AREBHRLETERESR - W BY
W REZHEABWEELERAEIES
FEEITBRABZBROEZ —(F)RAK
NAIZES | — STtz EREE

S5
25 o
=

M TMF# AR & LAThe Ho Family Trustz %
LA BB New Sense * RIEFE I E K
Honford Investments P71 5 A% {0 /0 % /& #&
ﬁT;\L °

BREXNEERESTRABRIEER
REITHRABZROERS |PHWESN - R
“E-NF=ZA=t—H ALEALHE
BARRR]Z B An R AR B A A 2 #E 28 30&
BMZERERIAREFTRECEFK

FI)HE336(F BT RTF 2B ML
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UPDATES ON DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION UNDER RULE R FTHRBEIF1351BMIEEHZES

13.51B(1) OF THE LISTING RULES

EREH

Change of information of the Directors, which is required to 1R # £ #1 A 2 13.51B) KA TH E 2
be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules ZEFE&E K ZEHFH I AT :

are set out below:

Name of Directors

EEaA

Detail of Changes
BEFE

Ms. Chan Ming Mui, Silvia

R SR/ 4

Mr. Zhao Kai

ikl

Mr. Ho Kai Man

RS e

Mr. Chan Raymond

RE X et

Mr. So Wai Chun

BEEELE

Mr. Fong Hoi Shing

apioR s

Mr. Yam Chung Shing

TEREE

annual salary increased from HK$842,496 to HK$866,496 (excluding
discretionary bonus) with effect from 1 July 2018

F % 842,496/ JT 1 1 £866,4968 (T RIEBEMELL) =T
—N\FEtH—BEXK

annual salary increased from HK$1,179,456 to HK$1,213,510
(excluding discretionary bonus) with effect from 1 August 2018

F 1,179,456 L IB N 21,213,510 T (N BIERELL) A=
T-N\FENA—BEXK

annual salary increased from HK$438,000 to HK$452,400 (excluding
discretionary bonus) with effect from 1 July 2018

F 7 Fh438,00078 L 18 I1 £452,4008 L (T EEREIEL) B=F
—N\FEtHA—BEXK

annual salary increased from HK$984,000 to HK$1,008,000
(excluding discretionary bonus) with effect from 1 July 2018

F % F1984,0007%8 7T 3% A1 21,008,000 7T (M B IEMEE4L) - B =
TE-NFELHA—BARXK

annual salary increased from HK$100,000 to HK$120,000 (excluding
discretionary bonus) with effect from 1 October 2018

% % B3100,0007% 7T 3 1 £120,0008 T (M EEWEEL)  B=F
—N\F+A—BEK

annual salary increased from HK$100,000 to HK$120,000 (excluding
discretionary bonus) with effect from 1 October 2018

4 % F1100,00078 7T 38 1N 2120,000/8 T (MR EREEL) =%
—NF+HA—BERK

annual salary increased from HK$100,000 to HK$120,000 (excluding
discretionary bonus) with effect from 1 October 2018

F % B5100,0007% 7T 3 1 £120,0008 T (T EIEMEEL) BE=F
—N\FTA—BEXK
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DISCLOSURES PURSUANT TO RULE 13.21 OF THE
LISTING RULES

(M

On 20 December 2016, Castfast Industrial (Yan Tien)
Limited (a subsidiary of the Company) as borrower
and the Company and Karrie International (B.V.I)
Limited (a subsidiary of the Company) as guarantors
entered into a facility agreement with Hang Seng Bank
Limited, whereby the bank agreed to make available
to the above borrower a term loan facility up to
HK$240,000,000 for a term of 48 months from the date
of such facility agreement.

The above facility agreement imposes, inter alia,
conditions that each of the above borrower and
the guarantors shall ensure and procure that (i) Mr.
Ho Cheuk Fai and his associates together have and
will maintain not less than 65% direct or indirect
shareholding in the Company; and (i) Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai
and his associates will not create or permit to subsist (or
agree to create) any security over any of their shares in

the Company without the bank’s prior written consent.

On 23 March 2017, Dongguan Karrie Properties
Development Company Limited (3 5¢ 5z 8l 5 #b &
B AR (@ subsidiary of the Company) as
borrower and the Company, Castfast Industrial (Yan
Tien) Limited and Karrie International (B.V.l.) Limited
(@ subsidiary of the Company) as guarantors entered
into a facility agreement with Hang Seng Bank (China)
Limited, whereby the bank agreed to make available
to the above borrower a term loan facility up to
RMB270,000,000 for a term of 48 months from the
date of first draw down.

The above facility agreement imposes, inter alia,
conditions that each of the above borrower and
the guarantors shall ensure and procure that (i) Mr.
Ho Cheuk Fai and his associates together have and
will maintain not less than 65% direct or indirect
shareholding in the Company; and (i) Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai
and his associates will not create or permit to subsist (or
agree to create) any security over any of their shares in
the Company without the bank’s prior written consent.

Report of the Directors
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BELTHIEB2IGEHZEE

(M

RZZ—RE+=-A=+H XQF
ZHBAREEEBEBRASHKE
RARI(EREBRA)  AAaE kA
‘A7) 2 M B A ] Karrie International
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RITER ARG LB E B - Kt
ZIRTRARM EMER T RERS
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+EA o

FAtEE B AR (AR EE)K
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R L) R E 4 M B8 A
BRAMKBHEFHETLORARAHN
65% B & 3k 8] & IR + e (ii) fr] k= 1
FEREBEABISEREZIR
TEEAEMRENBRTREER
RRm) 2z B 8 R AT A B s e 5F
HEHE(RAEER) -

RZE—+tF=ZA=-+=H &R
Al MB AR R EREF i =M%
ERAFIMERERA)  ARFI R
ARRIZMBRARIEEZEEZRR
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A RIT(FE) BR AT LB E
& BURBRTREREMERA
R#t;&%E AR270,000,0007T2
THERRE  BEXRERBER
BN+ @EA -

i@ EmERIR - (R ek ik
& BT RIER AR BE
R R AR L () R B e A e BB A
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ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19 & ¥k

97



98

Report of the Directors
ESEHS

On 12 November 2018, Karwin Engineering Company
Limited and Karrie Technologies Company Limited
(each of which is a subsidiary of the Company) as
borrowers and the Company as guarantor entered into a
facility agreement with The Bank of East Asia, Limited,
whereby the bank agreed to make available to the
above borrowers a term loan facility in an aggregate
amount of HK$150,000,000 for a term of three years
from the date of such facility agreement. The facility
will be used to refinance the above borrowers’ existing
indebtedness and to finance the corporate funding
requirements of the Group.

The above facility agreement imposes, inter alia,
conditions that each of the above borrowers and the
Company shall ensure that (i) Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai shall
be and remain the chairman of the Company; and (ii)
Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai, Ms. Ho Po Chu, Mr. Ho Cheuk
Ming and/or The Ho’s family shall beneficially own in
aggregate more than 50% of the issued share capital
of the Company.

On 18 March 2019, Karwin Engineering Company
Limited (a subsidiary of the Company) as borrower
(the “Borrower”) and the Company and a number of
its subsidiaries, namely, Castfast Industrial (Yan Tien)
Limited, Hong Kong Hung Hing Metal Manufacturing
Company Limited, Karrie Industrial Company Limited,
Karrie Technologies Company Limited and Dongguan
Feng Gang Castfast Metal & Plastics Company Limited
(RxBEE=zE2RB A 28R AF]) as guarantors (the
“Guarantors”) entered into a facility letter (the “Facility
Letter”) with Hang Seng Bank Limited (the “Bank”),
whereby the Bank agreed to make available to the
Borrower a term loan facility up to HK$250,000,000 for
a term of four years from the date of first drawdown.

The Facility Letter imposes, inter alia, the Borrower shall
undertake and ensure that Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai shall not
pledge the Company’s shares without the Bank’s prior
written consent.

As at the date of this Annual Report, the above specific

performance obligations by the controlling shareholders of

the Company continue to subsist.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year ended
31 March 2019 attributable to the Group’s major suppliers
and customers are as follows:

Purchases
The largest supplier 48%
Five largest suppliers combined 70%
Sales
The largest customer 39%
Five largest customers combined 84%

None of the Directors, their associates, or any shareholders
(which, to the knowledge of the Directors, owned more than
5% of the Company’s share capital) had a beneficial interest
in the Group’s major suppliers or customers noted above.

DIVIDEND AND CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS
Assuming that the final dividend is approved by the
shareholders of the Company at the AGM, for the purposes
of ascertaining the entitlement to the final dividend, the
register of members of the Company will be closed from
Thursday, 29 August 2019 to Friday, 30 August 2019 (both
dates inclusive) during which period no transfer of Shares
will be registered. In order to qualify for the final dividend,
all properly completed transfer forms accompanied by
the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office in
Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than
4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 28 August 2019. It is expected
that the final dividend will be payable and issued to those
entitled on or around Wednesday, 18 September 2019.
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Report of the Directors
ESEHS

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING AND CLOSURE OF
REGISTER OF MEMBERS

To ascertain the entitlement to attend and vote at the AGM
to be held on 23 August 2019, the register of members
of the Company will be closed from Monday, 19 August
2019 to Friday, 23 August 2019 (both dates inclusive) during
which period no transfer of Shares will be registered. In
order to qualify to attend and vote at the AGM, all properly
completed transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch share
registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, Shops 1712-1716,
17th  Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 16
August 2019.

PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this annual report, based on public
information available to the Company and to the best
knowledge of the Directors, the Company maintained
sufficient public float, being 25% of the issued share capital
of the Company as required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITORS

The financial statements have been audited by Messrs. KPMG
who shall retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment.

A resolution for their re-appointment as auditors of the
Company will be proposed at the AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Ho Cheuk Fai
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 June 2019
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Independent Auditor’s Report

KPMG

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Karrie International Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Karrie International Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and
its subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out on pages 114 to 295,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 March 2019, the consolidated statement of
profit or loss, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement
for the year then ended and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position
of the Group as at 31 March 2019 and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with
the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(“the Code”) together with any ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial
statements in Bermuda, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BYZHMERE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

BEZFSTER

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional FRBFFEEIIBREBEEF 2 FHHE -
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the WAV ARNHGEEMBRRZBETRR/E
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These Z2%FIH - WEFFHEAE S ETEE
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the #EMBEMENLHAEE RRKHETRIE
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming EZ T HELEHEHEER 2 ER -
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters.

Timing of revenue recognition in metal and plastic and TEBRBREFEERIEB VAR

electronic manufacturing services businesses

o B

Refer to note 26 to the consolidated financial statements and £ [ 47 & 81 7% # 2 K1 i 26 & {1 i 2(y).2

the accounting policy note 2(y).

The key audit matter
BEZFSNER

BB -

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EEZENNNREEZER

Revenue from sales of the Group’s metal
and plastic products and electronic products
accounted for over 90 percent of the Group’s
revenue for the year ended 31 March 2019.
It is recognised when the goods are delivered
to the customer’s designated location which is
considered to be the point in time when the
Group transfers the control over goods to the
customers.
EEREHE-_T - NF=A=+THILFEH
EReREBERIETER WAL BERA
BRADZNT  HRAEERMEXERFETE
ZiH - NESEREREVNIBEERREPK
FE R o

The Group’s sales contracts with customers,
which principally comprise large-sized
international technology corporations, have a
variety of terms and conditions. Such terms may
affect the timing of the recognition of sales to
those customers. The Group evaluates the terms
of each sales contract in order to determine the
appropriate timing of revenue recognition.
EEEEXF(Z2ERAEBBEMRAF)F
VZHERNERE —RINRRBERRARMT - %
FHRAAIE ST ERREELERTPETHEZ
HHE EEERESHEAHRARER ZE
BIEREEETRARR CEERH -

Our audit procedures to assess the timing of revenue
recognition included the following:

BEEREW AR ZBH BT EFEEAT

— obtaining an understanding of and assessing
the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of the Group’s key internal controls
in relation to revenue recognition;

— TEREFEESERERN R AER ZBERAIE
Bl 2 REH - B ROEF BRI

— inspecting key customer contracts to identify
terms and conditions relating to goods acceptance
and assessing the Group’s revenue recognition
policies with reference to the requirements of the
prevailing accounting standards;

— REMREFAOUBMMNEEMRIKEA 2%
R - ARSBIITE A ER 2 BRI
EEEZWABREE:
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Timing of revenue recognition in metal and plastic and
electronic manufacturing services businesses (continued)

The key audit matter
AR ETEE

Independent Auditor’s Report
BYZEBMERE

BREFSTERA)
TS EBREFERRIXER 2B AR
w0 B [ (42)

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EEZENNMMEREZEE

We identified the timing of revenue recognition
in the metal and plastic and electronic
manufacturing services businesses as a key audit
matter because each sales contract may have
different terms and conditions which increases
the risk of error in the recognition of revenue
and because it is one of the key performance
indicators of the Group and could be subject to
manipulation to meet targets or expectations.
BEFERSBBERETEFNIXZH 2B AME
RBERISHERETEH  ARHEAHF
B T RME FR B {1 - BT A] BE 8 00 U A B 2R 86
RZER - R ARARESEEF —IAEH
REMART  AREIXIARBHRNERBEX
HEE o

comparing, on a sample basis, specific revenue
transactions recorded before and after the
financial year end date with goods delivery
documents and underlying sales invoices to
determine whether the revenue had been
recognised in the appropriate financial period;
and
MELBEFRAREAKRZABRARS H
MR H BB E L m R XX - AEE R
ARBHEBEBEZFHATARR &

inspecting underlying documentation for manual
journal entries relating to revenue raised during
the year which were considered to be material or
met other specific risk-based criteria.
BEREREAXAFT B ERRFTEARKA
BREZTFBHBRASE DB BT -
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BYZHMERE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)
Valuation of inventories

RREGTSEERE)
FEME

Refer to note 16 to the consolidated financial statements and 245 '—E"ZL TEIRRHTF 165 M 7 21)3).2

the accounting policy note 2(n)(i).

The key audit matter
BEFSNER

BiT R

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EEZENNNEEZER

The Group is primarily involved in the
manufacture and sale of metal and plastic
products as well as electronic products.
EEEXFZNERERHEDL S REBER
INEREFEM-

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. The Group maintains its
inventory levels based on customer orders and
forecast demand.
TFERKAEASERFEZAZREEGHE -
SEEERBEEPIEMAMFIRERFEFEKX
T o

A significant proportion of the Group’s products
are manufactured to meet specific customer
requirements. There is a risk that inventories may
be stated at more than their net realisable value
if a customer experiences financial difficulty
or there is a demand issue with a customer’s
product that includes a component manufactured
by the Group.

SENAHBOERERMEABEFPZEXK
miliE MREFHRMBRE  AEFPZE
m(ERHESERENAT FERTKEE -
AlgiFEREABBEA 3 F Bk 2
Rk -

Our audit procedures to assess the valuation of
inventories included the following:

BEERFERECETIEFBEEATRA:

— obtaining an understanding of and assessing
the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of the Group’s key internal controls
over the process for assessing provisions for
inventories;

— TENFAHESEEHEIEFERERBZRE
FFe BB AEES 2 RET - BERRETZAEX
1

— comparing the cost of raw materials with supplier
invoices, on a sample basis;

— WRELHEMHCRAERERARRE LS
B

— for work-in-progress and finished goods,
challenging the key assumptions concerning
overhead absorption by assessing the cost of items
included in the overhead absorption calculations,
on a sample basis;

— %#¥%&%&%&m BEMEFEEEE

DEMBEZKRA BHRERREERSRA
@Z@%P“'

— assessing the classification of inventory items
in the inventory ageing report by comparison
with supplier invoices and other underlying
documentation on a sample basis;

— EBE SRR E R AR R
BEERBENEEEANE:
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)
Valuation of inventories (continued)

The key audit matter
BEZFSER

Independent Auditor’s Report
BYZEBMERE

BREFSTERA)
FEMEGE)

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EEZETMAEEZEE

Management assesses the level of provisions for
inventories required at each reporting date after
considering inventory ageing and other relevant
factors. This assessment involves significant
management judgement and estimation.
EEEAEMMFEZRENEMEBRRR -
REBEBREEFEAETFEERBIKTF - &aT
EPREXREEBHE G

We identified the valuation of inventories as
a key audit matter because the Group held
significant inventories at the reporting date and
because of the significant degree of management
judgement and estimation involved in evaluating
the provisions for inventories.
BEEEFEREINRARENFTR BRER
BRHEEREAREZRFE  WRENERE
BERINTEREEEHE LA -

selecting inventory items, on a sample basis, at
reporting date and comparing their carrying value
to their subsequent selling prices as indicated in
sales invoices subsequent to the reporting date;
MEEERBEALFERE  LREKREE
HERERREERE L 2EE:

comparing material slow-moving inventories items
with customers’ orders and production forecasts
and assessing the financial condition of key
customers; and
REPAEREERAERENFHEFEEREAE
THE  URFEEIEEPZWHMRMR : &

assessing the historical accuracy of management’s
process for making provisions for inventories
by examining the utilisation or release of the
provisions for inventories made at the end of the
previous financial year during the current financial
year.

BEEE LS FEPRREERERBZIA
FREZEAXBLOBR  FHBEEEEFE
ZEFERERBRLERE -
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BYZHMERE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)
Loss allowance for trade receivables

RREGTSEERE)
BEZRRIRR 2EREE

Refer to notes 3(a)(iii) and 14 to the consolidated financial 2 [ #7 & BT 7 38 & B 5L 3(a)(iii) )% BT 51 14
statements and the accounting policies notes 2(p) and 2(m). & §7iF2(p) #12(m) 2 & &7 B & °

The key audit matter
BEFSNER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EEZENNNEEZER

The Group generates revenue from sales of its
products and services to customers in several
different jurisdictions including Hong Kong,
the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”), North
America, Western Europe and other Asian
countries.

BEEEERRELS  PEARAMB(HE]D -
I R EEMDNERERNZZ B AR A
AEEREBRNETFPHEEMMKRBELR
Ao

Customers located in different jurisdictions are
subject to different local risks (including political,
currency and interest rate risks) specific to those
jurisdictions in addition to the effects of the
global economic climate.
BREREBERAZZEIN LR TRBDEEE
B2EFPMEHEERTEDR SRR (BREEK
aEE BEER LA RER) -

Management assesses the loss allowance for trade
receivables required at each reporting date after
taking into account the ageing and historical loss
rate of trade receivables, the repayment history
of the customers of different risk characteristics,
current market conditions and customer-specific
conditions. Such assessment involves significant
management judgement and estimation.
EEBEEREE SRR 2RI K E L EIR
E-ARERFBIEFPERGCE EAHES
REMEF 2ERERE  NEERS BTG
VEZBZHRWIRRN 2 BEREE - ZRAFRES
REBEFLEZRH B MG -

Our audit procedures to assess the loss allowance for
trade receivables included the following:
BEENESIRRER 2 BERBEB 2EFREFERIA
DK

— obtaining an understanding of and assessing
the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of the Group’s key internal controls
over credit control, collection of trade receivables,
estimate of expected credit losses and making of
loss allowance;

— TEERFHRESERHEEEEZS  BEZEKIK
R EEEREEER G2 BRER 2R
At EBEmRETZIAMILE:

— evaluating the Group’s policy for making loss
allowance for trade receivables with reference
to the requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards;

— Z2RATEFERZER FHEEERES
FEWIR SRAE H B IR s 2 BUK

— assessing the classification of trade receivables in
the trade receivable ageing report by comparison
with sales invoices and other underlying
documentation on a sample basis;

— BAMBLBHEERBEALMMB/ENM A
EHRUIRFIRKBREZEZRUIRK D8R
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)
Loss allowance for trade receivables (continued)

The key audit matter
BEZFSER

Independent Auditor’s Report
BYZEBMERE

BREFSTERA)
EZRWERA2EBERERE(E)

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EERETTNNEEZEE

We identified loss allowance for trade receivables
as a key audit matter because of the significance
of trade receivables to the consolidated
statement of financial position and because of
the significant degree of management judgement
involved in evaluating the adequacy of the loss
allowance for trade receivables.
BEFLEZRBIER B EREY SEGRES
FH AREZRUIEREFEEMBARAKRL
EAE URFEEZRUIER 2 EEEEZ
FRUEFPRBEBRNZEEEH -

obtaining an understanding of the key data and
assumptions used in the expected credit loss
model adopted by the management, including
the basis of segmentation of trade receivables,
historical default rate, and the assumptions
involved in management’s estimated loss rate;

THEREEEMEAZERBESEBRERTAH
FERAZEARBBEMNER EFERESEWIK

RTER BELENRREEERFEHEAE
ZBR

assessing the reasonableness of management’s
loss allowance estimates by examining the
information used by management to form such
judgements, including testing the accuracy of the
historical default data and evaluating whether the
historical rates are appropriately adjusted based
on current economic conditions and forward-
looking information; and
BEBEEEEBRAREAAGH 2ER BREE
BMESLEHNBBEZEBERFEELBERZ
DERENKER L RAEEEEEEMAE -
MDA EEBEFTcBEERREBEZAENE K

inspecting bank receipts from customers and
other relevant underlying documentation
subsequent to the financial year end relating to
trade receivable balances at 31 March 2019, on
a sample basis.

MERERYREFEERENEETPWERREAR
E-NFZA=1THZEFRKRKHKESR
B2 MR | K e
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BYZHMERE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)
Assessing the net realisable value of properties
development in the PRC

RREGTSEERE)
FERFEYMERBR TSR FE

Refer to note 17 to the consolidated financial statements and 2 [ 45 & B 78 27 & 1 711752 B 22 2(n)(ii)

the accounting policy note 2(n)(ii).

The key audit matter
AR ETEHR

BB -

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EEENNEEZSER

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had a number
of property development projects located in the
PRC which were stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value at an aggregate amount of
HK$689 million.

RZTE-—hF=RA=+—H EEERTEHA
BEMERERIEAR WA ANATERE FERE
ZEARED MR - #8558 /3689,000,0007 TT °

The calculation of the net realisable value of each
property development project at the end of the
reporting period is performed by the Group’s

management.
SEMEFERBENHRERNRZAZLRFER

SEEEERENE -

The calculation of net realisable value of
properties development requires estimations,
including expected future selling prices and
costs necessary to complete the sale of these
properties.
EFENERRZAZRFERTEZAES &
BUEMERPARARHEEER TKEHEMFTE
DN

Our audit procedures to assess the net realisable value
of properties development in the PRC included the
following:
BEERFERTEAYERR 2 ZHFEETE
FFEtEAT&IE:

— evaluating the design, implementation and
operating effectiveness of key internal controls
over the preparation, monitoring and management
of the budgeted construction and other costs for
each property development project;

— HEESERARESVMEERRABZBERIR
HRAN 2 BEENERE 2R AR ES
LR EREETZIAMIME:

— conducting site visits to the property development
projects on a sample basis, discussing with
management the progress and comparing the
observed progress with the latest development
budgets for each of those property development
projects provided by management;

— HYERBHRFEAMEETEMESR  HEEE
AmEAREELRKBEEBRAEZEEAMERR
HEARHFERBEEBREMSERIFLE:
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)
Assessing the net realisable value of properties
development in the PRC (continued)

The key audit matter
BAEZFSER

Independent Auditor’s Report
BYZEBMERE

BRAEFSTERA)
AERTEYMERR TR FEE)

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EE2ENMMEEZEE

Recent property market cooling measures
imposed by the local government in the PRC
could lead to volatility in property prices.
MRREB T BRAYFEEMSE LR
e AISIBEHEBRKE o

We identified the assessment of net realisable
value of properties development in the PRC as a
key audit matter because the determination of net
realisable value requires significant management
judgement and estimation in relation to future
selling prices and future construction costs
which increases the risk of error or potential
management bias.

BEEEFERTEYXER ZAIZERFEIN R
A=A FER AARNEBEA 2R FEREE
ERHURRBEEBERARAKZEXNTEHERNZ
A R EE - BmAlge B s RN BEEEE
w2 Bk e

— evaluating valuation methodology used by

management and assessing the key estimates, data
inputs and assumptions adopted in the valuations,
by comparing expected future average selling
prices with available market data such as recently
transacted prices for similar properties located in
the nearby vicinity of each property development
project and comparing costs to complete each
property development project with publicly
available construction cost information for similar
properties (taking into account both property type
and location) and sales budget plans maintained
by the Group;
BELREBEMERRER BT FHHERE
B RS T35 BUR (M R AR A & R AR B ¥ &%
MR RME) BB Y XHRIAR 5T AR A B A
NAESRALNYEREEXNAEN (FERYE
BALUE) MEEEBBZHERESE
AEEEBERABZEER AR EEEMRKA
ZERHE BABBLRRE:

re-performing the calculations made by
management in arriving at the vyear end
assessments of net realisable value, on a sample
basis, and comparing the estimated costs to
complete each property development project with
the Group’s updated budgets; and
MEEMEEEEH P RABRFELAHE
EhBRESEEMBERASEYXEREART
X2 B REARCAN - B

performing sensitivity analysis to determine the
extent of change in those estimates that, either
individually or collectively, would be required
for properties development to be materially
misstated and considering the likelihood of such
a movement in those key estimates arising and
whether there was any evidence of management
bias.

ETHEREDITAE T %S H (T am fE Bl 5l
BISYEEREBBAERMAIF 2 Z LR
B ZRUESHBESESIEZEE AENE K
EEFHEECNERRNGEEFEEREERR -
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BYZHMERE

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT

THEREON

The Directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all the information included
in the annual report, other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on
the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for such internal control as the Directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
Directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the Directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in

discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

— Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the
override of internal control.

— Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BYZHMERE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the Directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence and communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence and, where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Yip Ka Ming, Alice.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

26 June 2019
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e T BRI R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA THIR)

31 March 31 March
2019 2018
—E-AE —E—)\F
=B=+-8 =A=+-H
Note $'000 §/000
B 5 Fr FT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Land use rights o+ fF R A 6 16,190 16,663
Property, plant and equipment #1% - BB & & 7 451,025 449,206
Investment properties REMHE 8 318,600 336,250
Intangible assets EREE 9 9,168 9,317
Investment in an associate REEERRZKE 11 16,327 16,562
Other financial assets HtwemiEE 15 19,325 18,916
Other non-current assets HMmIERBEE 14 32,000 46,224
Deferred tax assets RIEFIEE E 24(b) 5,001 7,354
867,636 900,492
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 16 335,491 381,143
Property development MEER 17 689,437 657,428
Trade and bills receivable B 5 &k E B EWIRK 14 279,285 403,794
Prepayments, deposits and BRR - mE R
other receivables H b & U IR 3K 14 45,904 28,469
Amounts due from related JfE U 8 iE R A
companies R 7% 36(b) 21,503 —
Current tax recoverable 7N HA ] g [B] A% 18 24(a) 632 138
Cash and bank deposits BEe RIBITER 18 224,030 272,153
1,596,282 1,743,125
Total assets EEH#E 2,463,918 2,643,617
EQUITY =
Capital and reserves AAREBRFBAENL
attributable to equity BRA K ik 18
shareholders of the
Company
Share capital & < 19 199,183 199,456
Other reserves H At 21 254,217 287,519
Retained earnings =88 % A 21 713,460 701,307
Total equity EmEE 1,166,860 1,188,282
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRI R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LAZSITHI7R)

31 March 31 March
2019 2018
—E-AEF —E-)N\F
=A=+-8 =A=+-A8
Note $’000 $'000
B 5 F Tt
LIABILITIES =R
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade payables B A IR R 22 155,469 208,737
Accruals and other payables EFHE RN HEAMEMIRR 22 437,151 411,297
Bank borrowings RITEE 23 66,588 135,002
Amount due to an associate JFE < Bt & R B IR 3K 11 35 2,587
Amounts due to related JE 1<) 8 3 2 R IR 3K
companies 36(b 394 123,397
Current tax payable 7N HA e 5§ 1A 24(a) 72,606 71,727
732,243 952,747
Non-current liabilities RBERE
Bank borrowings RITEE 23 553,754 490,900
Provision for long service KRG ©EH
payments 25 7,388 7,718
Deferred tax liabilities RIEHIEEE 24(b) 3,673 3,970
564,815 502,588
Total liabilities EEHEE 1,297,058 1,455,335
Total equity and liabilities EaRkaEHE 2,463,918 2,643,617
Net current assets RBEEFE 864,039 790,378
Total assets less current EERERRBERE
liabilities 1,731,675 1,690,870

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors

on 26 June 2019.

Ho Cheuk Fai

1At 8
Director

EF

The notes on pages 125 to 295 form part of these financial

statements.

RZE-—NFARAZTHHEFEH
IR R RET 3

Chan Ming Mui, Silvia

BR & ok

Director

EF

F125FE 295 B CMERAMBRER 2 —

e
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

mEEER

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BEZE =T —NF=A=+—HItFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA THIR)

2019 2018
—B-NF —E-N\F
Note $'000 $'000
Bt 5% Tr Tt
CONTINUING OPERATIONS BFESEER
Revenue WA 26 2,651,169 2,919,880
Cost of revenue WA B A 27 (2,210,972) (2,497,094)
Gross profit EF 440,197 422,786
Distribution and selling expenses 7 5 % 85 & & F 27 (24,918) (29,677)
General and administrative — B RTEHER
expenses 27 (107,872) (136,885)
Other income/gains Hib A Wz 26 7,532 5,889
Net valuation gain on investment & & EEE KR FHE
properties 8 898 2,078
Operating profit ggamny 31587 264,191
Finance income B s W A 2,743 1,542
Finance costs BT TS B R (19,187) (14,883)
Finance costs, net  HEmAx-F® 29 (16449 (13,341)
Share of profits of an associate ~ BB EAFEY no e 8
Profit before taxation BR %4 A1 )% 7 300,086 251,722
Income tax Fig®t 30 (78,700) (34,015)
Profit for the year from continuing FEREFELE LK
operations | 221,386 217,707
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS B#& I R& ik
Loss for the year from discontinued FHERBER LK EEBZ
operations B 34 — (35,414)
Profit for the year FERA 221,386 182,293
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
mEBRHER

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BEZE =T —NF=A=+—HItFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LAZSITHI7R)

2019 2018
Z2-NE —E-N\F
Note $000 $'000
B 5E Tr T
Attributable to: Ptk :
Equity shareholders of the ARAERFAA
Company 221,386 182,563
Non-controlling interests FERER — (270)
221,386 182,293
Profit/(loss) attributable to equity ~ AAREzFHE ARG
shareholders of the Company REUTREZ
arises from: wFl/ (B1R)
— Continuing operations — FEREERK 221,386 217,707
— Discontinued operations — BERIEEERK — (35,144)
221,386 182,563
Earnings per share from AREEBRAARGL
continuing and discontinued REBHEACERXBR
operations attributable to equity EBRIELEEK
shareholders of the Company ZREF
Basic earnings/(loss) per share SRERGEHN(H8B)
(HK cents) (& Al) 32
— Continuing operations — RBREER 1.1 10.9
— Discontinued operations — BRIEBERK — (1.7)
— Profit for the year — FEEF 11.1 9.2
Diluted earnings/(loss) per share #H&BRER
(HK cents) (B 1#]) (& l) 32
— Continuing operations — RERERK 11.0 10.8
— Discontinued operations — ERIERZERS — (1.7)
— Profit for the year — FER A 11.0 9.1

The notes on pages 125 to

295 form part of these

financial statements. Details of dividends payable to equity

shareholders of the Company attributable to the profit for

the year are set out in Note 33.

F125F295B o F BRI HRE 2 —
oy BRAFEE & F 2 B ARQ R #E
HTEAAZKREFIAMFE3S -
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
REEEREMEEKRAR

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BEZE =T —NF=A=+—HItFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA THIR)

2019 2018
—E2-NE —FN\F
Note $/000 §/000
P 5F Tr T
Profit for the year FERA 221,386 182,293
Other comprehensive income FEHM2ZEBRA:
for the year:
ltems that will not be reclassified to T8 E# 7 E B ZHA -
profit or loss:
Remeasurement of provision RERBLEBZ
for long service payments B = 25(b) 415 (2,213)
ltems that may be reclassified HEAJRe B 7 HE
subsequently to profit or loss: Bm 2 EA
Exchange differences on translation ¥ &8 91 3 % B 7% &% P
of financial statements of EEXCHBZR
overseas operations, net of BB FE
$Nil tax 21(a) (35,677) 65,974
Fair value gains on other financial EEBMEELFE
assets, net of $Nil tax ZWa - EBRIE 2 FE 21(a) 2 223
Other comprehensive income FEHt2ZERA
fortheyear G200 3o
Total comprehensive income FEZERARS
for the year 186,126 246,277
Attributable to: FE1k -
Equity shareholders of the ARAEDRFAA
Company 186,126 246,547
Non-controlling interests IR — (270)
Total comprehensive income FEZERARE
for the year 186,126 246,277
Total comprehensive income AREEBERAARML
attributable to equity REUTEEZ
shareholders of the Company PHKBAAE:
arises from:
— Continuing operations — BEREXK 186,126 281,430
— Discontinued operations — BERIERERK — (34,883)
186,126 246,547

The notes on pages 125 to 295 form part of these financial

o

52958 oI AARMIERE 2—

12
statements. b2
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &2 —Z—NF=A=+—HILFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TTIIR)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

RRARBRE AN
Non-
Share Other Retained controlling Total
capital reserves earnings Total interests equity
(Note 19) (Note 21)
BA  Ht#EE  RER ARt FEREZ  ERAR
(Ftz19)  (Figzan)
Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
(i T T T T T T
Balance at 1 April 2017 “E-tFMA-RZER 199,620 212,604 666279 1,078,503 (1,750) 1,076,753
Changes in equity for the year BZ=Z-N\fE
ended 31 March 2018: ZA=t-HL
FEREZE:
Profit/(loss) for the year FEERN/(B8) — — 182,563 182,563 (270) 182,293
Other comprehensive income ~ Ef 2 &M A = 66,197 (2,213) 63,984 — 63,984
Total comprehensive income PEMAEE = 66,197 180,350 246,547 270) 246,277
Dividends paid in respect of the FEFEERME S
previous year 33(b) = = (103,803) (103,803) = (103,803)
Equity settled share-based MR 2R5
transactions 20(d) - 2,908 - 2,908 — 2,908
Dividends paid in respect of the AFE B R &
current year 33(a) - — (31,942) (31,942) — (31,942)
Cancellation of shares HHBRHR 21(0)i) (811) 10,388 9,577) = = =
Repurchase of shares i AR (7 21(c)i) — (8,702) — (8,702) — (8,702)
Issuance of shares upon exercise 17 {F R i /4 1T ik )
of share options 19(c) 647 3,180 = 3,827 = 3,827
Disposal of subsidiaries with HENBRRRIEERES
non-controlling interests 34 — — — — 2,020 2,020
Release of exchange reserve upon &M B AR 2 AE[EE
disposal of subsidiaries L HE 34 = 944 = 944 = 944
Balance at 31 March 2018 —E-\F=A=1+-8
&8 199,456 287519 701307 1,188,282 — 1,188,282
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
REEZESBR

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BEZE =T —NF=A=+—HItFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LAZSITFI7R)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

FARERBEAES
Non-
Share Other Retained controlling Total
capital reserves earnings Total interests equity
(Note 19) (Note 21)
BA  HttEE REEFA &R FEREZ HRAE
(WaE19)  (KE&E21)
Note $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
i3 Tr Tr Tr Tr Tr Tr
Balance at 1 April 2018 ZE-\FMA-BZ&H 199,456 287,519 701,307 1,188,282 — 1,188,282
Changes in equity for the year BEZ=B-h%
ended 31 March 2019: =A=t-HL
FEREED:
Profit/(loss) for the year EERH/(BR) — — 221,386 221,386 — 221,386
Other comprehensive income HEip2EMKA — (35,675) 415 (35,260) — (35,260)
Total comprehensive income T ONE — (35,675) 221,801 186,126 — 186,126
Dividends paid in respect of the LEFEBRR S
previous year 33(h) - - (145,552) (145,552) - (145,552)
Equity settled share-based ABRHZM 2R 5
transactions 20(d) — 1,186 — 1,186 — 1,186
Dividends paid in respect of the AFEEIRR 2
current year 33() — — (59,755) (59,755) — (59,755)
Cancellation of shares FHR G 21(c)(iii) 412) 4,812 (4,400) - — -
Repurchase of shares (el B AR 13 21(c)(ii) — (4,400 — (4,400) — (4,400)
Issuance of shares upon exercise {76 R EAE TR G
of share options 19(c) 139 834 — 973 — 973
Release upon lapse of share R KRR
options 20(b) — (59) 59 — — —
Balance at 31 March 2019 “E-hAEZR=T-H
& 199,183 254,217 713,460 1,166,860 — 1,166,860
The notes on pages 125 to 295 form part of these financial 2812522958 2 i s A A k&K 2 —
statements. o o
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
mERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BEZE =T —NF=A=+—HItFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LAZSITHI7R)

2019 2018
—2-hF —E-N\EF
Note $000 $'000
Pt 5F T T
Cash flows from operating activities ZLEEFH EERE
Profit before taxation BR %54 510 & ) 300,086 216,308
Share of profits of an associate JE G B & N B g A 1 (693) (872)
Depreciation of property, plant and %1% - BiERBEHE 2T E
equipment 7 51,663 54,990
Amortisation of land use rights T fE AR 2 #dH 6 473 472
Amortisation of intangible assets BEEZ#H 9 1,322 3,693
Equity settled share-based AR Xt 2 R 5
transactions 20 1,186 2,908
Gain on disposal of property, plant HEWE - BE K
and equipment B (293) (3,082)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEMHBRARZ EE 34 — 505
Provision for long service payments & 5 iR 7% & % & 25 306 267
Net valuation gain on investment R E ¥ EHEK & FE
properties 8 (898) (2,078)
Interest expenses B X 29 19,187 14,888
Interest income F B A 29 (2,743) (1,546)
Foreign exchange loss NS T S 1B 4,855 6,113
Operating profit before working EEESEHAIZ
capital changes carried forward REBNEE 374,451 292,566
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
HERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BEZE =T —NF=A=+—HItFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA THIR)

2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\EF
Note $'000 $000
B 5 T T
Operating profit before working EEESEHAIZ
capital changes brought forward ~ Z&RALHE 374,451 292,566
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FEZRL,/(Em) 45,652 (529)
Increase in property development ¥ & 2 3N (60,741) (43,387)
Decrease/(increase) in trade and bills & 5 & Z 5 & W g 3 2
receivable D,/ (3 hn) 122,898 (76,357)
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments, TEfTF * & R E At FE I
deposits and other receivables MR 2 (3 m),/ /b (17,978) 61,806
Decrease in trade payables EHRMNIRR 2/ (51,228) (23,660)
Increase/(decrease) in accruals and  FE&H B F K& H b FE
other payables R 2, G L) 10,309 (12,273)
Decrease in amount due to an JE T B & RAIIR R Z
associate R (2,552) (405)
(Decrease)/increase in amounts FERT BB N RIR 2
due to related companies CR ),/ (123,397) 5,665
Increase in amounts due from related &4 B3 A B 1R 50 2
companies # (21,952) —
Net cash generated from operations REE4X 2 ERE 275,462 203,426
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid BN EBFE R (18,778) (19,214)
Hong Kong Profits Tax refunded REBEMNEMR 6 1,686
PRC tax paid BN E R EH (3,920) (1,506)
Long service payments paid ENRERE S 25 484) (404)
Long service payments refunded RERBRE® 25 263 —
Net cash generated from operating K& FEBELZFRS
activities 252,549 183,988
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

AERETMRER

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BEZE =T —NF=A=+—HItFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (AR )

2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\EF
Note $'000 $000
P 5 T T
Cash flows from investing activities REFZBH 2R RE
Payment for the purchase of property, EEE % - BE k& H
plant and equipment PANES (48,485) (103,319)
Payment for additions to investment AE & & ¥ 20
properties 8 (282) (282)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - FFE Rk
plant and equipment REZER 352 3,410
Proceeds from disposal of HE KB RR 2 PrE R
subsidiaries, net of cash disposal FHeHE — 48,100
Payment for acquisition of BERVEEZ
intangible assets (BB 9 (1,173) (741)
Interest received B F B 2,336 1,147
Net cash used in investing activities REZEBFFAZFES (47,252) (51,685)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
HERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BEZE =T —NF=A=+—HItFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA THIR)

2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
Note $'000 $000
P &2 T T
Cash flows from financing activities MEFZTH 2R RE
Interest paid EENR PSS 18(b) (37,094) (27,148)
Payment for the repurchase of shares [21 88 & {5 2 1 & 21(c) (4,400) (8,702)
New bank borrowings MIRTEE 18(b) 322,342 166,200
Repayment of bank borrowings BERTEES 18(b) (327,902) (80,098)
Capital element of repayment of BEREMEZ
finance leases g W — (33)
Dividends paid Bk E (205,307) (135,745)
Issuance of shares upon exercise of 17 i AR # 1% #1717
share options 19(c) 973 3,827
N el oy e il LUty @51,388) G
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and HERELEEYZ
cash equivalents FOR D) /8 m (46,091) 50,604
Cash and cash equivalents at the FHzBREREL
beginning of the year 2 L) 272,153 215,363
Effect of foreign exchange rate NEEXSBHoHE
changes (2,032) 6,186
Cash and cash equivalents at the FEZRERRLEZEY
end of the year 18 224,030 272,153

The notes on pages 125 to 295 form part of these financial 2125% 2958 2 i s A A B w &k 2 —
statements. e
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Notes to the Financial Statements

ot 75 ¥R 2% MY &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (FSBBEIN + LAEITIIR)

GENERAL INFORMATION

Karrie International Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are
principally engaged in

— Metal and Plastic (“M&P”) Business:
manufacturing and sale of metal and plastic
products, including server casings, moulds, plastic
and metal parts and predominately self-brand

household products;

— Electronic Manufacturing Services (“EMS”)
Business: manufacturing and sale of magnetic
tape data storage, point-of-sale (“POS”) system,
office automation products and other computer
peripherals; and

— Real Estate Business: urban renewal, real
estate project investment, property leasing and
development.

The Company is a limited liability company

incorporated in Bermuda on 29 October 1996. The

address of its registered office is Clarendon House, 2

Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda.

The shares of the Company have been listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since 16 December
1996.

These consolidated financial statements are presented
in unit of Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), unless otherwise
stated.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (S BEAAIN + LABITTHIR)

EREBE

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(@

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which
collective term includes all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
(“HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong

of Certified Public Accountants

Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(“Listing Rules”). A summary of the significant
accounting policies adopted by the Group is set
out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for
early adoption for the current accounting period of
the Group and the Company. Note 2(c) provides
information on any changes in accounting
policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant
to the Group for the current and prior accounting
periods reflected in these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (FSBBEIN + LAEITIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2019 comprise the Group and
its interest in an associate. The measurement
basis used in the preparation of the financial
statements is the historical cost basis except for
investment properties, other financial assets and
employee benefit assets/liabilities which have
been measured at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with HKFRS requires management to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the application of policies and reported
of assets, income and

amounts liabilities,

expenses.

The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances, the results of which form the
basis of making the judgements about carrying
values of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.

Judgements
application of HKFRSs that have significant effect
on the financial statements and major sources of

made by management in the

estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 4.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (S BEAAIN + LABITTHIR)

EREBEE)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(c)

Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued a number of new HKFRSs
and amendments to HKFRSs that are first effective
for the current accounting period of the Group.
Of these, the following developments are relevant
to the Group’s financial statements:

o HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

o HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with
customers

. HK(IFRIC) 22, Foreign currency transactions
and advance consideration

The Group has not applied any new standard
or interpretation that is not yet effective for the
current accounting period.

(@) HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

HKFRS 9 replaces HKAS 39, Financial
instruments: recognition and measurement.
It sets out the requirements for recognising
and measuring financial assets, financial
liabilities and some contracts to buy or sell
non-financial items.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(0 Changes in accounting policies (continued)
HKFRS 9, Financial instruments
(continued)
The Group has been impacted by HKFRS
9 in relation to classification of financial
assets. The Group has applied HKFRS 9
retrospectively to items that existed at 1
April 2018 in accordance with the transition
requirements. The Group has recognised the
cumulative effect of initial application as an
adjustment to the opening equity at 1 April
2018. Therefore, comparative information
continues to be reported under HKAS 39.

(a)

Further details of the nature and effect of the
changes to previous accounting policies and
the transition approach are set out below:

(i)

Classification of financial assets and
financial liabilities

HKFRS 9 categories financial assets
into three principal classification
categories: measured at amortised
cost, at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI) and at
fair value through profit or loss (FVPL).
These supersede HKAS 39’s categories
of held-to-maturity investments, loans
and receivables, available-for-sale
financial assets and financial assets
measured at FVPL. The classification
of financial assets under HKFRS
9 is based on the business model
under which the financial asset is
managed and its contractual cash flow
characteristics. The Group made an
election to designate the investments
other than equity investments at FVOCI
(recycling). Equity investments were

designated at FVOCI (non-recycling).
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (S BEAAIN + LABITTHIR)
2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2 EBEESTBEG#E)
() Changes in accounting policies (continued) © BFBRRZE8(E)
(@) HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (@) BBUKEHREZER FINE
(continued) (€T A |(#&)
(i)  Classification of financial assets and i) &2MEELEME
financial liabilities (continued) Bz D B(E)
The following table shows the original TRIIRAEEIR
measurement categories for each class BEEESENSE

of the Group’s financial assets and

financial

liabilities under HKAS 39

and reconciles the carrying amounts
of those financial assets determined
in accordance with HKAS 39 to those
determined in accordance with HKFRS

9.

HKAS 39
carrying amount
at 31 March 2018

9B EEME
EZ&ViEa
Bl REIRIER B
SRR F395 E
EZemEERT
BEEBEE BTG
AR FOSEE T

EEITHIR o

HKFRS 9
carrying amount

Reclassification ~ at 1 April 2018

EREgT ERRE
A E395% REERFNH
—E-N\E —E-N\E
=A=t-H mA-A
ZIREE EFNOE ZIREE
$'000 $'000 $'000
Fr Fr S
Financial assets carried at BRAFEMAELMLZEKA
FVOCI (recycling) (FTEE)FRk . EMEE
— Key management insurance — EZERERBAD
contract (unlisted (FEEmEE) (M FEG)
investment) (note(i)) — 18,916 18,916
Financial assets classified as REB B QAR F395
available-for-sale under AEARUHNE L
HKAS 39 (note(i) SREE M) 18,916 (18,916) -
Other financial assets revaluation Eth& @& E E LG E
reserve (recycling) (rTE2MmE) — 288 288
Available-for-sale assets AHECEE
revaluation reserve BhEE 288 (288) —

Note: Bt 5 :

(i) Under HKAS 39, key management iy WBEEBFHE
insurance contracts were classified as B 253955 - i E
available-for-sale financial assets. These EREERRE4
insurance contracts are classified as DB %
FVOCI (recycling) under HKFRS 9. %Eﬂﬁ@ It &

REBEHNRES
SIS A R
FORDEARIE
ANFEFTAEAD
%)ﬁ W A (7] 82
@) o
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(©0 Changes in accounting policies (continued)
(@) HKFRS 9, Financial instruments
(continued)

(i)

Classification of financial assets and
financial liabilities (continued)

For an explanation of how the Group
classifies and measures financial assets
and recognises related gains and
losses under HKFRS 9, see respective
accounting policy notes in 2(g), (m), (p)
and (t).

The measurement categories for all
financial liabilities remain the same.
The carrying amounts for all financial
liabilities at 1 April 2018 have not been
impacted by the initial application of
HKFRS 9.

The Group did not designate or re-
designate any financial asset or
financial liability at FVPL at 1 April
2018.

Credit losses

HKFRS 9 replaces the “incurred
loss” model in HKAS 39 with the
expected credit losses (“ECL”) model.
The ECL model requires an ongoing
measurement of credit risk associated
with a financial asset and therefore
recognises ECLs earlier than under the
“incurred loss” accounting model in
HKAS 39.

(BB - LUBTTIIR)
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (S BEAAIN + LABITTHIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Changes in accounting policies (continued)
HKFRS 9, Financial instruments
(continued)

Credit losses (continued)
The Group applies the new ECL model
to the following items:

— financial assets measured at
amortised cost (including cash
and bank deposits, trade and
bills receivable and prepayments,
deposits and other receivables);

— contract assets as defined in
HKFRS 15 (see note 2(q)); and

— debt securities measured at
FVOCI (recycling).

Financial assets measured at fair value,
including debt securities and equity
securities designated at FVOCI (non-
recycling), are not subject to the ECL
assessment.

There is no material impact in the
amount of ECL recognised as at 1 April
2018 as a result of the adoption of
HKFRS 9.

For further details on the Group’s
accounting policy for accounting for
credit losses, see note 2(m)(i).
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (FSBBEIN + LAEITIIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(©0 Changes in accounting policies (continued)
(@) HKFRS 9, Financial instruments
(continued)

(iii)

Transition

Changes in accounting policies
resulting from the adoption of HKFRS
9 have been applied retrospectively,
except as described below:

— information relating to comparative
periods has not been restated. The
information presented for 2018
continues to be reported under
HKAS 39.

— the following assessments have
been made on the basis of the
facts and circumstances that
existed at 1 April 2018 (the date
of initial application of HKFRS 9
by the Group):

o the determination of the
business model within
which a financial asset is
held; and

e the designation of certain
investments in equity
instruments not held for
trading to be classified as at
FVOCI (non-recycling).
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (S BEAAIN + LABITTHIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(©0 Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(a)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments
(continued)
(i)  Transition (continued)

— i, at the date of initial application,
the assessment of whether there
has been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition
would have involved undue cost

lifetime ECL has
been recognised for that financial

or effort, a

instrument.

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with
customers

HKFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive
framework for recognising
costs from contracts with customers. HKFRS
15 replaces HKAS 18, Revenue, which
covered revenue arising from sale of goods
and rendering of services, and HKAS 11,
Construction contracts, which specified the

revenue and

accounting for construction contracts.

HKFRS 15 also introduces additional
qualitative and quantitative disclosure
requirements which aim to enable users
of the financial statements to understand
the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty
of revenue and cash flows arising from

contracts with customers.

KARRIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED =X B E#ERER AT

2 EEgFHERER#E)
© BIFBRXzZ28(#E)

(a)

BBV IS RELEREIR
(€@ ITE (&)
(i) B@EE)
— (WRVIRER
HEE BB V%A
EREEFER
B = 75 K i 18
LSBT &N
WE 7 P ANk
ZhBlze
BTHA=AE
BEFEHZE
HEEBEE
R e
& B IR EERFE 1558
[REEFEH2WA
BB WEERES
REY—ARRKEER
FAHWA KK A ZER
BIEZR - BEAMBRE
ERIFISHERRE S S5T
HERIFE185E WA ICR =
S E G A IR R BR TS B
EZBRAN)REBEB G
A BRI E S DIGET
AREESHNZBAEE
BRIE) o

&8 M WmE ERF15
SRSl AN M R
TEWREMRTE BEEZ
MBmRERET FHE
BEFRIM 2ANMES
ZWARRERE 2
g 28 KHELNE
REM e



Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(©0 Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(b)

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with
customers (continued)

The Group has elected to use the cumulative
effect transition method and has recognised
the cumulative effect of initial application
as an adjustment to the opening balance
of equity at 1 April 2018. Therefore,
comparative information has not been
restated and continues to be reported under
HKAS 18. As allowed by HKFRS 15, the
Group has applied the new requirements
only to contracts that were not completed

before 1 April 2018.

Further details of the nature and effect of the
changes on previous accounting policies are
set out below:

()  Timing of revenue recognition
Previously, revenue from sale of goods
was generally recognised at a point in
time when the risks and rewards of
ownership of the goods had passed to
the customers.
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2 EEgFHERER#E)
© BIFBRXzZ28(#E)
(b)y HEBEMBRELERZE
HRIREFEFEHZWA

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(©0 Changes in accounting policies (continued)
(b) HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with
customers (continued)

()  Timing of revenue recognition

(continued)

Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised
when the customer obtains control of
the promised good or service in the
contract. This may be at a single point in
time or over time. HKFRS 15 identifies
the following three situations in which
control of the promised good or service
is regarded as being transferred over
time:

A.  when the customer simultaneously
receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the entity’s
performance, as the entity
performs;

B. when the entity’s performance
creates or enhances an asset (for
example work-in-progress) that
the customer controls as the asset
is created or enhanced;

C. when the entity’s performance
does not create an asset with an
alternative use to the entity and
the entity has an enforceable
right to payment for performance
completed to date.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (FSBBEIN + LAEITIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(©0 Changes in accounting policies (continued)
(b) HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with
customers (continued)

(i)

Timing of revenue recognition
(continued)

If the contract terms and the entity’s
activities do not fall into any of these
3 situations, then under HKFRS 15
the entity recognises revenue for the
sale of that good or service at a single
point in time, being when control has
passed. Transfer of risks and rewards of
ownership is only one of the indicators
that is considered in determining when
the transfer of control occurs.

The adoption of HKFRS 15 does not
have a significant impact on when the
Group recognises revenue from sales
of manufacturing goods and properties.
Taking into account the contract terms
and the Group’s business practice,
the sales of manufacturing goods and
properties do not meet the criteria
for recognising revenue over time and
therefore such revenue continues to
be recognised at a point in time. This
change in accounting policy had no
material impact on opening balances as
at 1 April 2018.

For further details on the Group’s
accounting policy for accounting for
revenue and other income, see note

2(y).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% AR MY aE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (S BEAAIN + LABITTHIR)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Changes in accounting policies (continued)
HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with
customers (continued)

(c)

(b)

(ii)

Significant financing component

HKFRS 15 requires an entity to adjust
the transaction price for the time
value of money when a contract
significant financing
component, regardless of whether the

contains a

payments from customers are received
significantly in advance of revenue
recognition or significantly deferred.

Previously, the Group only applied
such a policy when payments were
significantly deferred, which was not
common in the Group’s arrangements
with its customers. The Group did not
apply such a policy when payments
were received in advance.

It is not common for the Group to
receive payments significantly in
advance of revenue recognition in
the Group’s arrangements with its
customers, with the exception of when
residential properties are marketed by
the Group while the property is still
In this situation,

depending on market conditions,

under construction.

the company may offer customers a
discount compared to the listed sales
price, provided that the customers
agree to pay the balance of the
consideration early while construction
is still ongoing, rather than on legal

assignment.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

ot 75 ¥R 2% MY &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (FSBBEIN + LAEITIIR)

2 EEgHERER#E)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(¢ Changes in accounting policies (continued)
(b) HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with
customers (continued)

(ii)

Significant financing component
(continued)

Where payment schemes include
a significant financing component,
the transaction price is adjusted to
separately account for this component.
In the case of payments in advance,
such adjustment results in interest
expense being accrued by the Group
to reflect the effect of the financing
benefit obtained by the Group from
the customers during the period
between the payment date and the
completion date of legal assignment.
This accrual increases the amount of
the contract liability during the period
of construction, and therefore increases
the amount of revenue recognised
when control
property is transferred to the customer.
The interest is expensed as accrued
unless it is eligible to be capitalised
under HKAS 23, Borrowing costs, in
accordance with the policies set out in
note 2(aa).

of the completed

This change in accounting policy
had no material impact on opening
balances as at 1 April 2018.
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B 7% AR MY aE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (S BEAAIN + LABITTHIR)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Changes in accounting policies (continued)
HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with
customers (continued)

(c)

(b)

(iii)

Sales commissions payable related to
property sales contracts

The Group previously recognised
sales commissions payable related to
property sales contracts as distribution
and selling expenses when they were
incurred. Under HKFRS 15, the Group
is required to capitalise these sales
commissions as costs of obtaining
contracts when they are incremental
and are expected to be recovered,
unless the expected amortisation
period is one year or less from the
date of initial recognition of the asset,
in which case the sales commissions
can be expensed when incurred.
Capitalised commissions are charged to
profit or loss when the revenue from
the related property sale is recognised
and are included as distribution and
selling expenses at that time.

This change in accounting policy
had no material impact on opening
balances as at 1 April 2018.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (FSBBEIN + LAEITIIR)

2 EEgHERER#E)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(©0 Changes in accounting policies (continued)
(b) HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with
customers (continued)

(iv)

Presentation of contract assets and
liabilities

Under HKFRS 15, a
recognised only if the Group has an
unconditional right to consideration.
If the group recognises the related

receivable is

revenue (see note 2(y)) before being
unconditionally entitled to the
consideration for the promised goods
and services in the contract, then the
entitlement to consideration is classified
as a contract asset. Similarly, a contract
liability,
recognised when a customer pays

rather than a payable, is

non-refundable consideration, or is
contractually required to pay non-
refundable consideration and the
amount is already due, before the
Group recognises the related revenue.
For a single contract with the customer,
either a net contract asset or a net
contract liability is presented. For
multiple contracts,
and contract

contract assets
liabilities of unrelated
contracts are not presented on a net
basis (see note 2(q)).

The adoption of HKFRS 15 has only
affected the presentation and disclosure
of contract liability in the consolidated
financial statements.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (S BEAAIN + LABITTHIR)

EREBEE)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(c)

(d

Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(c)

HK(IFRIC) 22, Foreign currency
transactions and advance consideration

The interpretation provides guidance on
determining “the date of the transaction” for
the purpose of determining the exchange rate
to use on initial recognition of the related
asset, expense or income (or part of it)
arising from a transaction in which an entity
receives or pays advance consideration in a
foreign currency.

The Interpretation clarifies that “the date
of the transaction” is the date on initial
recognition of the non-monetary asset or
liability arising from the payment or receipt
of advance consideration. If there are
multiple payments or receipts in advance
of recognising the related item, the date of
the transaction for each payment or receipt
should be determined in this way. The
adoption of HK(IFRIC) 22 does not have any
material impact on the financial position and

the financial result of the Group.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the

Group. The Group controls an entity when it is

exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from

its involvement with the entity and has the ability

to affect those returns through its power over the

entity. When assessing whether the Group has

power, only substantive rights (held by the Group

and other parties) are considered.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(continued)

An investment in subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the
date that control commences until the date that
control ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions
and cash flows, and any unrealised profits arising
from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full
in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as
unrealised gains, but only to the extent that there
is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in
a subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly
to the Company, and in respect of which the
Group has not agreed any additional terms with
the holders of those interests which would result
in the Group as a whole having a contractual
obligation in respect of those interests that meets
the definition of a financial liability. For each
business combination, the Group can elect to
measure any non-controlling interests either at
fair value or at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net
identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the

consolidated statement of financial position
within equity, separately from equity attributable
to the equity shareholders of the Company.
Non-controlling interests in the
the Group are presented on the face of the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and the

consolidated statement of profit or loss and

results of

other comprehensive income as an allocation of
the total profit or loss and total comprehensive
income for the year between non-controlling
interests and the equity shareholders of the
Company.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (S BEAAIN + LABITTHIR)

EREBEE)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions, whereby
adjustments are made to the amounts of
controlling and non-controlling interests within
consolidated equity to reflect the change in
relative interests, but no adjustments are made to

goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in
that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained
in that former subsidiary at the date when control
is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of
a financial asset or, when appropriate, the cost on
initial recognition of an investment in an associate
(see note 2(e)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e)

Associates
An associate is an entity in which the Group
has significant influence,
joint control,

but not control or

over its management, including
participation in the financial and operating policy

decisions.

An investment in an associate is accounted for in
the consolidated financial statements under the
equity method. Under the equity method, the
investment is initially recorded at cost, adjusted for
any excess of the Group’s share of the acquisition
date fair values of the investee’s identifiable net
assets over the cost of the investment (if any).
Thereafter, the investment is adjusted for the
post-acquisition change in the Group’s share of
the investee’s net assets and any impairment loss
relating to the investment (see note 2(m)(ii). Any
the Group's
share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of
the investees and any impairment losses for the
year are recognised in the consolidated statement

acquisition-date excess over cost,

of profit or loss, whereas the Group’s share of the
post-acquisition post-tax items of the investees’
other comprehensive income is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its
the Group’s interest
is reduced to $nil and recognition of further

interest in the associate,

losses is discontinued except to the extent that
the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the
investee. For this purpose, the Group’s interest is
the carrying amount of the investment under the
equity method together with the Group’s long-
term interests that in substance form part of the
Group’s net investment in the associate.

B 7% 3R M R

(BB - LUBTTIIR)

2 EBEESHERER#E)

(e)

Hﬁﬁﬁi‘./‘\
BERRRIERNEEAHHE
EREEFEAXE  BEZ
BB RS I AR OR IR - B 3EIE
FHRZEHEERE2ERE -

REERRZRENEERS
ERERE B BRERAR - 1%
BiED A RERVEKAN
ik ERAKBERZAER
AAHNFEERKBEAZA
FTEHBHZEREKRAZ#
BW(NAB)IELAE - H1& - 5t
RNEBEZEERRFEER
WiEB o B R EZIERE
ﬁ@ZEHﬂ@%EWﬁﬂﬁ
(R M 3E2(m)i) ° FE AR EE
Eiﬁ&$z%ﬁ REBEFT
HERERRIRKEE 2R Ti%
¥BERFREMABEBER
REBERER  MAEER
W BB & PTG A B AR HIE Z
Ht2mBABE ARG EE
R EMEmBARER -

EAKERGEBE AR 2 EE
HBUHEGER  AAKEZ
BamET  UIFLERE—
FEE - EARBERREER
AIFTAREZZRIETEEE
B ENFKERIN o Bt BH9M
E RSB A 2 IR
SR BEZRERAE EF
EEFBRASBERBEZ R
AlZEEREFERE

N2
S o
T

ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19 F

145



146

Notes to the Financial Statements
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (S BEAAIN + LABITTHIR)

EREBEE)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e)

)]

Associates (continued)

Unrealised profits and
transactions between the Group and its associates
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest

losses resulting from

in the investees, except where unrealised losses
provide evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred, in which case they are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

If an investment in an associate becomes an
investment in a joint venture, retained interest is
not remeasured. Instead, the investment continues

to be accounted for under the equity method.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to
have significant influence over an associate, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest
in that investee, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained
in that former investee at the date when significant
influence is lost is recognised at fair value and
this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset (see note 2(g)).

Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and
the fair value of the Group’s previously held
equity interest in the acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s
identifiable assets and liabilities measured as
at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a gain
on a bargain purchase.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (FSBBEIN + LAEITIIR)

2 EEgHERER#E)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

)]

(g)

Goodwill (continued)
Goodwill
impairment losses. Goodwill arising on a business
combination is allocated to each cash-generating

is stated at cost less accumulated

unit, or groups of cash-generating units, that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination and is tested annually for impairment
(see note 2(m)(ii)).

On disposal of a cash-generating unit during
the year, any attributable amount of purchased
goodwill is included in the calculation of the profit
or loss on disposal.

Other investments in debt and equity securities
The Group’s and the Company’s accounting
policies for investments equity securities, other
than investments in subsidiaries and associates,
are as follows:

Investments in equity securities are initially stated
at fair value, which is their transaction price
unless it is determined that the fair value at initial
recognition differs from the transaction price and
that fair value is evidenced by a quoted price
in an active market for an identical asset or
liability or based on a valuation technique that
uses only data from observable markets. Cost
includes attributable transaction costs, except for
those investments measured at FVPL for which
transaction costs are recognised directly in profit
or loss and where indicated otherwise below.
These investments are subsequently accounted for
as follows, depending on their classification.
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B 7% AR MY aE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (S BEAAIN + LABITTHIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(g) Other investments in debt and equity securities
(continued)
(A) Policy applicable from 1 April 2018

Non-equity investment held by the Group
are classified into one of the following
measurement categories:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Amortised cost, if the investment is
held for the collection of contractual
cash flows which represents solely
payments of principal and interest.
Interest income from the investment is
calculated using the effective interest
method (see note 2(y)(iv)).

FVOCI (recycling), if the contractual
cash flows of the investment comprises
solely payments of principal and
interest and the investment is held
within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both the
collection of contractual cash flows
and sale. Changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive
income, except for the recognition in
profit or loss of expected credit losses,
interest income (calculated using the
effective interest method) and foreign
exchange gains and losses. When the
investment is derecognised, the amount
accumulated in other comprehensive
income is recycled from equity to profit
or loss.

FVPL, if the investment does not meet
the criteria for being measured at
amortised cost or FVOCI (recycling).
Changes in the fair value of the
investment (including interest) are
recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (FSBBEIN + LAEITIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(g)

(h)

Other investments in debt and equity securities
(continued)
(B) Policy applicable prior to 1 April 2018

Investments in securities which are not held
for trading are classified as available-for-
sale securities. At the end of each reporting
period the fair value is remeasured, with
any resultant gain or loss being recognised
in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the
available-for-sales assets revaluation reserve.
As an exception to this, investments in equity
securities that do not have a quoted price in
an active market for an identical instrument
and whose fair value cannot otherwise be
reliably measured are recognised in the
statement of financial position at cost less
impairment losses (see note 2(m)(i)(B)).

When these investments are derecognised
or impaired, the cumulative gain or loss is
reclassified to profit or loss. Investments
are recognised/derecognised on the date
the Group commits to purchase/sell the
investments or they expire.

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and buildings
which are owned or held under a leasehold
interest (see note 2(k)) to earn rental income and/
or for capital appreciation. These include land
held for a currently undetermined future use and
property that is being constructed or developed
for future use as investment property.

Investment properties are stated at fair value,
unless they are still in the course of construction
or development at the end of the reporting period
and their fair value cannot be reliably measured at
that time. Any gain or loss arising from a change
in fair value or from the retirement or disposal of
an investment property is recognised in profit or
loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% AR MY aE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (S BEAAIN + LABITTHIR)

EREBEE)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(i)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at
historical cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs
and maintenance are expensed in profit or loss
during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

Gain or losses arising from the retirement or
item of property, plant and
equipment are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the

disposal of an

carrying amount of the item and are recognised in
profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Construction-in-progress represents buildings,
plant and machinery under construction and
pending installation and is stated at cost. Cost
includes the costs of construction of buildings,
the costs of plant and machinery, installation,
testing and other direct costs. No depreciation is
made on construction-in-progress until such time
as the relevant assets are completed and ready
for intended use. When the assets concerned are
brought into use, the costs are transferred to other
property, plant and equipment and depreciated in
accordance with the policy as stated in below.

KARRIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED =X B E#ERER AT

2

(i)

Mk BERKE
WE - BB K R IRE 2 RRR
A REH T E OB E BB S
iR - ELRABEWBEZEE
EEREEZER -

BEXRNEETREAAER
}K,\uZIEEEFQZﬂiXi%»@K
Mk - FARZIEEZRARE
ST 2R Z“’@%E(\\iéTEZWJE
H Bk R RE L& E (1E
) EREEY 2 FEKD
B2 - FrAEMEER
REERNEL 2 M B HE
AR e 8 -

B2 - RPN R I E R
SFHEMESLZ WHIERE -
THa% YA B & Y a5 5 FA B R [
B2E% WHRZEBREL
HEAREBZERER -

ERTIRDEERZET BE
REFREZHES  WRKAR
SR - RABRENEFTERE
LA~ RS R RR 2 O
KRR EMERKA
ELIEEH#EiﬁWEF
SEAR S I AE#E T A 2k B AT
reE- Eﬁ%ﬁghkﬁﬁ
- AR SR = H Yk
RS K sl - MR ARENIA TR B
Atz BRETIRITE o



Notes to the Financial Statements

ot 75 ¥R 2% MY &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (FSBBEIN + LAEITIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(i)

()

Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of
items of property, plant and equipment using the
straight-line method over their estimated useful
lives. The annual rates used for the calculation of
depreciation are:

—  Leasehold land Over the lease term

—  Buildings 2% to 4%

—  Fixtures and leasehold 8% to 33.33%
improvements

—  Machinery 6.67% to 20%

—  Moulds and tooling 15%

—  Furniture and computer 15% to 33.33%
equipment

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual
value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Land use rights

Land use rights are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment Cost
represents consideration paid for the rights to use

losses.

the land on which various plant and buildings are
situated for periods varying from 10 to over 50
years. Amortisation of land use rights is calculated
on a straight-line basis over the period of the land
use rights.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% AR MY aE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (S BEAAIN + LABITTHIR)

EREBEE)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(k)

0]

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a
series of transactions, is or contains a lease if the
Group determines that the arrangement conveys
a right to use a specific asset or assets for an
agreed period of time in return for a payment
or a series of payments. Such a determination is
made based on an evaluation of the substance of
the arrangement and is regardless of whether the
arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

Leases which do not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the Group
are classified as operating leases. Where the
Group has the use of assets held under operating
leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss in equal instalments
over the accounting periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be
derived from the leased assets.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Other intangible assets that are acquired by
the Group are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses (see note
2(m)(ii)). Operating rights acquired in a business
combination are recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. Amortisation of intangible assets
is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the assets’ estimated useful lives.

Both the period and method of amortisation are
reviewed annually.

KARRIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED =X B E#ERER AT

2

(k)

0]

HEEE
HAEERRE-BAXHH—
RINRZHEK 2 LB EBHER
ERRABBA SN —FH—
R YIBIRM A X —RZIHE
EBEEZERN  BIZBERHER
HEXBR=MHE -ZEED
RBLHEZ AR EMIEL -
MBEBZERERAERLZ
MEFTALIEEE 2 -

I REBHA HE 2 48 K01
FER MO mEAREEZHE
B AREARKEHE - 58
AEEZBAKZHEERE
EZBR - AREBHEEFELZ
NHREREHMARE 2
IR - AFRENEE S - 8
A H b £ A R B F B R iR
HMEEEMEL 2 Wam R
AR SN

BEE(KREEN)

AEEBAZHMELEE
AR, A R T # 3H RORUE
518 (R RE2(m)Gi) PR - %
XA TBACKERER
BEAZAVERR - BFE
BB H A B ORI AT E
AEHRBERXHE -

B R TR B R
5o



Notes to the Financial Statements

ot 75 ¥R 2% MY &

(BB - LUBTTIIR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are probability-weighted estimates
of credit losses. Credit losses are
measured as the present values of
all expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the
difference between the cash flows due
to the Group in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive).

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2 EESTTBEG#E)
(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets m FEEFBREEZRE
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments (i) EHMIEREGHNEEZ
and contract assets FEEEE

Policy applicable from 1 April 2018 A BZE—N\FENA—

HREAZ R
The Group recognises a loss allowance REBBT 5 %A
for ECLs on the followings items: ZIEREEEHIE®

RIEBEEME -

— financial assests measured at — REIHKAK
amortised cost (including cash SFE 2 &/t
and bank deposits, trade and EEMBER
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AR e
Ko Eo A FE IR
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HKFRS 15 (see note 2(q)); and 4 BI| 1558 F
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FVOCI (recycling). H 2w A
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Financial assets measured at fair BERAFEFAEZS

value, including debt securities and MEEBEEER

equity securities designated at FVOCI BRAFEFGFTAHEM
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% AR MY aE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (S BEAAIN + LABITTHIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets (continued)

(A)

Policy applicable from 1 April 2018
(continued)

The expected cash shortfalls are
discounted using the following discount
rates where the effect of discounting is
material:

— fixed-rate financial assets, trade
and other receivables:
interest rate determined at initial

effective

recognition or an approximation
thereof;

— variable-rate financial assets:

current effective interest rate.

The maximum period considered
when estimating ECLs is the maximum
contractual period over which the
Group is exposed to credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group
takes reasonable and
supportable that s

available without undue cost or effort.

into account
information

This includes information about past
events, current conditions and forecasts
of future economic conditions.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

ot 75 ¥R 2% MY &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (FSBBEIN + LAEITIIR)

2 EEgHERER#E)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets (continued)

(A)

Policy applicable from 1 April 2018
(continued)

ECLs are measured on either of the
following bases:

— 12-month ECLs: these are losses
that are expected to result from
possible default events within the
12 months after the reporting
date; and

— lifetime ECLs: these are losses
that are expected to result from
all possible default events over
the expected lives of the items to

which the ECL model applies.

Loss allowances for trade receivables

and contract assets are always
measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs. ECLs on these financial
assets are estimated using a provision
matrix based on the Group’s historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for
factors that are specific to the debtors
and an assessment of both the
current and forecast general economic

conditions at the reporting date.
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B 7% AR MY aE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (S BEAAIN + LABITTHIR)

2 EEgFHERER#E)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets (continued)

(A)

Policy applicable from 1 April 2018
(continued)

For all other financial instruments, the
Group recognises a loss allowance
equal to 12-month ECLs unless there
has been a significant increase in
credit risk of the financial instrument
since initial recognition, in which case
the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of
a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition,
the Group compares the risk of
default occurring on the financial
instrument assessed at the reporting
date with that assessed at the date
of initial recognition. In making this
reassessment, the Group considers that
a default event occurs when (i) the
borrower is unlikely to pay its credit
obligations to the Group in full, without
recourse by the Group to actions such
as realising security (if any is held)
or (i) the financial asset is 90 days
past due. The Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

ot 75 ¥R 2% MY &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets (continued)

(A)

Policy applicable from 1 April 2018
(continued)

In particular, the following information
is taken into account when assessing
whether credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition:

— failure to make payments of
principal or interest on their
contractual due dates;

— an actual or expected significant
deterioration in a financial
instrument’s external or internal
credit rating (if available);

— an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating
results of the debtor; and

—  existing or forecast changes in the
technological, market, economic
or legal environment that have
a significant adverse effect on
the debtor’s ability to meet its
obligation to the Group.

Depending on the nature of the
financial instruments, the assessment
of a significant increase in credit risk
is performed on either an individual
basis or a collective basis. When the
assessment is performed on a collective
basis, the financial instruments are
grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics, such as past due status
and credit risk ratings.
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B 7% AR MY aE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (S BEAAIN + LABITTHIR)

2 EEgFHERER#E)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets (continued)

(A)

Policy applicable from 1 April 2018
(continued)

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting
date to reflect changes in the financial
instrument’s credit risk since initial
recognition. Any change in the ECL
amount is recognised as an impairment
The
Group recognises an impairment gain
instruments

with a corresponding adjustment

gain or loss in profit or loss.
or loss for all financial

to their carrying amount through a
except for
investments in debt securities that are
measured at FVOCI (recycling), for
which the loss allowance is recognised

loss allowance account,

in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the fair value reserve
(recycling).

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised in accordance
with note 2(y)(iv) is calculated based on
the gross carrying amount of the financial
asset unless the financial asset is credit-
impaired, in which case interest income
is calculated based on the amortised cost
(i.e. the gross carrying amount less loss
allowance) of the financial asset.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

ot 75 ¥R 2% MY &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (FSBBEIN + LAEITIIR)

2 EEgHERER#E)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets (continued)

(A)

Policy applicable from 1 April 2018
(continued)

At each reporting date, the Groups
assess whether a financial asset is
credit-impaired. A financial asset is
credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact
on the estimated future cash flows of

the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is
credit-impaired includes the following

observable events:

— significant financial difficulties of
the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a
default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments;

that
into

— it
the borrower will

becoming probable

enter
bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or

— significant changes in the

technological, market, economic

or legal environment that have an

adverse effect on the debtor.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% AR MY aE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (S BEAAIN + LABITTHIR)

2 EEgFHERER#E)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets (continued)

(A)

Policy applicable from 1 April 2018
(continued)

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a
financial asset is written off (either
partially or in full) to the extent
that there is no realistic prospect of
recovery. This is generally the case
when the Groups determine that the
debtor does not have assets or sources
of income that could generate sufficient
cash flows to repay the amounts
subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset
that was previously written off are
recognised as a reversal of impairment
in profit or loss in the period in which
the recovery occurs.

Policy applicable prior to 1 April 2018

Prior to 1 April 2018, an “incurred
loss”
impairment losses on financial assets
not classified as at FVPL (e.g. trade
and other receivables and available-for-
sale). Under the “incurred loss” model,
an impairment loss was recognised

model was used to measure

only when there was

evidence of impairment.

objective
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Notes to the Financial Statements

ot 75 ¥R 2% MY &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (FSBBEIN + LAEITIIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets (continued)

(B)

Policy applicable prior to 1 April 2018
(continued)

Objective evidence of impairment
included:

— significant financial difficulty of
the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a
default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the
debtor will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation;

— significant changes in the
technological, market, economic
or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor; and

— a significant or prolonged decline
in the fair value of an investment
in an equity instrument below its
cost.
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B 7% AR MY aE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (S BEAAIN + LABITTHIR)

EREBEE)
m FEEFEREEZREGE)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets (continued)
(B) Policy applicable prior to 1 April 2018
(continued)

If any such evidence exists, any
impairment loss is determined and
recognised as follows:

—  For trade and other receivables
and other financial assets
carried at amortised cost, the
impairment loss is measured
as the difference between the
financial asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted
at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e. the
effective interest rate computed
at initial recognition of these
financial assets), where the effect
of discounting is material. This
assessment is made collectively
where these financial assets
share similar risk characteristics,
such as similar past due status,
and have not been individually
assessed as impaired. Future
cash flows for financial
assets which are assessed for
impairment collectively are based
on historical loss experience
for assets with credit risk
characteristics similar to the
collective group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

ot 75 ¥R 2% MY &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (FSBBEIN + LAEITIIR)

2 EEgHERER#E)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets (continued)

(B)

Policy applicable prior to 1 April 2018
(continued)

If in a subsequent period the amount of
an impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be linked objectively to
an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised, the impairment
loss is reversed through profit or
loss. A reversal of an impairment loss
shall not result in the financial asset’s
carrying amount exceeding that which
would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in
prior years.

When the recovery of a trade debtor

or other financial assets carried
at amortised cost was considered
doubtful but not remote, associated
impairment losses were recorded
using an allowance account. When
the Group was satisfied that recovery
was remote, the amount considered
irrecoverable was written off against
the gross carrying amount of those
assets directly. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously charged to
the allowance account were reversed
against the allowance account. Other
changes in the allowance account
and subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off directly were

recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% AR MY aE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets (continued)
(B) Policy applicable prior to 1 April 2018
(continued)

For available-for-sale securities,
the cumulative loss that has
the fair
is reclassified to

been recognised in
value reserve
profit or loss. The amount of the
cumulative loss that is recognised
in profit or loss is the difference
between the acquisition cost (net
of any principal repayment and
amortisation) and current fair
value, less any impairment loss on
that asset previously recognised in

profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised
on equity
are not reversed
Any
subsequent increase in the fair
value of such assets is recognised
in other comprehensive income.

in profit or loss
instruments

through profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised
in profit or loss in respect of
available-for-sale equity securities
were not reversed through
profit or loss. Any subsequent
increase in the fair value of such
assets was recognised in other

comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

ot 75 ¥R 2% MY &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (FSBBEIN + LAEITIIR)

2 EEgHERER#E)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(continued)

(if)

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information
are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to identify indications that the
following assets may be impaired or, except
in the case of goodwill, an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or
may have decreased:

—  property, plant and equipment;

— land use rights;
— intangible assets;
—  goodwill; and
— investments in subsidiaries in the
Company’s statement of financial
position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. In addition,
for goodwill, the recoverable amount is
estimated annually whether or not there is
indication of impairment.

m FEEFEREEZREGE)

(if)

HiWEE ZmE

Py EB Ko SN 2 & AR 7
AR EHRETR -
AHETINEE~RTAA
EEREZTR @ A
PR < BERBE(FE
BRINRBEIBEFERL
AREERR D

s

— tEAE
— mEpAE:
— BEB:R

— RARBHFBEAMR
RAZNH B AF
"E -

EEEMPRER LA
B ARG ZEE
ZAWEEE - ol - &
mEEAEMENR
DR FE LRk E
(EYE

ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19 & ¥k

165



166

Notes to the Financial Statements
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (S BEAAIN + LABITTHIR)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m)

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(if)

Impairment of other assets (continued)

The recoverable amount of an asset is
the greater of its fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. Where an asset
does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets,
the recoverable amount is determined
for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows independently

(i.e. a cash generating unit).

— Recognition of impairment losses
An impairment loss is recognised in
profit or loss if the carrying amount

or the cash-generating

exceeds

Impairment

losses recognised in respect of cash-

generating units are allocated first
to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill allocated to the cash-
generating unit (or group of units) and
then, to reduce the carrying amount
of the other assets in the unit (or
group of units) on a pro rata basis,
except that the carrying value of an
asset will not be reduced below its
individual fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable) or value in use

of an asset,
unit to which it belongs,
its recoverable amount.

(if determinable).

Calculation of the recoverable amount
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Notes to the Financial Statements

ot 75 ¥R 2% MY &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (FSBBEIN + LAEITIIR)

2 EEgHERER#E)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(if)

(iii)

Impairment of other assets (continued)

—  Reversals of impairment losses
In respect of assets other than goodwill,
an impairment loss is reversed if there
has been a favourable change in
the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount. An impairment
loss in respect of goodwill is not
reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is
limited to the asset’s carrying amount
that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised
in prior years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to profit or loss in
the year in which the reversals are
recognised.

Interim financial reporting and
impairment

Under the Listing Rules, the Group is
required to prepare an interim financial
report in compliance with HKAS 34, Interim
financial reporting, in respect of the first six
months of the financial year. At the end of
the interim period, the Group applies the
same impairment testing, recognition, and
reversal criteria as it would at the end of the
financial year (see notes 2(m)(i) and 2(m)(ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim
period in respect of goodwill and other
financial assets are not reversed in a
subsequent period. This is the case even
if no loss, or a smaller loss, would have
been recognised had the impairment been
assessed only at the end of the financial
year to which the interim period relates.
Consequently, if the fair value of another
financial asset increases in the remainder of
the annual period, or in any other period
subsequently, the increase is recognised in
other comprehensive income and not profit
or loss.
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B 7% AR MY aE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (S BEAAIN + LABITTHIR)

EREBEE)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(n) Inventories
Inventories are assets which are held for sale in
the ordinary course of business, in the process of
production for such sale or in the form of materials
or supplies to be consumed in the production
process.

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and
net realisable value as follows:

(i)  Manufacturing
Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out
method and comprise all costs of purchase,
costs of conversion and other costs incurred
in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less
the estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sales.

When inventories are sold, the carrying
amount of those inventories is recognised
as an expense in the period in which the
related revenue is recognised. The amount
of any write-down of inventories to net
realisable value and all losses of inventories
are recognised as an expense in the period
the write-down or loss occurs. The amount
of any reversal of any write-down of
inventories is recognised as a reduction in
the amount of inventories recognised as an
expense in the period in which the reversal
occurs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

ot 75 ¥R 2% MY &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (FSBBEIN + LAEITIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(n) Inventories (continued)
(ii) Property development
Cost and net realisable values are
determined as follows:

—  Property under development for sale
The cost of properties under
development for sale comprises
specifically identified cost, including
the acquisition cost of land, aggregate
cost of development, materials
and supplies, wages and other
direct expenses and an appropriate
proportion of overheads. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling
price less estimated costs of completion
and costs to be incurred in selling the

property.

—  Completed property held for resale
In the case of completed properties
developed by the Group, cost is
determined by apportionment of
the total development costs for that
development project, attributable to the
unsold properties. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price
less costs to be incurred in selling the

property.

The cost of completed properties held
for sale comprises all costs of purchase,
costs of conversion and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to
their present location and condition.

When inventories are sold, the carrying
amount of those inventories is recognised
as an expense in the period in which the
related revenue is recognised.
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B 7% AR MY aE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (S BEAAIN + LABITTHIR)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(n)

Inventories (continued)

(if)

(iii)

Property development (continued)

The amount of any write-down of inventories
to net realisable value and all losses of
inventories are recognised as an expense in
the period the write-down or loss occurs.
The amount of any reversal of any write-
down of inventories is recognised as a
reduction in the amount of inventories
recognised as an expense in the period in

which the reversal occurs.

Other contract costs

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are
those costs that the Group incurs to obtain
a contract with a customer that it would not
have incurred if the contract had not been
obtained (for example, an incremental sales
commission). Incremental costs of obtaining
a contract are capitalised when incurred if
the costs relate to revenue which will be
recognised in a future reporting period and
the costs are expected to be recovered.
Other costs of obtaining a contract are
expensed when incurred.

Costs to fulfil a contract are capitalised
if the costs relate directly to an existing
contract or to a specifically identifiable
anticipated contract; generate or enhance
resources that will be used to provide goods
or services in the future; and are expected
to be recovered. Costs that relate directly
to an existing contract or to a specifically
identifiable anticipated contract may include
direct labour, direct materials, allocations
of costs, costs that are explicitly chargeable
to the customer and other costs that are
incurred only because the Group entered
into the contract (for example, payments
to sub-contractors). Other costs of fulfilling
a contract, which are not capitalised as
inventory, property, plant and equipment or
intangible assets, are expensed as incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(n)

(0)

Inventories (continued)

(iii) Other contract costs (continued)
Capitalised contract costs are stated at
cost less accumulated amortisation and

impairment losses. losses
are recognised to the extent that the

carrying amount of the contract cost asset

Impairment

exceeds the net of (i) remaining amount
of consideration that the Group expects to
receive in exchange for the goods or services
to which the asset relates, less (ii) any costs
that relate directly to providing those goods
or services that have not yet been recognised
as expenses.

Amortisation of capitalised contract costs is
charged to profit or loss when the revenue
to which the asset relates is recognised. The
accounting policy for revenue recognition is
set out in note 2(y).

Joint operation

A joint operation is a
whereby the parties that have joint control of
the arrangement have rights to the assets, and

joint arrangement

obligations for the liabilities,
arrangement. Joint control is the contractually
agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,

relating to the

which exists only when decisions about the
relevant activities require unanimous consent of
the parties sharing control.

When a group entity undertakes its activities
under a joint operation, the Group as a joint
operator recognises in relation to its interest in the

joint operation:

— its share of any assets held jointly;

— its share of any liabilities incurred jointly;
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7 3R 3k MY &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (S BEAAIN + LABITTHIR)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(0)

(p)

Joint operation (continued)
— its share of revenue from the sale of the
output by the joint operation; and

— its share of any expenses incurred jointly.

The Group accounts for the assets, liabilities,
revenues and expenses relating to its interest in
a joint operation in accordance with the HKFRSs
applicable to the particular assets, liabilities,
revenues and expenses.

When a group entity transacts with a joint
operation in which a group entity is a joint
operator (such as a sale or contribution of assets),
the Group is considered to be conducting the
transaction with the other parties to the joint
operation, and gains and losses resulting from
the transactions are recognised in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements only to the
extent of other parties’ interests in the joint
operation.

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has
an unconditional right to receive consideration.
A right to receive consideration is unconditional
if only the passage of time is required before
payment of that consideration is due. If revenue
has been recognised before the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration, the
amount is presented as a contract asset (see note
2(q))

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less allowance for credit
losses (see note 2(m)(i)).
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (FSBBEIN + LAEITIIR)

2 EEgHERER#E)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(q)

(r)

Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset is recognised when the Group
recognises revenue (see note 2(y)) before being
unconditionally entitled to the consideration
under the payment terms set out in the contract.
Contract assets are assessed for expected credit
losses (ECL) in accordance with the policy set out
in note 2(m)(i) and are reclassified to receivables
when the right to the consideration has become
unconditional (see note 2(p)).

A contract liability is recognised when the
customer pays
before the Group recognises the related revenue
(see note 2(y)). A contract liability would also be
recognised if the Group has an unconditional right

non-refundable consideration

to receive non-refundable consideration before
the Group recognises the related revenue. In such
cases, a corresponding receivable would also be
recognised (see note 2(p)).

For a single contract with the customers, either
a new contract asset or a net contract liability is
presented. For multiple contracts, contract assets
and contract liabilities of unrelated contracts are
not presented on a net basis.

When the contract includes a significant financing
component, the contract balance includes interest
accrued under the effective interest method (see
note 2(y)).

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured initially
at fair value less transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings
are stated at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. Interest expenses is recognised
in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy
for borrowing costs (see note 2(aa)).
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (S BEAAIN + LABITTHIR)

EREBEE)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(s)

®

(w)

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary
course of business from suppliers.

Trade and other payables are initially recognised
at fair value, and are subsequently stated at
amortised cost unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are repayable
on demand and form an integral part of the
Group’s cash management are also included as a
component of cash and cash equivalents for the
purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement.
Cash and cash equivalents are assessed for ECL in
accordance with the policy set out in note 2(m)

(i).

Employee benefits

(i) Employee leave entitlement
Employee entitlements to annual leave and
long service leave are recognised when they
accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave
and long service leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the end of
the reporting period. Employee entitlements
to sick leave and maternity leave are not
recognised until the time of leave.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(u) Employee benefits (continued)

(if)

(iii)

Pension obligations

Group companies operate a defined
contribution plan under which the Group
pays fixed contributions into a separate entity
on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary
basis. The Group has no legal or constructive
obligations to pay further contributions if the
fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all
employees the benefits relating to employee
service in the current and prior periods. The
contributions are recognised as employee
benefit expense when they are due and are
not reduced by contributions forfeited by
those employees who leave the scheme prior
to vesting fully in the contributions. Prepaid
contributions are recognised as an asset to
the extent that a cash refund or a reduction
in the future payments is available.

Defined benefit retirement plan — Long
service payments

The Group’s net obligation in respect of
long service payments to its employees
upon the termination of their employment
or retirement when the employee fulfils
certain circumstances under the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance is the amount of
future benefit that employees have earned
in return for their service in the current and
prior periods.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Employee benefits (continued)

(u)

(iii)

(iv)

Defined benefit retirement plan — Long
service payments (continued)

The obligation is calculated using the
projected unit credit method, discounted to
its present value and reduced by entitlements
accrued under the Group’s retirement plans
that are attributable to contributions made
by the Group. The discount rate is the
yield at the end of the reporting period on
high quality corporate bonds which have
terms to maturity approximating the terms
of the related liability. The actuarial gains
or losses are credited or charged to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income in the current
period.

Other compensations

Other directors’ and employees’ compensations
are recorded as a liability and charged
to profit or loss when the Group is
contractually obliged or when there is a
past practice that has created a constructive
obligation and the associated services are
rendered by the employees.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(v)

Share-based payments

The Company operated an equity-settled, share-
based compensation plan,
Company received services from employees in

under which the

return for the granting of equity instruments
(options) of the Company. The fair value of share
options granted to employees is recognised as an
employee cost with a corresponding increase in
a capital reserve within equity. The total amount
to be expensed is determined by reference to the
fair value of the options granted:

— including

any market performance

conditions;

— excluding the impact of any service and
non-market performance vesting conditions
(for example, profitability, sales growth
targets and remaining an employee of the
entity over a specified time period); and

— excluding the impact of any non-vesting
conditions (for example, the requirement for
employees to save).

Non-market vesting conditions are included in
assumptions about the number of options that are
expected to vest. The total expense is recognised
over the vesting period, which is the period over
which all of the specified vesting conditions are to
be satisfied. At the end of each reporting period,
the entity revises its estimates of the number of
options that are expected to vest based on the
non-marketing vesting conditions. It recognises the
impact of the revision to the original estimates,
if any, in profit or loss, with a corresponding
adjustment to equity.

The cash received for the shares issued when the
options are exercised is credited to share capital
(nominal value) and share premium, net of any
directly attributable transaction costs.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (S BEAAIN + LABITTHIR)

EREBEE)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(v)

(w)

Share-based payments (continued)

The grant by the Company of options over its
equity instruments to employees of a subsidiary
in the Group is treated as a capital contribution.
The fair value of employee services received,
measured by reference to the grant date fair
value, is recognised over the vesting period as an
increase to investment in the subsidiary, with a
corresponding credit to equity.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax
and movements in deferred tax assets and
liabilities. Current tax and movements in deferred
tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit
or loss except to the extent that they relate
to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the
relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the vyear, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% 3R M R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (FSBBEIN + LAEITIIR)

2 EBEESHERER#E)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(w)

Income tax (continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred
tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the asset can be
utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that
may support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal of
existing taxable temporary differences, provided
those differences relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse either in the same period as
the expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss
arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried
back or forward. The same criteria are adopted
when determining whether existing taxable
temporary differences support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses
and credits, that is, those differences are taken
into account if they relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in
which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred
tax assets and liabilities are those temporary
differences arising from goodwill not deductible
for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets or
liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable
profit (provided they are not part of a business
combination), and temporary differences relating
to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in
the case of taxable differences, the Group controls
the timing of the reversal and it is probable that
the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future, or in the case of deductible differences,
unless it is probable that they will reverse in the
future.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (S BEAAIN + LABITTHIR)

EREBEE)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(w)

Income tax (continued)

Where investment properties are carried at their
fair values in accordance with the accounting
policy set out in note 2(h), the amount of deferred
tax recognised is measured using the tax rates
that would apply on sale of those assets at their
carrying value at the reporting date unless the
property is depreciable and is held within a
business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the property over time, rather than
through sale. In all other cases, the amount of
deferred tax recognised is measured based on the
expected manner of realisation or settlement of
the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities,
using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow the related tax benefit to be
utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the
extent that it becomes probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the
distribution of dividends are recognised when the
liability to pay the related dividends is recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (FSBBEIN + LAEITIIR)

2 EEgHERER#E)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(w)

Income tax (continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances,
and movements therein, are presented separately
from each other and are not offset. Current tax
assets are offset against current tax liabilities, and
deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities,
if the Company or the Group has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and
liabilities, the Company or the Group
intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and
liabilities, if they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on
either:

— the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in
each future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current
tax assets and settle the current tax
liabilities on a net basis or realise and
settle simultaneously.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% AR MY aE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (S BEAAIN + LABITTHIR)

EREBEE)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(x)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group
or the Company has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of
money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle
the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(y)

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue
when it arises from the sale of goods, the
provision of services or the use by others of the
Group’s assets under leases in the ordinary course
of the Group’s business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a
product is transferred to the customer, at the
amount of promised consideration to which the
Group is expected to be entitled, excluding those
amounts collected on behalf of third parties.
Revenue excludes value added tax or other
sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade
discounts.

Where the contract contains
component which provides a significant financing

a financing

benefit to the customer for more than 12 months,
revenue is measured at the present value of
discounted using the
discount rate that would be reflected in a separate

the amount receivable,
financing transaction with the customer, and
interest income is accrued separately under the
effective interest method. Where the contract
contains a financing component which provides
a significant financing benefit to the group,
revenue recognised under that contract includes
the interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method. The
group takes advantage of the practical expedient
in paragraph 63 of HKFRS 15 and does not adjust
the consideration for any effects of a significant
financing component if the period of financing is
12 months or less.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(y) Revenue and other income (continued)

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other

income recognition policies are as follows:

(i)

(if)

Sales of manufacturing goods

Revenue from the sales of goods is
recognised when the customer takes
possession of and accepts the products. Any
advance payments received from customers
prior to delivery of goods are recorded as
contract liabilities (see note 2(q)).

In the comparative period, revenue from
sales of manufacturing goods was recognised
when the goods are delivered to the
customer, the customer has accepted the
products and the related risks and rewards
of ownership and collectability of the related

receivables is reasonably assured.

Sales of properties

Revenue arising from the sale of properties
developed for sale in the ordinary course
of business is recognised when legal
assignment is completed, which is the point
in time when the customer has the ability
to direct the use of the property and obtain
substantially all of the remaining benefits
of the property. Deposits and instalments
received on properties sold prior to the date
of revenue recognition are included in the
statement of financial position under contract
liabilities (see note 2(q)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

ot 75 ¥R 2% MY &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (FSBBEIN + LAEITIIR)

2 EEgHERER#E)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(y) Revenue and other income (continued)

(if)

Sales of properties (continued)

When residential properties are marketed by
the Group while the property is still under
construction, the Group may offer a discount
compared to the listed sales price, provided
the customer agrees to pay the balance of
the consideration early. In such cases, if the
advance payments are regarded as providing
a significant financing benefit to the Group,
interest expense arising from the adjustment
of time value of money will be accrued
by the Group during the period between
the payment date and the completion date
of legal assignment. This accrual increases
the balance of the contract liability during
the period of construction, and therefore
increases the amount of revenue recognised
when control of the completed property is
transferred to the customer. The interest is
expensed as accrued unless it is eligible to
be capitalised under HKAS 23, Borrowing
costs, in accordance with the policies set out
in note 2(aa).

In the comparative period, revenue arising
from the sale of properties held for sale is
recognised upon the later of the signing of
the sale and purchase agreement and the
completion of the properties, which is taken
to be the point in time when the risks and
rewards of ownership of the property have
passed to the buyer.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% AR MY aE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (S BEAAIN + LABITTHIR)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(y)

Revenue and other income (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Rental income from operating leases

income from operating leases
is recognised in profit or loss in equal
instalments over the periods covered by
the lease term, except where an alternative

Rental

basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the use of the
leased asset.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues
under the effective interest method using
the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life
of the financial asset to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset. For financial
assets measured at amortised cost or FVOCI
(recycling) that are not credit-impaired, the
effective interest rate is applied to the gross
carrying amount of the asset. For credit-
impaired financial assets, the effective
interest rate is applied to the amortised
cost (i.e. gross carrying amount net of loss
allowance) of the asset (see note 2(m)(i)).
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2 EEgHERER#E)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(z) Translation of foreign currencies

(i)

(if)

Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements of
each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the Company’s
functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions during the year
are translated at the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Exchange gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that
are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated using
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. The transaction date is the
date on which the Group initially recognises
such non-monetary assets or liabilities. Non-
monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies that are stated at
fair value are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair
value was measured.

(2 HEBRE

(i)

(if)
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (S BEAAIN + LABITTHIR)

EREBEE)
SR E ()

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(2

Translation of foreign currencies (continued)

(if)

Transactions and balances (continued)

The results of operations with functional
currency other than Hong Kong dollars are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rates approximating the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Statement of financial position
items are translated into Hong Kong dollar
at the closing foreign exchange rates at the
end of the reporting period. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity
reserve. Goodwill is translated at the foreign

separately in the translation
exchange rate that applied at the date of
acquisition of the operation outside Hong
Kong.

On disposal of an operation with functional
currency other than Hong Kong dollars,
the cumulative amount of the exchange
differences relating to that operation is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss when
the profit or loss on disposal is recognised.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(aa)

(ab)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of an
asset which necessarily takes a substantial period
of time to get ready for its intended use or sale
are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset.
Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period
in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of
the cost of a qualifying asset commences when
expenditure for the asset is being incurred,
borrowing costs are being incurred and activities
that are necessary to prepare the asset for its
intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation
of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale
are interrupted or complete.

Related parties
(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the
Group;

(i) has significant influence over the
Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s
parent.

(@)

(ab)
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EREBEE)
@b) EREAL(E)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(@ab) Related parties (continued)

(b)

An entity is related to the Group if any of
the following conditions applies:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vii)

The entity and the Group are members
of the same group (which means that
each parent, subsidiary and fellow

subsidiary is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a member
of a group of which the other entity is
a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Group or an entity related to
the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (a).

identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the entity or
is a member of the key management

A person

personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).
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2 EEgHERER#E)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(@ab) Related parties (continued)

(ac)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of
the following conditions applies: (continued)

(viii) The entity, or any member of a Group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are
those family members who may be expected to
influence, or be influenced by, that person in their
dealings with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the financial statements,
are identified from the financial information
provided regularly to the Group’s most senior
executive management for the purposes of
allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of

business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are
not aggregated for financial reporting purposes
unless the segments have similar economic
characteristics and are similar in respect of the
nature of products and services, the nature
of production processes, the type or class
of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may
be aggregated if they share a majority of these
criteria.
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BEEGHBEE)
(ad) DRI EEET

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(ad) Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the
Group’s business, the operations and cash flows
of which can be clearly distinguished from the
rest of the Group and which represents a separate
major line of business or geographical area of
operations, or is part of a single coordinated plan
to dispose of a separate major line of business or
geographical area of operations, or is a subsidiary
acquired exclusively with a view to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs
upon disposal or when the operation meets the
criteria to be classified as held for sale, if earlier.
It also occurs if the operation is abandoned.

Where an operation is classified as discontinued,
a single amount is presented on the face of the
statement of profit or loss, which comprises:

— the post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued
operation; and

— the post-tax gain or loss recognised on the
measurement to fair value less costs to sell,
or on the disposal, of the assets or disposal
group(s) constituting the discontinued
operation.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(@

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: currency risk, interest rate risk,
credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall
risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by the Group’s
Finance and Accounting department (“Group
F&A”) under policies approved by the Board of
Directors. Group F&A identifies, evaluates and
mitigates financial risks in close co-operation
with the Group’s operating units. The Board is
responsible for overall risk management which
covers currency risk, interest rate risk, credit risk,
use of derivative financial instruments and cash
management.

The Group’s exposure to the aforesaid risks
and the financial risk management policies and
practices used by the Group to manage these risks
are described below.

(i)  Currency risk

The Group operates primarily in Hong Kong
and the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”) and most of its business transactions,
assets and liabilities are denominated in
HK$, United States dollars (“US$”) and
Renminbi (“RMB”). Currency risk arises
from commercial transactions, recognised
assets and liabilities and net investments in
foreign operations that are denominated in
a currency that is not the entity’s functional
currency. As HK$ are pegged against US$,
management considers that the Group is
mainly exposed to foreign currency risk with
respect to RMB. Management will continue
to monitor foreign exchange exposure and
will take measures to minimise the currency
translation risk. The conversion rate of RMB
to foreign currencies is subject to the rules
and regulations of foreign exchange control
promulgated by the PRC Government.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(@ Financial risk factors (continued)
(i)  Currency risk (continued)
The following table details the currency
portfolio of the Group’s monetary assets/
(liabilities) denominated in a currency other
than the functional currency of the entity to
which they relate. For presentation purposes,
the amounts of the portfolio are expressed
in HK$, translated using the spot rate at the
end of the reporting period:

AETTIIR)

3 HEEREEREMIAQNTE

(%)

@ HBEBREEGE)

(i)

h s = B ()

TRFAJAEE AR
EREEEAINEAM
EERBUZERBEER
E/(Af)2E¥Es -
RYIRAE WEEZ
& B DA TR 5 HI R B A [
K WIABTTIR -

At 31 March 2019
—E-hAF=A=+—H

Carrying

value HK$ Us$ RMB Others
R & B Xt  AR¥ Hith
Note $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Mt & Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr

Trade and bills receivable 2 5 & Z & fE UL

and other receivables RN HA R
LB 5K 14 320,277 3,418 278,451 38,333 75
Other financial assets HemEE 15 19,325 — 19,325 — —
Cash and bank deposits 38 & & 175 % 18 224,030 27,182 161,833 34,057 958
Trade payables B S EMIRR 22 (155,469) (33,652) (81,393) (40,397) (27)

Accruals and other EErE R R

payables HAth & 154 R 3R 22 437,151)  (60,561)  (66,895) (309,695) —
Bank borrowings RITEE 23 (620,342) (620,342) — — —
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE 3 H¥XEREEREBRIAEAFE
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) (&)
(@ Financial risk factors (continued) @ BERRBREZEE)
(i)  Currency risk (continued) () HhEERE R (E)
At 31 March 2018
—E-N\F=ZA=1+—H
Carrying
value HK$ uUS$ RMB Others
IR & BT ET  AR® HAth
Note $'000 $'000 $/000 $'000 $'000
Bt aE T SETE SETE T SETE
Trade and bills receivable 25 K& Z & fEIL
and other receivables R 5% R E At fE
IR 3K 14 442,675 2910 379,547 60,218 —
Other financial assets HihemEE 15 18,916 — 18,916 — —
Cash and bank deposits 3 & & #1777 5 18 272,153 92,852 140,913 37,499 889
Trade payables B 5 R T 22 (208,737)  (36,419) (135,527)  (36,423) (368)
Accruals and other EETER R
payables HA & IR 3R 22 (411,297)  (61,837)  (12,803) (336,657) —
Bank borrowings RITEE 23 (625,902) (625,902) — — —

At 31 March 2019, if HK$ had weakened/
strengthened by 5% against the RMB with all
other variables held constant, post-tax profit
for the year and retained earnings would
have decreased/increased approximately
(2018: $753,000 decreased/
increased), mainly as a result of the net
foreign exchange gains/losses on translation
of Renminbi-denominated trade and other
receivables, cash and bank deposits and

$3,385,000

trade and other payables.

RZZE—hF=ZA=+
—B  WHEHAZHEE
BEHTE  BILTHAR
B B E5%  FE
i 1% 5 A A8 Rk 12 0
#93,385,0007T (ZZE — )\
F w21 HN1753,000
To) e W EEHBRE
AREFBEZESRE
fth FEUR IR 3R B & K& IR
TERRES R EAME
IR KT E £ 2 F INE
W, B 18 o
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (S BEAAIN + LABITTHIR)

BREREEREMIEAFE

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(@)

Financial risk factors (continued)

(i)

(if)

Currency risk (continued)

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group’s profit
after tax (and retained profits) and other
components of equity that would arise
assuming that the change in foreign exchange
rate of HK$ against the RMB had occurred
at the end of the reporting period and had
been applied to re-measure those financial
instruments held by the Group which expose
the Group to foreign currency risk, including
inter-company payables and receivables
with the Group which are denominated in a
currency other than the functional currencies
of the lender or the borrower. The analysis
is performed on the same basis for 2018.

Interest rate risk

Monetary assets/liabilities acquired at
variable rates and at fixed rates expose the
Group to cash flow interest rate risk and
fair value interest rate risk respectively. The
Group’s interest rate risk arises from bank
borrowings and bank deposits which are
primarily issued at variable rates.
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3 BEXEREEREBMIEAFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(@ Financial risk factors (continued)
(i) Interest rate risk (continued)

The following table details the interest rate
profile of the Group interest-bearing assets
and liabilities at the end of the reporting

period:

(&)

(@)

At 31 March 2019

BEREBRREE(E)
(i) F=Epz(E)

TRFAIRHKEHRA
SEHREERAGER
K2R

At 31 March 2018

“E-hE=A=1+-H —T-\F=RA=1+-H
Effective Effective
Note interest rate % $’000 interest rate % $'000
ERA=E BIRAx
i % T % T
Fixed rate interest-hearing EREHE
assets: EE:
Time deposits EHRER 18 2.06% 51,579 1.38% 1,342
Key management EZERE
insurance contracts REBELH 15 2.22% 19,325 2.22% 18,916
Variable rate FRAREE
interest-bearing EE/(Bf):
assets/(liabilities):
Cash and bank deposits ROTER 0.01% 171,309 0.01% 269,134
Bank borrowings RITEE 23 4.17% (620,342) 3.24% (625,902)
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (S BEAAIN + LABITTHIR)

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(@)

Financial risk factors (continued)

(if)

Interest rate risk (continued)

At 31 March 2019, with all other variables
held constant, if the rate had
increased/decreased by 50 basis points, the
corresponding increase/decrease in interest

interest

expenses on bank borrowings and interest
income from bank deposits at variable rates
will result in a net decrease/increase in the
Group’s post-tax profit by approximately
$1,733,000/$2,573,000 (2018: decrease/
increase by $1,267,000/$2,586,000).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group’s profit
after tax (and retained profits) and other
components of equity that would arise
assuming that the change in interest rates had
occurred at the end of the reporting period
and had been applied to re-measure those
financial instruments held by the Group
which expose the Group to fair value interest
rate risk. In respect of the exposure to cash
flow interest rate risk arising from floating
rate non-derivative instruments held by the
Group at the end of the reporting period,
the impact on the Group’s profit after tax
(and retained profits) and other components
of equity is estimated as an annualised
impact on interest expense or income of
such a change in interest rates. The analysis
is performed on the same basis for 2018.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (FSBBEIN + LAEITIIR)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(@ Financial risk factors (continued)

(iii)

Credit risk

Credit risk to the risk that a
counterparty will default on its contractual
obligations resulting in a financial loss to
the Group and is managed on a group

refers

basis. The Group’s credit risk mainly arises
from financial assets and deposits with
banks and financial institutions, as well as
credit exposures to customers,
outstanding trade and other receivables.
For banks and financial institutions, only

including

independent parties with high credit rating
are accepted.

Trade receivables and contract assets

The Group’s exposure to credit risk
is influenced mainly by the individual
characteristics of each customer rather
than the industry or country in which the
customers operate and therefore significant
concentrations of credit risk primarily
arise when the Group has significant
exposure to individual customers. There is
a concentration of credit risk in respect of
trade and bills receivable as the Group’s
sales are made primarily to a few key
customers. At 31 March 2019, the trade and
bills receivable from five largest customers
accounted for approximately 86% (2018:
85%) of the total trade and bills receivable.

3 BHEEREERSBMIEATEE
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(@)

Financial risk factors (continued)

(iii)

Credit risk (continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets
(continued)

Individual credit evaluations are performed
on all customers requiring credit over a
certain amount. These evaluations focus
on the customer’s past history of making
payments when due and current ability
to pay, and take into account information
specific to the customer as well as pertaining
to the economic environment in which
the customer operates. Trade receivables
are due within 90 days from the date of
billing. Normally, the Group does not obtain

collateral from customers.

The credit risk on cash at banks is limited
because the counterparties are banks with
high credit ratings assigned by international
credit rating agencies. Transactions in
relation to derivative financial instruments,
if any, are only carried out with financial
institutions of high reputation. The Group
has policies that limit the amount of credit

exposure to any one financial institution.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(@ Financial risk factors (continued)

(iv)

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies
maintaining the
availability of funding through an adequate
amount of credit facilities. The Group aims
to maintain flexibility in funding by keeping

sufficient cash and

credit lines available at all times.

The table below analyses the Group’s
financial liabilities classified into relevant
maturity groupings based on the remaining
period at the end of the reporting period to
the contractual maturity date. The amounts
disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows. Balances due
within twelve months equal their carrying
balances as the impact of discounting is not

significant.
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BHEERBEEREMIAAFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE 3
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(@ Financial risk factors (continued)
(iv) Liquidity risk (continued)

(%)

@ HBEBREEGE)

(ivi RBESRARGE)

Less than Between Between
1 year or 1 and 2 and
on demand 2 years 5 years

DR—F
RRER —ZEZEWMFE Z—EHF
$’000 $’000 $’000
Fr T Fr

At 31 March 2019 R=F-NE=A=+—H

Trade payables B 5 R WR R 155,469 — —
Accruals and other payables &5 & F [ B J& 7 1R 5% 380,536 — —
Bank borrowings RITEE 90,448 475,000 281,768
626,453 475,000 281,768
Less than  Between Between
1 year or 1 and 2 and
on demand 2 years 5 years

PR —F
HEEFR —EMFE —ERF
$000 $'000 $000
T T T

At 31 March 2018 RZF-N\F=A=+—H

Trade payables B Z R WIR R 208,737 — —
Accruals and other payables — FE&H & F3 [ B J& 7 1R 5% 333,556 — —
Bank borrowings RITEE 154,056 319,922 190,983
696,349 319,922 190,983
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern in order to provide returns
for equity shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital
structure.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Group may adjust the amount of
dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to
reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group
monitors capital on the basis of the net gearing
ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt divided
by total capital. Net debt is calculated as total
bank borrowings less cash and bank deposits.
Total capital is calculated as the total equity as
shown in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

The Group’s strategy, which is unchanged from
prior year, is to maintain an acceptable net gearing
ratio. The net gearing ratios at 31 March 2019 and
2018 are as follows:

3 BHEREEREMIEAFE

(&)

(b)

EsREBER
rEEERERZBERRE
AEERGBREEELE
LEZEN  BEDITBAT
REIFR - [R5 B At A &5 4E
EZN G YHFREZE
KGR -

B EABRXNTRRZK
B RETRR B - #17
ML EEEAREER -

HEEANEMAR % A&H
MAFRITEELXERES
AR o b H RIRIROF E EREIRIA
MERGE - FEEERRT
EERBRESRRITER
BMEARREZEEWSEARM
BRI KRFAF) o

AEEY ERREFTE - B
=R 5 A 2 R IR T (S
NE=A=t+-B2 BRI
BEELERNAT:

2019 2018

—E-hE —ET-)N\F

$’000 $°000

Fr Tt

Total bank borrowings RITRIEER 620,342 625,902
Less: Cash and bank deposits IR RIBITER (224,030) (272,153)
Net borrowings FEE 396,312 353,749
Total equity HEmEE 1,166,860 1,188,282
Net gearing ratio FRITEEL X 34% 30%
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(©

Fair value estimation

The carrying value less impairment provision for
trade and bills receivable and trade payables are
a reasonable approximation of their fair values.
The fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure
purposes is estimated by discounting the future
contractual cash flows at the current market
interest rate that is available to the Group for
similar financial instruments.

The table below analyses financial instruments
carried at fair value, by valuation method. The
different levels have been defined as follows:

—  Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1).

— Inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly (that is, as
prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from
prices) (Level 2).

— Inputs for the asset or liability that are not
based on observable market data (that is,
unobservable inputs) (Level 3).

The Group has a team headed by the Assistant
Accounting Director performing valuations for the
insurance contracts which are categorised into
Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. A valuation
report with analysis of changes in fair value
measurement is prepared by the team at each
interim and annual reporting date, and is reviewed
and approved by the Chief Financial Officer.
Discussion of the valuation process and results
with the Chief Financial Officer is held twice a
year, to coincide with the reporting dates.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE 3 H¥XEREEREBRIAEAFE
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) (#&)
(¢ Fair value estimation (continued) © 2RDAFEMGE)
The following table presents the Group’s financial R-ZB-NAF=R=1+—8
assets that are measured at fair value on a AEBEUKLEMEEBAFLE
recurring basis at 31 March 2019: AFEERZEREENT:
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
$’000 $'000
T Tt
Assets: BE:
Level 3 E=[=
— Key management insurance @~ — EZEIEERE
contracts (note 15) & #) (M 5E15) 19,325 18,916
19,325 18,916

The fair value of financial instruments traded in
active markets is based on quoted market prices at
the reporting date. A market is regarded as active
if quoted prices are readily and regularly available
from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group,
pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those
prices represent actual and regularly occurring
market transactions on an arm’s length basis.
The quoted market price used for financial assets
held by the Group is the current bid price. These
instruments are included in Level 1.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market (for example, over-the
counter derivatives)
valuation techniques. These valuation techniques

maximise the use of observable market data where

is determined by using

it is available and rely as little as possible on entity
specific estimates. If all significant inputs required
to fair value an instrument are observable, the
instrument is included in Level 2.

EEEmSEECEMTAZ
NFERBRERZTSRE
FIWR o fied ¥R B AT BB N S HTE
ERXPH - RPE - &1L
EAAL EERBEXESE
RIEBES  MRERERKRE
RIRGEREETZERNE
MBS - ZHERER
AR - AEBBEZEREE
ZHEHRERERETRE -
HETABREESEE -

REREERMBEE 2/ T
B (Bl iMTETR) 2R F
BEFNAGERNESE - A
B & 25 AR ER 5 BUR
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BREREEREMIEAFE

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(c) Fair value estimation (continued)

If one or more of the significant inputs is not
based on observable market data, the instrument

is included in Level 3.

Specific valuation techniques used to value

financial instruments include:

Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for
similar instruments.

The fair value of structured foreign exchange
forward products
Monte Carlo simulation, taking into account
of observable market parameters such as

is determined using

forward exchange rates, volatility and interest
rates at the reporting date.

Other techniques, such as discounted cash
flow analysis including dividend growth
model, are used to determine fair value for
the remaining financial instruments.

There were no transfers of financial assets/
liabilities between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3
fair value hierarchy classifications.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE 3 HEEREERESMIAEATE

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) (&)

(¢) Fair value estimation (continued) © 2RDAFEMGE)
Information about Level 3 fair value EBRE=ZEBLrFEFTEEH
measurements

Significant
Valuation unobservable Weighted
techniques inputs Range average
& 18 i FABEERNEE i In¥EFEH
Key management Discounted cash  Discount rate 2.0%—2.65% 2.22%
insurance contracts flow model (2018: 2.0%—2.65%) (2018: 2.22%)
EZEBRERREAN MRREREBZE PHX 2.0%-2.65% 2.22%
—T-)N\F: (ZE—N\%F:
2.0%2.65%) 2.22%)

The fair value of insurance contracts is determined
using the discounted cash flow model. The
duration of the cash flows and the specific
timing of inflows and outflows are determined by
conditions in accordance with the terms of the
respective insurance contracts. The periodic cash
flow is estimated as gross redemption value and
interest income less surrender charges. The series
of periodic net income for the contracting periods
is then discounted. The fair value measurement
is negatively correlated to the discount rate. As
at 31 March 2019, it is estimated that with all
other variables held constant, a decrease/increase
in discount rate by 1% would have increased/
decreased the Group’s other comprehensive
income by $2,697,000 (2018: $2,829,000)

REBEHNZ AFETIFRBAR
ReRELZBET RENE
Z HAR DA RO A KO i 2
EREDRBESRBRE L 2K
HRETE - THBREESRENMEE
AEER EE LB W AR
RIRER - a0HEz—ER
TEHFWRATIFAIE - 2F
B EHBERIRABE -
R-EBE—h&E=A=+—8"
MEEMEEMEHERIET
ZIERT - BRIR R A1 0
%M, B AEE 2 H
ft, 2 U A 2,697,000 (= F
—/\%F :2,829,0007C) °
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BHEERBEEREMIAAFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(©

Fair value estimation (continued) AFEEF(E)
Information about Level 3 fair value EBRE=ZEBAYETEEH
measurements (continued) (#)
The movement during the period in the balance HARZEE=-MAFEFE
of these Level 3 fair value measurements are as EREBHIT
follows:
2019 2018
—E2-hEF —E-N\F
$’000 $°000
T Tt
Key management insurance BEZEEEREEL
contracts
Beginning of the year F ) 18,916 18,294
Interest income recognised in RIERERZ
profit or loss BB A 407 399
Net unrealised gain recognised in KR E A2 EKA
other comprehensive income HRZFREE
during the year W &5 2 223
End of the year FE 19,325 18,916
There were no gains or losses for the years RZE-—NEFERZT—NF=
included in profit or loss for these assets held at A=+— Fﬁ?#ﬁé?]z/xﬁ
31 March 2019 and 2018. WaRdEEBEERERA -
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ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and

are based on historical experience and other factors,

including expectations of future events that are believed

to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions

concerning the future. The resulting accounting

estimates may be different from the actual results. The

estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of

causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts

of assets and liabilities in future years are discussed
below.

(@)

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment
The Group’s management
estimated useful lives and related depreciation for

determines the

its property, plant and equipment. The estimates
are based on the historical experience of the
actual economic lives of property, plant and
equipment of similar nature and functions. Actual
economic lives may differ from estimated useful
lives. Management will adjust the depreciation
where the useful lives are estimated to be different
from the previous estimates. It will write-off or
write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic
assets that have been abandoned or sold. Periodic
reviews could result in a change in depreciable
lives and therefore depreciation expense in future
periods.

4
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B AT R £k 5 ()

4

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES
(continued)

(b)

(o)

d

Impairment of receivables

The Group makes allowance for impairment
of receivables based on an assessment of the
recoverability of the receivables. Allowance for
impairment is applied to receivables where events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the
balances may not be collectible. The identification
of impairment of receivables requires the use of
judgement and estimates. Where the expectations
are different from the original estimates,
differences will impact the carrying value of

such
receivables and the impairment loss recognised.

Write-down of inventories

Inventories are written down to the net realisable
value based on an assessment of the realisability
of inventories. Write-downs on inventories
are recorded where events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the balances may not
be realised. The identification of write-downs
requires the use of judgement and estimates.
Where the expectation is different from the
original estimate, such difference will impact the

carrying value and write-downs of inventories.

Income taxes and other regulatory provisions
The Group is subject to income tax and other
regulatory provisions in various jurisdictions.
There are transactions for which the ultimate
determination of such provisions is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. Where the
final outcome of these matters is different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the income tax, deferred
tax and other regulatory provisions in the period
in which such determination is made.
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4 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES
(continued)

(e)

Valuation of properties under development for
sale

The net realisable value of properties under
development are determined by estimating the
fair value of such properties as if they were
completed in accordance with the relevant
development plan and then deducting from that
amount the estimated costs to complete the
construction, financing costs and a reasonable
profit margin. The valuation require judgement
as to the anticipated sale prices by reference
to recent sale transactions in nearby locations,
rate of new property sales, marketing costs and
the expected costs to completion of properties,
the legal and regulatory framework and general
market conditions. The Group’s estimates may be
inaccurate and estimates may need to be adjusted

in later periods.

4 EEtHERMGE(E)
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5 SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group’s chief operating decision-maker reviews the
Group’s internal reports periodically in order to assess
performance and allocate resources. Management has
determined the operating segments based on these

reports.

The Group is organised on a worldwide basis into three
(2018: three) major operating segments. They are (i)
metal and plastic business; (ii) electronic manufacturing

services business; and (iii) real estate business.

consumer and services business was disposed of on 29
March 2018 and was accounted for as a discontinued

operation during the year ended 31 March 2018.

Management considers the business from both a
geographic and products and services perspective.
From a products and services perspective, management
assesses the performance of metal and plastic business,
electronic manufacturing services business, real estate
business and discontinued operations. In addition,
there is further evaluation on a geographic basis
(Japan, Hong Kong, the PRC, Asia (excluding Japan,
Hong Kong and the PRC), North America and Western
Europe). Management assesses the performance of the
operating segments based on operating profit. Segment
information provided to management for decision
making is measured in a manner consistent with that

in the financial statements.

A measurement of segment assets and liabilities is not
provided regularly to the Group’s most senior executive
management and accordingly, no segment assets or

liabilities information is presented.
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5  SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 5 oMEEE)
The segment results for the year ended 31 March 2019 BHE_ZE-NAF=ZA=+—AHLLF
are as follows: BEZDEELWMAT :
2019
ZE-NE
Discontinued
Continuing operations operations Total
B&LE
BELYRY RExHK B
Electronic
Metal and  manufacturing Real
plastic services estate
business business  business Others  Sub-total
LeER ETEX EitE
2% RI%H £% Hit it
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fr i i i i i i
Segment revenue AHBA
Revenue from external customers PERSEI A ON 1,348,230 1,077,231 225,708 — 2,651,169 — 2,651,169
Inter-segment revenue P EHRERA 42,402 - - - 42,402 - 42,402
Reportable segment revenue REFBUA 1,390,632 1,077,231 225,708 — 2,693,571 — 2,693,571
Gross profit £ 260,343 57719 122,135 — 440197 — 440197
Distribution and selling expenses and R HEE AR
general and administrative expenses  — & RITHE (93,325) (22,356)  (17,060) (49)  (132,790) - (132,790)
Other income/gains Etg A/ a 4,938 795 1,799 - 7,532 - 7,532
Net valuation gain on investment REMZFRENS IR
properties - - 898 - 898 — 898
Operating profit/(loss) Besi/ (58) 171,956 36,158 107,772 (49) 315,837 — 315,837
Operating profit/(loss) includes: BERAN /(BB EE:
Depreciation il 48,397 2,497 769 — 51,663 - 51,663
Amortisation of land use rights THEREBHE 290 63 120 - 473 473
Amortisation of intangible assets BVEELEH 1,322 - - - 1,322 1,322
Write-down/(reversal of write-down) ~ RER B HEFEM A/
of obsolete and slow-moving (oA 2 %)
inventories 1,094 (1,094) — — — —
(Reversal of)frecognition of loss EIRRENERER
allowance on trade receivables Z(B&)/ %R (709) 17 - - (692) (692)
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B 7% AR MY aE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B SBFAAIN + LAAETTIIR)

5

SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 5 2B®EE)
The segment results for the year ended 31 March 2018 BE_ZT-\F=A=1+—HIL*F
are as follows: BZRBEBWT
2018
“F-N\F
Discontinued
Continuing operations operations Total
B&LE
Electronic
Metal and  manufacturing Real
plastic services estate
business business  business Others  Sub-total
ikl ETEX  BhE
EY RI%H% % it Nt
$'000 $/000 $/000 $/000 $/000 $'000 $'000
T T T T T T T
Segment revenue AHBA
Revenue from external customers RENHEPZBA 1,574,973 1294778 48,540 419 2918710 25,654 2,944,364
Revenue among continuing and BERBRILE
discontinued operations BEBRRA 1,170 = = = 1,170 24 1,412
1,576,143 1,294,778 48,540 419 2,919,880 25,896 2,945,776
Inter-segment revenue A E KA 52,149 — — — 52,149 — 52,149
Reportable segment revenue BEABRA 1,628,292 1,294,778 48,540 419 2,972,029 25,896 2,997,925
Gross profit/(loss) £/ (£8) 320,279 83,505 18,778 24 422,786 (24191) 398,595
Distribution and selling expenses and ~ A #HREHEEA R
general and administrative expenses —-RROTBER (118,015) (29,599) (18,817) (131) (166,562) (10,625) (177,187)
Other income/gains and (losses) Hil A /BB R (EE) 3,334 928 1,626 1 5,889 (92) 5,797
Net valuation gain on investment RENEMERS TR
properties = = 2,078 = 2,078 = 2,078
Operating profit/loss) B8R/ (BR) 205,598 54,834 3,665 94 264,191 (34,908) 229,283
Operating profit/(loss) includes: gewd/ (B8 ak:
Depreciation ik 45,417 3,345 357 - 49,119 5,871 54,990
Amortisation of land use rights THRAEEH 288 64 120 = 472 — 472
Amortisation of intangible assets BEVEE B 1,293 — — — 1,293 2,400 3,693

KARRIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED EZFIBIFRZRBR A A
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (FSBBEIN + LAEITIIR)

SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 5 oMEEE)
A reconciliation of operating profit to profit before L RNFAMERB AR :
taxation is provided as follows:
2019 2018
ZE-NF —ZT-N\F
$’000 $'000
T T
Operating profit from continuing KEFBEREEBZ
operations 5 i 315,837 264,191
Finance income ZE AN 2,743 1,542
Finance costs B 75 B AR (19,187) (14,883)
Share of profits of an associate JEE {5 Bt i 2 =)0 A 693 872
Profit before taxation from continuing R BB L& XK 2
operations B 35 Bl A 300,086 251,722
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (S BEAAIN + LABITTHIR)

5

SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

The following table sets out information about the
geographical location of (i) the Group’s revenue and
(ii) the Group’s land use rights, property, plant and
equipment, investment properties, intangible assets
and investment in an associate (“specified non-current
assets”). The geographical location of revenue is
based on the country in which the final destination
of shipment is located or services are provided. The
geographical location of the specified non-current
assets is based on the physical location of the asset,
in the case of land use rights, property, plant and
equipment, investment properties and the location of
the operations to which they are allocated, in the case
of intangible assets and investment in an associate.

The Group's revenue
(Continuing operations)

5

7 E | E (E)
TRINEOANEE 2 WA K (i) A< &
B LifERE - Bx - BERR
B REVE BREELRNEZ
RAZWE(HEEFRBDEED T
R 2 B o WA P[RR 1R
RN ER B R IR HAER
ROE - HEFRBEEME R
ZB5 o MR IERE  mE -
BN EERREMETIREZE
ERNGZERME  ERENEE
KRB ERARETRBER DR
LB PTEME

Specified
non-current assets

FEBEZHA
(BESEER) EEFRBDEE
2019 2018 2019 2018
ZE-0NF 2N\ ZEB-hE ZEN\F
$/000 $'000 $/000 $'000
T Fr T T
Hong Kong BB (RER)

(place of domicile) 820,173 892,733 15,379 16,152
Japan AR 170,677 256,530 = =
The PRC i 874,191 828,119 795,926 811,824
Asia (excluding Japan, FMABEAR-

Hong Kong and the PRC) &% R EH) 118,294 125,637 — —
North America IEEM 347,692 438,253 5 22
Western Furope i 320,142 378,608 — —
Sub-total N 1,830,996 2,027,147 795,931 811,846

2,651,169 2,919,880 811,310 827,998
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ot 75 ¥R 2% MY &

(BB - LUBTTIIR)

SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 5 SMEE#E)
The Group’s customer base includes three (2018: three) AEBBE=2(ZF—NF:=4)
customers with whom transactions have exceeded 10% FRPZRZEBRBAEEKRAZ
of the Group’s revenue. For the year ended 31 March 10% HBHE_ZE-NF=A=+—
2019, the total revenue from sales of merchandise in the AIEFE REHEELSBRE
metal and plastic business and electronic manufacturing BREFEFRIEZEBz2EMmEK
services business, including sales to entities which ANBEARAEBMAMXINZE
are known to the group to be under common control BERFARZEHC EBZHER LD
with these customers, amounted to approximately #%2,078,558,0007T (= & — J\ F :
$2,078,558,000 (2018: $2,414,473,000) and arose in all 2,414,473,0007T) * WA A B E%E
geographical regions in which the businesses are active. BB 2 P A EEEW?EE - BREER
Details of concentrations of credit risk arising from these )EEEZ EERBERFHBHIIN
customers are set out in note 3(a)(iii). M 5F 3(@)(ii) °
The Group’s sales are made primarily to a few key AEBZHETZESHEBEARTY
customers. For the year ended 31 March 2019, the FHEK BZ_ZT-hhF=R=+
revenue derived from five largest customers accounted —BHIEFE - WAKXKBRREFE
for approximately 84% (2018: 91%) of the Group’s total REBRW AL (ZF—\F:
revenue. 91%) °
LAND USE RIGHTS 6 LTifEFAE
2019 2018
—E-NF —FTN\F
$’000 $000
T T
Net book amount at the beginning 4 ¥R & )5 &
of the year 16,663 17,135
Amortisation charged to cost of sales # 55T AU A B AR 473) (472)
Net book amount at the end F K bRk mF B
of the year 16,190 16,663
Cost X AR 23,614 23,614
Accumulated amortisation RETH#E (7,424) (6,951)
Net book amount at the end F K MR E@FE
of the year 16,190 16,663

The land use rights located in the PRC are held under
lease terms of 50 vyears expiring in April 2043 to
October 2055.

KAz T AEDRERER
+EEIEE—_EN=FYAE_F
ARAFTALE) 2 T HFE RAEMmEF
ﬁo
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7 3R 3k MY &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B SBFAAIN + LAAETTIIR)

7

LES

BERERE

Furniture and computer

equipment
BRAREMRE
Fixtures and
Leasehold Construction- leasehold Tools and
land  Buildings in-progress improvement Machinery equipment Owned Leased Total
BN
HE+# BF ERIE  NEEB B TARRE BE HE ait
$000 $'000 $000 $000 $'000 $000 $000 $'000 $000
Tr T T Tr T T Tr T T
Cost: A
At 1 April 2018 —E-N\E
mA—H 1,663 331,210 192 86,778 488,762 38,819 89,373 — 1,036,797
Additions RE — 421 - 10,135 37,228 9,149 5,872 — 62,805
Disposals e — - — 7,581)  (6,502) 266)  (3,040) —  (17,389)
Exchange adjustments RBREE — (20) — (2,391) (12,662 (1,962) (3,066) — (20,101)
At 31 March 2019 “Z-hE
=A=+-A 1,663 331,611 192 86,941 506,826 45,740 89,139 — 1,062,112
Accumulated depreciation, Rt i &
amortisation and BHER
impairment losses: HEER:
At 1 April 2018 —TN\F
mA—H 872 66,021 — 59,323 368,084 21,479 71,812 — 587,591
Charge for the year EEMB 27 7,024 — 3,648 29,228 3,697 8,039 - 51,663
Written back on disposals &t & Z #i - - - (7,581) (6,458) (251) (3,040) — (17,330
Exchange adjustments ABRE — - — (1,569) (5,991) 993)  (2,284) —  (10,837)
At 31 March 2019 “T-NF
899 73,045 - 53,821 384,863 23,932 74,527 — 611,087
Net book value: REFE:
At 31 March 2019 “E-NF
=A=+-H 764 258,566 192 33,120 121,963 21,808 14,612 — 451,025

KARRIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED EZFIBIFRZRBR A A
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

7

ME - BERREGE)

Furniture and computer

equipment
RRAREMRE
Fixtures and
Leasehold Construction- leasehold Tools and
land  Buildings in-progress improvement Machinery equipment Owned Leased Total
KER
HELH BF ERIER  DEEE BE TARRE EE] HE &%
$000 $'000 $/000 $000 $'000 $/000 $000 $'000 $/000
Fr T Fr Fr T Fr Fr T Fr
Cost: RA:
At 1 April 2017 “T—+f
mA—H 1,663 328,704 581 97,778 485,474 31,166 88,262 142 1,033,770
Additions RE = 2,144 24 8,845 34,026 12,007 22,924 = 79,970
Disposals & = = = (5400 (60,597) (2,287) (1,406) — (64,830
Exchange adjustments RBRE = — (51) 572 29,859 3,421 5,360 (18) 39,143
Transfer - — 362 (362) = = = = = =
Discontinued operations B & [F A E T
(Note 34) (Bt E34) = = = (19,877) - (5488 (25767) (124)  (51,256)
At 31 March 2018 —ZTN\E
=ZA=+-H 1,663 331,210 192 86,778 488,762 38,819 89,373 — 1,036,797
Accumulated depreciation, Rt i &
amortisation and BER
impairment losses: HEEE:
At 1 April 2017 —E2+F
mA—A 845 59,107 — 58,682 387,504 21,468 67,133 14 594,753
Charge for the year FEMB 27 6,914 = 9,575 25,945 3,083 9,419 27 54,990
Written back on disposals HE 2 HE = = = (447)  (60,496) (2,272) (1,287) — (64,502
Exchange adjustments RBAE — — — 358 15,131 1,866 4,059 2) 21,412
Discontinued operations B IHEEEK
(Note 34) (Bt 5E34) = = = (8,845) = (2,666) (7,512) (39)  (19,062)
At 31 March 2018 —E-N\E
=A=+-A 872 66,021 — 59,323 368,084 21,479 71,812 — 587,591
Net book value: REEE:
At 31 March 2018 —E-N\E
=A=+-A 791 265,189 192 27,455 120,678 17,340 17,561 — 449,206
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7  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 7 YE -BRERZEGE)
Depreciation expense of $48,769,000 (2018: 1 & B A #48,769,000L (= T —
$46,241,000), $2,894,000 (2018: $2,878,000) and $nil J\ £ : 46,241,0007T) * 2,894,0007T
(2018: $5,871,000) has been charged to cost of revenue, —Z—)\4% :2,878,0007T) & £ T
general and administrative expenses and discontinued —Z— )\ :5,871,0007T) 7 Bl 5+
operations, respectively. ABAKE - —RETBEERKE

RIERERT -
The Group’s interests in leasehold land and buildings AREEERELHMMET 2 RRIR
at their net book values are analysed as follows: HiFE FEIFTWOT :
2019 2018
—E-N0F —EN\F
$’000 $000
Fr Tt
Leasehold land and buildings in REEBEFBEZHEE
Hong Kong, held on leases £ 4 R F10E50
between 10 to 50 years FH2HE 2,083 2,188
Buildings in the PRC, held on leases R HEFHEFI0E
between 10 to 50 years S50F 8z E 257,247 263,792
259,330 265,980
8 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 8 REYE
2019 2018
—EB-hEF —T-N\F
$’000 $000
T T
Beginning of the year F 9] 336,250 301,710
Additions NE 282 282
Exchange difference Ha=R (18,830) 32,180
Fair value adjustment NEEFHE 898 2,078
End of the year FIK 318,600 336,250
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (FSBBEIN + LAEITIIR)

REWHE(E)

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)
The investment properties are under construction and

located in the PRC under lease terms of 40 years
expiring in August 2050 to January 2051.

Fair value measurement of properties

(i)

Fair value hierarchy

As at 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018, the
fair value measurement of the Group’s investment
properties is categorised into Level 3 of the fair
value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value
measurement.

During the years ended 31 March 2019 and 2018,
there were no transfers between Level 1 and
Level 2, or transfers into or out of Level 3. The
Group’s policy is to recognise transfers between
levels of fair value hierarchy as at the end of the
reporting period in which they occur.

The valuation of the Group's investment properties
as at 31 March 2019 was conducted by RHL
Appraisal Limited, an independent professional
valuer, which has among its staff members of
Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors. The investment
properties were valued on the basis that it would
be developed and completed in accordance with
the Group’s latest development proposals. The
Chief Financial Officer has discussion with the
independent professional valuer in the valuation
assumptions and valuation results when the
valuation is performed at each interim and annual
reporting date.

Fair value adjustment of investment properties is
recognised in the line item “net valuation gain
on investment properties” on the face of the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

8

EHRBEZERZTREREDETIRES
BN+ (R_ZERZTFNAZ_Z
A—F— AR HERMmMESE -

MEZAFEFE

(i)

NFEEBR
R-ZT—-hAhF=A=+—HBEK
R-_ZE—NEFE=A=+—8"
REEREME AT EGFE
EIRBBMEHREERFE1358
(A FEGEIZEEDBEASE
“EBAVEER-

HE_Z-—NEFERZZT—N\F
“A=+—BHLEFER F—
EHE—ER o MIWTEERE M
FoERTEERNEA o K
EEZHEERMEHARER
AFEEREEE 2EHY o

R-_E—NE=A=+—8"
REBZREMELBILE
XAk ITRHEBRRAB
RARHE HEEBRESS
REMES S8 - REME
HEERAEERNERER
EERAEE  2BHB
MBS 2 LEEEN 2
BEEEBRAABHZATFE
THEERMEEERTKZE
HEREKAE - EEFHEE
FRMEAETHER  BFEY
BEEBEETHAmE
FEBERTHER -

REMEZRTFERABTIRN

HAEBRER EZ[REMERM
BEWEFRE|—HER -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (S BEAAIN + LABITTHIR)

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)
Fair value measurement of properties (continued)

Information about Level 3 fair value
measurements

8 WREWEE)

MEZQAFEFEE)
(il EEF=ZBRLAFEFEZ
& Kl

Valuation Unobservable

techniques inputs Range

CREER THABEREZHE i 5t &8 E

Investment properties Market comparison Adjustment factor -2%=15%

— Investment properties approach on size and (2018: -8.5%—20%)
in the PRC location of the
properties

BREWME 35t BOA WEERE K -2%-15%

— RPBEZEEDE NEZHABRE (ZF—N\%F:

The fair value of investment properties in the
PRC is determined using the direct comparison
approach by making reference to the comparable
sales transactions as available in the relevant
market was adopted and it had taken into
account the construction costs that would be
incurred to complete the development to reflect
the quality of the completed development. The
adjustment factors used have been adjusted for
the size and location of the properties. The fair
value measurement is positively correlated to the
adjustment factors on size and location of the
properties.

KARRIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED =X B E#ERER AT

-8.5%-20%)

RAEBZRENE 2 RFETS
RAEERLEBOAERE @ X122
HEMS IS AL BHE
Ry WEERBTKRAEME
EZRBEEMA - REREAKFE
ZEE - ERZARAERER
MEZERBNMUBETHE -
NP EFEEMEER ML
BEZHERNRIILEER °
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (FSBBEIN + LAEITIIR)

9 BREE

Operating Computer
rights  Goodwill software Total
mERE R B4 a#
$'000 $/000 $'000 $'000
T T Tt T
Cost: % NN
At 1 April 2018 —Z-N\FMA—H — — 13,010 13,010
Additions NE - — 1,173 1,173
At 31 March 2019 —E-AF=ZA=1+—H — — 14,183 14,183
Accumulated amortisation: R
At 1 April 2018 —Z-N\FMHA—H — — (3,693) (3,693)
Charge for the year FEMK — — (1,322) (1,322)
At 31 March 2019 —EZ-hE=ZA=1+—H — — (5,015) (5,015)
Net Book value: R F B
At 31 March 2019 —Z-h&E=A=+—H — — 9,168 9,168
Cost: AN
At 1 April 2017 “E—+HFWA/—H 24,000 1,091 12,269 37,360
Additions nE — — 741 741
Discontinued operations (note 34) B 4% [F 48 & % 7% (P 7£34) (24,000) (1,091) — (25,091)
At 31 March 2018 —Z-N\FE=ZA=+—H — — 13,010 13,010
Accumulated amortisation: G
At 1 April 2017 —E—+FPA—H (10,200) — (2,400) (12,600)
Charge for the year FEMK (2,400) — (1,293) (3,693)
Discontinued operations (note 34) B #% |F 4 & 2 7 (I 534) 12,600 — — 12,600
At 31 March 2018 —Z-N\F=ZA=+—H — — (3,693) (3,693)
Net Book value: R T B
At 31 March 2018 —E-N\F=ZB=+—H — — 9,317 9,317
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9 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 9
Amortisation of $1,322,000 (2018: $1,293,000) and
$nil (2018: $2,400,000) was included in general and
administrative expenses and discontinued operations
respectively in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss for the year ended 31 March 2019.

Operating rights represent the rights to use the

trademark “Fullhouse” for the restaurant business in
the PRC and South East Asia. Goodwill arose from the
acquisition of the Fullhouse Group and is allocated to

the restaurant business, which is an identified cash-

generating unit within the consumer and services

business segment. During the year ended 31 March
2018, both operating rights and goodwill included in
the discontinued operations were disposed of to a

related party (note 34).

10 SUBSIDIARIES

10

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company

as at 31 March 2019 are:

Place of
incorporation/

BEEE(E)
 E_E—NF=ZA=+—H1
FE 1,322,000 (=& — )\ F:
1,293,0007T) R BT 2 #i5 (=T —
J\EE 1 2,400,0007T) 7 Bl B & 7 4R
EERRP—RETHREARER

£ 2 7E X R 7] 5 A [Fullhouse ] 2 78
ERPBEEREEREEREBRB Y
EF o BUREEFullhouseEBEE A 2
EmE - PERERED  BRAHE
BENBRBEXEBEDBACHSE
EBMN - BHE_ZT—/\F=ZA=T
—BILFER LEERBE=E
BREHETHEA ZERIELE
5 (MtsE34)

i 2
ARAR=E-—NE=A=+—§
TEHBARZER

establishment and Principal activities and Particulars of Interest
Name types of legal entity place of operation issued/paid-up capital held
2/ Rt R
#H EEREER IREBEREELH BB/ BHRE BEER
Karrie Industrial Hong Kong, limited  Sale of server casings, office automation Ordinary shares of $1,000 100%

Company Limited liability company

RHNERBRLE BFEEREALF

products, visual accessories, plastic and
metal parts, metal stamping dies and

Non-voting deferred shares of
$5,000,000 (i)

plastic injection moulds and provision of

management services, Hong Kong
HERRENR  WAEXEER

BEANRHERRY FE

KARRIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED =X B E#ERER AT

FRd
fr2BREBHIE  cBHPERARE

38 M%1,0007C
ERZRELTR
5,000,000 (i)
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SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Name

L

Place of
incorporation/
establishment and
types of legal entity place of operation
ff/ B R

AEEBER TEEBREESLY

Principal activities and

BB A E (&)
Particulars of Interest
issued/paid-up capital held
BET/BHAREK BEEE

Karrie Technologies
Company Limited

MR
BRAA

Karwin Engineering
Company Limited

FEEMIRE
BER QA

R ﬂﬂ%ﬁmﬁ
T&ERA

REBEELRER

AEERAT
REREETER
BRAA

,§ﬂﬁﬁkrﬁ
ER

Hong Kong, limited ~ Manufacturing and sales of plastic parts,

liability company

injection moulds, provision of electronic
manufacturing services and investment
holdings, Hong Kong
HERHELRHN HESBHERAR
ABER RESFTEERIRBRRE

ERAREMRTA

B BR

Hong Kong, limited  Design, manufacture and sale of server

liability company

visual accessories; sale of plastic and metal
parts, metal stamping dies, plastic injection
moulds and investment holdings, Hong

Kong
EREREMERA Rt

BB

The PRC, limited
liability company
the PRC

SE R R IR
TR ¢!

HEERETAR

The PRC, limited
liability company

moulds and plastic parts; provision of

electronic manufacturing services, the PRC
BER FRA
ﬁ‘ﬁﬂ&ﬁ%%#’%&%¥%¥ﬁl

TEERETAR  RERREINR

R R E

The PRC, limited
liability company
TEEREMTAR HBENE TH
The PRC, limited
liability company the PRC
mEEREEAF

sales of metal stamping dies and plastic

casings, office automation products and

L&%Eﬂ%§%ﬂ
ERRTGET HELR
SBHEHE . Iﬂﬁﬂ&&ﬁ%

Manufacture of server casings, office
automation products and metal parts,

IRENBEMR

Manufacture of server casings, office

automation products, visual accessories,

Property holding, the PRC

Property development and management,

NEZRRER  PH

Ordinary shares of $30,000,000 100%

33 %30,000,0007T

Ordinary shares of $10 100%
Non-voting deferred shares of
$100 (i)

E@RI0T
ERZRBEITR
1007T (i)

Paid-up capital $87,325,000 (ii) 100%

B 4178 7X87,325,0007 (i)

Paid-up capital $45,000,000 (iii) 100%

B 4178 7X45,000,000 7T (iii)

Paid-up capital $410,118,000 (iv) 100%
E 418 7410,118,0007T (iv)
Paid-up capital 100%

US$20,000,000 (v)
B #1%8 7X20,000,000% 7T (v)
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10

(BRHAHRHAIN -

SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Place of
incorporation/

ABTTIIR)

BB AR (&)

10

establishment and Principal activities and Particulars of Interest
Name types of legal entity place of operation issued/paid-up capital held
/R R
L EEERER TEXBREELE BET/BRRAE BEEE
BEREEES The PRC, limited Property holding, the PRC Paid-up capital US$16,000,000 100%
BB AT liability company (vi)
FERERELAR  BAENE FE B #& 716,000,000 T (vi)
R RBFEMERE The PRC, limited Property development, the PRC Paid-up capital 100%
RAA liability company US$42,500,000 (vii)
TEAERETAR NERE FE B #& 742,500,000 7T (vii)
REmeRE¥ The PRC, limited Property trading and management, the PRC  Paid-up capital 100%
BRAHE liability company RMB1,000,000 (viii)
TEAERERTAR NEESREE FH BAIERARE1,000,0007T (vii)
BRGZRFEME The PRC, limited Property development, the PRC Paid-up capital 100%

REFRAT

Notes:

(i)

(iii)

liability company

TEEREALR WEER HH

The non-voting deferred shares are not owned by the
Group. These shares have no voting rights, are not entitled
to dividends, and are not entitled to distributions upon
winding up unless a sum of $200,000,000,000 has been
distributed by the relevant companies to holders of the
ordinary shares.

RxEEBBELEBREEMRAF] is a wholly-owned foreign
enterprise established in the PRC with an operating period
of 15 years up to 19 May 2026.

REBEEBELEZBRASAEMRADT is a wholly-owned foreign
enterprise established in the PRC with an operating period
of 15 years up to 24 May 2026.

RERBEETEEARATR is a wholly-owned foreign
enterprise established in the PRC with an operating period
of 25 years up to 18 February 2030.

KARRIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED =X B E#ERER AT

(if)

(iii)

RMB49,001,000 (ix)
BAERAR49,001,0007T(ix)

EBREERERNDIIFAAEER
il - WERMDEBIEERE - IE
BAZERE - E%?HHF% AIEE &
HRMEEBRERZECEBEBR
200,000,000,0007C : & BIFZ &M% 5
ﬂ@é’“ﬁﬁﬂ DR e

REBRMREERASERAFTD
—RHBKIEEEBINELE
HEXHMRATAFE R-T-X
FRA+TABRER °

REBEaLBBREEERA
—W$lﬁ¢%é%ﬁ%§m%
HEEHMBEATRAFE  R-ZT-X
FRAZTHMBERER °

RERBEBTEXARAR R
TREIKLEEREBIERE  HE
XHMBRA—THE R-Z=ZF
—“AtNHEW® -

ﬁ?nﬂk%
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Rt 75 ¥R R MY &E

(BB - LUBTTIIR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 10 KMEXRGE)
Notes: (continued) BisE: (48)
vy HHEEMNEMBAEREERADAT is a wholly-owned v EERANHBAEFRBEERAFT

foreign enterprise established in the PRC with an operating

period of 40 years up to 2 December 2049.

—RHPBEKIEEEEINEDE
HLZHEAN+F  R_TMOA
FH+—A=-HEM -

vi) EFBFFBEEMRAF is a wholly-owned foreign (vi) EEEFEEBRAATD NP
enterprise established in the PRC with an operating period R ZEHEBINERE  HEXH
of 40 years up to 22 March 2051. Bem+4 R-TR-—F=F_

TZHER °

(vi) REZEIFMEFEZEAFR LA is a wholly-owned foreign (i) RERAIFHERBEBRART)—
enterprise established in the PRC with an operating period RABIKL 2 EEEINERE  H
of 20 years up to 17 September 2033. BEHRR -+ NRZT==

NA+T+HEM -

(viii) REmBAEEERAFT is a wholly-owned foreign (viii) REMRBREXBRAF T —KA
enterprise established in the PRC with a long-term B2 EERINELE  HEX
operating period. HERAERH -

(ix) WEZRZRMNFEMEREFRAIDAF is a wholly-owned (ixy WESZZBNFHERZERRA
foreign enterprise established in the PRC with a long-term A —RAPEK 2 ERAINE B
operating period. ¥ HEZHRARE -

INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE RBEQATZRE

2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
$’000 $000

Fr 7T

Share of net assets EBiEEEFE

Beginning of the year F ) 16,562 14,136

Share of profits of an associate JE 8 B & X B 693 872

Exchange difference R%@%E (928) 1,554

End of the year FR 16,327 16,562

Balances with an associate B e NTE 2 AR

Amount due to an associate J& A<t Bt & R ] R K

(note 36(b)) (WE% ) 35 2,587

ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19 & ¥k
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (S BEAAIN + LABITTHIR)

11 INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued) M REEQATNZREE)
During the years ended 31 March 2019 and 2018, BE_ZT-NFR-ZT-)N\F=H
management conducted an impairment assessment of =S+—BLEEFERN EEEBHRKE
the recoverability of the investment in J& 3R 22 1§ # RERZE#SZ AR RRNDERA
RABERMAEMRZAA. No impairment losses were Al AT B & BRI TRE AT (4 o &
recognised for the year ended 31 March 2019 (2018: E_E-NF=ZA=t+—HILFE -
Nil). BEERAREER(CZE/\F &
ERRREEBR) -
The outstanding balances due to an associate are A% LE B 2 N A R B R BT 2 IR K
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand, and R - TEAE - WEERE
are denominated in Hong Kong dollars. B& RABTREL-
Particulars of the associate of the Group is as follows: REEBBBERERRIZFAIB RN
T

Proportion of
ownership interest

FEERLA
Group's
Place of establishment  Principal activities and place Particulars of issued effective  Held by a
Name of associate and types of legal entity of operation and paid up capital interest  subsidiary
Bt I
BEARER BRUBEREERRER TEXBREELY B2/ BHRE XE@EERE QAKRE
ERBIEHE ARG The PRC, limited liability Research, sales of industrial ~ Ordinary shares of 30% 30%
AR ADF (“Cuifeng) company robots and robot peripheral  RMB10,000,000
automation equipment, and
provision of automation
solution, the PRC
ERBERBARKKRD FEEREEATA HE HEIXMSARKS TARARK
BROA(RE]) ABBAHEE - REHR  10,000,0007
BEBRANE T
Cuifeng is a listed corporate entity on the National RERPEARAMBE /N ERK
Equities Exchange and Quotations of the PRC whose MEBERGEE  WRETS®

quoted market price is not available. B -

228 KARRIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED E FI BB = R E R 2 7
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Rt 75 ¥R R MY &E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (FSBBEIN + LAEITIIR)

INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued) 11 REBEATNZREE)
Summarised financial information of the material BESHREZERNEZERARE 2
associate adjusted for any differences in accounting BEARBMERAMBERSE - WK
policies and reconciled to the carrying amount in the e mR 2 IREEETHIR -
consolidated financial statement are disclosed below: HEWAT :
Cuifeng
Zig
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
$’000 $°000
Frx T+
Gross amounts of the associate BeENTZHE
Current assets mEE E 41,197 40,267
Non-current assets EMBEE 2,740 5,517
Current liabilities mEaE (11,677) (14,058)
Net assets/equity BE T#wmRE 32,260 31,726
Revenue N 49,952 44,550
Profit from continuing operations FBSEET R 2,311 2,908
Total comprehensive income FEZHMBA LR
for the year 2,311 2,908

Reconciled to the Group’s interests 8 &1 2 7% & B 1A Bt &
in the associate RE 2R

Gross amounts of net assets of the Hia N\F] 2 FEE &5

associate 32,260 31,726
Fair value adjustments on identifiable 4§ i #8838 2 7] 4 52 &

intangible assets upon acquisiton ~ EEERXFE uﬂﬁé 31,034 32,875
Capital injection by the Group AEETE (14,160) (15,000)

49,134 49,601

Group’s effective interest rEBZERER 30% 30%
Group’s share of net assets REEEGEE RE

of the associate BEEFE 14,740 14,880
Goodwill EES 4,077 4172
Impairment losses recognised T E E B RE R (2,490) (2,490)
Carrying amount in the consolidated 4% & 81 7 ¥ &

financial statements R B 16,327 16,562

ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19 £ & 229
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (S BEAAIN + LABITTHIR)

12

INTERESTS IN A JOINT OPERATION IN RESPECT OF 12
A PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT

On 1 August 2016, the Group entered into a
cooperation agreement (the “Agreement”) with Kar
Info International Property Limited (“Kar Info”), a
related company of the Group, regarding a real estate
development project (the “Project”) in the PRC.
According to the Agreement, an area of land held
by REMBAREMEMRERAA (the “Project
Company”, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Kar Info),
would be used for construction of residential suites and
public amenities. The Group agreed to participate in
the Project by making an investment in the amount of
$140,000,000 in consideration to Kar Info of it being
entitled to a share of profit from the Project through
selling the properties in the future. The transaction
contemplated under the Agreement constitutes a
connected transaction under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. The details of the joint operation is as follows:

REBUNERBRRCBEEE RS

R-ZZE-—XRFNA—B KEEB
BN T EF M E R % EAB (%
THH 1) BN & E B E 2 R Kar  Info
International Property Limited ([Kar
Infol) FTSZ & 1Rk (%1 D) - R
BRiphE BR=MRABEME
mARAF (MEEZATF] " Kar Infoz
2EWMBRARFAZ—BLHAS
AREEEEERRAKRE - K
B [F E 1% 140,000,000 T 3L
I FKar Infoz REZLRZIAR - LA
NERREBRIIBEPHELE
MEMBZABESZEF - RIE
FHARRIE4AT - Z R A #
ETZRHER—RBERS - A
A EZHBWN:

Total gross Completion date

Location Land Use floor area (m?») (calendar year)

MEEER RITHB

A= T AR (SF 75 2K) (B %)

Phase 3, Castfast Villas, Fenggang Town, Residential 61,730 2018/19
Dongguan City, Guangdong Province,

the PRC
TEERER=TREEZERE = (EX=2 61,730 —2-N/
— N

The Group's assets held in relation to the joint operation
include the investment cost contributed by the Group
and the related construction costs capitalised. The
balance is shown on the consolidated statement of
financial position as property development (note 17).
As at 31 March 2019, the carrying amount of property
development in respect of the joint operation was
$251,690,000 (2018: $312,000,000).

KARRIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED =X B E#ERER AT

AEBERBMEEERAECEESR
RAEBIAZEEXNEARER
b2 EBEEREK - REREE
B RS AR R A 51 1E ) 5 B R (B A
17) e RZZE—NEFE=A=+—8"
EBEBMAEBECERRZRER
& A251,690,0007T (= & — )\ & :
312,000,0007T) °
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BY 7% SRR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (FSBBEIN + LAEITIIR)

INTERESTS IN A JOINT OPERATION IN RESPECT OF 12 REBYEXRECHELECEDR
PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT (continued) (#&)
As at 31 March 2019, there was an amount due from RZE—NF=A=+—HB"'H
the Project Company in relation to the joint operation e LERKEE QR ZREA
amounting to $19,494,000 which is unsecured, non- 19,494,0007T & E K -~ 55 B
interest bearing and with no fixed repayment terms MEERTFEERAR(ZZ—N\F K
(2018: $123,397,000 due to the Project Company). {18 B 2 A 5 T8123,397,0007T) °
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORIES 13 RES>EZEMIA
Financial assets
measured at Loan and
amortised cost  receivables Other financial assets Total
DA 8 B A& EXR
GTESREE  EWER HteREE &
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
“E-nF —EF-\F B “F-\F ZE-nF CR)\F
$/000 $'000 $/000 $'000 $/000 $'000
i Fr i Fr i Fr
Assets E
Trade, bills and other receivables 2% ZEREMER
(note 14) iR % (P E14) 316,948 438,654 — — 316,948 438,654
Prepayments (note 14) EREAGiEA 23,720 10,059 — — 23,720 10,059
Deposits (note 14) e (Frzt14) 16,521 29,774 - = 16,521 29,774
Other financial assets (note 15) Hiv S rEE (F 315 — — 19,325 18,916 19,325 18,916
Cash and bank deposits BeRRITER
(note 18) (Kt3E18) 224,030 272,153 — — 224,030 272,153
Amounts due from related companies & i 2 8] R 3%
(note 36(h)) (B 5£36(h) 21,503 — — — 21,503 —
602,722 750,640 19,325 18,916 622,047 769,556

ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19 & ¥k
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B SBFAAIN + LAAETTIIR)

13 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORIES 13 RENI>EZ2E&MIAE)
(continued)
2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZT-N\F
$’000 $'000
Fr Tt
Liabilities =0
Trade payables, accruals and other B ZERIRK - 5T
payables (note 22) B A& H A AR
(Fft 7%22) 592,620 620,034
Bank borrowings (note 23) RITEE (MI5E23) 620,342 625,902
Amount due to an associate J& 1< Bt & R B R 5%
(note 11) (B 5E11) 35 2,587
Amounts due to related companies & 1< B8 3& 2 7 1R 3¢
(note 36(b)) (M 5£36(b) 394 123,397

1,213,391 1,371,920

232 KARRIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED EF/ BB ZERERE AT
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (FSBBEIN + LAEITIIR)

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLE, PREPAYMENTS, 14 EBEZREBEERIKRTR  BALR -
DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES R & R H o FE iR X
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-)N\F
$’000 $°000
T Tt
Trade and bills receivable E 5K EiE EWIR 282,614 407,815
Other receivables H {th & W IR K 37,663 34,860
320,277 442,675
Less: Loss allowance for trade and & : B 5 & = 1% fE UK
bills receivable MR KBS EEE (3,329) (4,021)
316,948 438,654
Prepayments AN 23,720 10,059
Deposits b geia 16,521 29,774
357,189 478,487
Less: Other non-current assets B EMIEREEE
(Note) (Bt &%) (32,000) (46,224)
325,189 432,263
Representing: Rk:
Trade and bills receivable, net of B5 k2B EWIRR
allowance HIBR B 1 279,285 403,794
Prepayments, deposits and other AN )
receivables H fih fE W IR X 45,904 28,469
325,189 432,263
Note: Other non-current assets represent deposits paid for the Bt 5%

purchase of property, plant and equipment amounted
to approximately $11,468,000 (2018: $24,474,000), a
government grant receivable from Jiangsu Yixing Economic
Development Zone Investment and Development
Company Limited amounted to approximately $20,532,000
(2018: $21,750,000) in relation to the acquisition of a piece
of land in Yixing, Jiangsu, the PRC.

B ERDEERERBEDE

BMEAEZHEzENZESEN
#11,468,0007L (= & — J\ F:
24,474,0007T) & B 7 BT &
HEWEE 2 BT 8RB AL
ERZEREREZRERAFZH
¥ & Bh & 8 49 /20,532,0007C (=
T — \4 : 21,750,0007T) °

ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19 & ¥k
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (S BEAAIN + LABITTHIR)

14

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLE, PREPAYMENTS,
DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)
The Group generally grants credit periods ranging
from 30 to 90 days, except for two (2018: two) of the
customers who is granted a credit period of 150 days.
An ageing analysis of trade, bills and other receivables,
based on invoice date, is as follows:

14

BEIREEEWIIRK -  BARK -
BRERHMEWRERZE)
BREFRACCE-NF -WL)T
FZz&HAI50B5  KEBE—K
BTYTREFPZEHA0BZE0H - &
5 EEMHMEWKRZIZERZAH
HIFtE 2R DATA0T

2019 2018

—F-NEF —F-)\F

$000 $'000

T T

0 to 90 days 0290H 256,327 325,046
91 to 180 days 91£180H 58,773 94,723
181 to 360 days 1812360H 2,009 19,778
Over 360 days 3608 LA & 3,168 3,128
320,277 442,675

The carrying amounts of trade and bills receivable,
prepayments, deposits and other receivables
approximate their fair values.

The receivables are expected to be recovered within
one year. Any amounts not expected to be recovered
within one year are not included in current assets.

KARRIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ZFIEBR = BRBR QA

25 REHMUIER - ANK - &
© R E A B IR 2 IREE AR A
FEAE -

7L R IRRFARE—FAKE -
EHERBERITSE—FAKREA
TEERABEEN °
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (FSBBEIN + LAEITIIR)

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLE, PREPAYMENTS,
DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)
The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivable at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which
is calculated using a provision matrix. As the Group’s
historical credit loss experience does not indicate
significantly different loss patterns for different customer
segments, the loss allowance based on past due status is
not further distinguished between the Group’s different
customer bases.

The following table provides information about the
Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade and
bills receivable as at 31 March 2019:

14

BEZREBBWIRNR BAXK -
BE R H b EWIR K (&)
AEEE WK 2 BB R EaT
ERENEBEAFEN AHEER
Brze® ZEBEEREEREGR
FE R AEBZELEER
SRBYARATRAEZLE2EKX
BATERZEEZE  AHERBH
MEZBBRBEETSE-FEIN
SEZTREFPE -

TREMRRHEBAEEESINE
BREKEZAN-_ZE—ALE=A=+
—HWEERRNTEHREEEE:

Expected loss Gross carrying Loss

rate amount allowance

AYERR R [ 4818 BERE

% $'000 $'000

T T

Current (not past due) B R1(REH) 0.03 227904 68

1-90 days past due B HI12£90H 0.17 48,591 85

91-180 days past due # H191ZE180H 2.28 2,220 51

181-360 days past due  # Hi181%360H 3.31 800 26
More than 360 days #1 BA360H A

past due 100.00 3,099 3,099

282,614 3,329

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience
over the past 5 years. These rates are adjusted to reflect
differences between economic conditions during the
period over which the historic data has been collected,
current conditions and the group’s view of economic
conditions over the expected lives of the receivables.

BHERXENBERAFZERE
B8 - BN REFHBEARBRI
R E L BURHIE 2 KBEAOR - BRI
A I AN 7 62 [ FE W i K TR A F B
ZRERBRABEACEZESR -

ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19 & ¥k
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (S BEAAIN + LABITTHIR)

14

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLE, PREPAYMENTS,
DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)
Movement in loss allowance account in respect of

BEZREBEBWIRNK BAXK -
B K H b FEWIR K (&)
BEHEED ZEBMEMBRIRRZ

trade, bills and other receivables is as follows: EEBEEHIT:
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
$'000 $'000
T T
Beginning of the year F 9 4,021 4,021

Reversal of loss allowance EEREE R

during the year (692) =
End of the year FK 3,329 4,021

The recognition of allowance for impaired receivables
is included in general and administrative expenses in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Comparative information under HKAS 39

Prior to 1 April 2018, an impairment loss was
recognised only when there was objective evidence
of impairment (see note 2(m)(i)(B) — policy applicable
prior to 1 April 2018). At 31 March 2018, trade
receivables of $4,021,000 were individually determined
to be impaired. The individually impaired receivables
related to customers that were in financial difficulties
and management assessed that the amounts are not
expected to be fully recoverable. Consequentially,
specific allowance for doubtful debt of $4,021,000 were
recognised.

KARRIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED =X B E#ERER AT

HERBERRKIKRXEGZERLE
BRENGAEBSERT —RETRE
ﬁH o

EBEEAFER L BER
RZZE—NFMNA—HA ' BES
EREERBECRERBEGFEST
LATE R (R 52 2(m)(i)(B) — A= E —
NEMNA—BREABNBE) - K=
T—-\F=ZA=Z+—H A5EZ
E 5 & Ik 7%4,021,0007T * T3 1@ Bl
BESTRIE o @72 R E - RIR
HEABYHNE XFPEH  ME
BEIGHAEBESEES T 2K
[ o Bt - BB RIRMERSERE
/£4,021,0007T °
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (FSBBEIN + LAEITIIR)

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLE, PREPAYMENTS,
DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

BEZREBBWIRNR BAXK -
BE R H b EWIR K (&)

2018
—ENE
$°000

T

Neither past due nor impaired

1-90 days past due
91-180 days past due
181-360 days past due

AR ERBRELZERIRSR 317938
B EI1ZE90H

A HI91E180H
# H11812360H

317,938

61,199
11,054
13,603

403,794

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
related to a wide range of customers for whom there
was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired related
to a number of independent customers that had a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
management believed that no impairment allowance
was necessary in respect of these balances as there
had been no significant change in credit quality and
the balances were still considered fully recoverable.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the
reporting period is the carrying value of trade and bills
receivable, deposits and other receivables stated above.
The Group does not hold any collateral as security.

RiE HA 3 R BB 2 i Wb 3K B2 4T B
BEREFPRAEENTHEER -

B HE RRE 2 BUIRRES T
EAEEARTERCH IBILE
FERE  REBEEERKRR EEER
RBAZ T EERIELIRE R -
AREEERTEE NS ARE
148 Al 2 8@ o

RJ|ERR - EERR 2 &Z KRR
RERBSRBEEWIR  ZE
K E IR R 2 IREE - AR E
WESEEMESER 2 ERm -
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14 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLE, PREPAYMENTS,
DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

14 BEZREBERBKRNR FAMK-
B K H b FEWIR K (&)

The credit quality of the Group’s trade and bills BEBERBEEPHERAE HAKED
receivable, deposits and other receivables that are past FEMEARELZE S R ERER
due but not impaired has been assessed by reference R RERHMERIERZEE
to the historical information about counterparty default BEELNG BRZEPEBRE
rates. The existing counterparties do not have significant REE R 2R EE

defaults in the past.

15 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

15 HttemEE

31 March 1 April 31 March
2019 2018 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F —T-N\F
=A=+—H mMA—H =A=+—H
$000 $'000 $'000
Fr T T
Financial assets measured at & A FEFTAHAD
FVOCI (recycling) FEBRA(FTE )
TECEMEE
— Key management —E2EH
insurance contracts RigELK
(unlisted investments) (FELETIEE) 19,325 18,916 —
Available-for-sale financial AHHEZSR
assets BE
— Key management —EEEH
insurance contracts R a &
(unlisted investments) (FELEMEE) — — 18,916
19,325 18,916 18,916

KARRIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ZFIEBR = BRBR QA
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OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (continued)

At 31 March 2019, the insurance contracts represented
life insurance plans with investment elements relating
to a key management personnel of the Group. The
total sum insured is US$4,681,000 (approximately
$36,746,000) (2018: US$4,681,000 (approximately
$36,746,000)), with an annual minimum guaranteed
return of 2% to 4.2% for the first 10 years and 2% for
the years afterwards.

At 31 March 2019, if the Group terminated the
insurance contract, the account value,
surrender charge of US$2,142,000 (approximately
$16,816,000) (2018: US$2,071,000 (approximately
$16,260,000), would be refunded to the Group. The
amount of surrender charge decreases over time and

net of a

is no longer required from the 19th year of contract
conclusion onwards.

The insurance contract was reclassified to financial
assets measured at FVOCI (recycling) upon the initial
application of HKFRS 9 at 1 April 2018 (see note 2(c)
@()).

INVENTORIES
(@ Inventories
financial position comprise:

in the consolidated statement of

15

16

HheMEEZ)
RZE—NF=ZA=+—8"' %R
BENAIEE —RBETEZEETEREA
BrEREXRDZ ASRRE - 1R
%4 54,681,0003% JT(4936,746,000
T ZZF—/\F : 4,681,0003% It (¥
36,746,0007T)) * B T EHIERZEMD
WMEEFF2%E42% N EHEFE
2% °

R-—E—-AhE=RA=+—8" &
AEBRIEZRBEY KRB
FHkERERIE B2142,000%
70 (#716,816,0007T)( = & — J\ F :
2,071,0003% 7T (#716,260,0007T)) &
HEREFAEE - RRKRBEERHE
MR ERZENBRERETNLE
A2 F UG ER o

hERBEAHN-_E—N\FENOA—
BB BB RELERFIRERH
PEABRATEFAHMEZEKA
(EotEzemEERHME
2(0@i) °

@ RNESHBRAARZIFEER
¥

2019 2018

—E-hEF —E-N\F

$000 $'000

F T T

Raw materials JR# %t 113,918 122,119
Work-in-progress R 33,631 54,500
Finished goods B K i 187,942 204,524
335,491 381,143
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16  INVENTORIES (continued) 16 TFE(#E)
(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories by FEZSEERRASIERE
recognised as an expense and included in “cost BREREABERRANM AKX
of revenue” in the consolidated statement of profit NI E27) 2 ATEAT -

or loss (Note 27) is as follows:

Discontinued

Continuing operations operations
2#41E
2019 2018 2018
“E-hE ZE-N\F ZE)N\F
$'000 $'000 $'000
T T T
Carrying amount of inventories sold ~ B&EF & ZIREE 1,807,116 2,134,068 15,306
17 PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT 17 MRBRE
2019 2018
—E-NF At
$7000 $'000
Fr T
Property under development for sale 73 J& 1E 2 %) % 436,269 639,557
Completed property held for sale ¥ % 253,168 17,871
689,437 657,428
(@ The analysis of carrying value of land held for @ FHVEZR I REESD
property development for sale is as follows: aAT -
2019 2018
—EF-NF —FT-N\F
$000 $'000
Fr T
Outside Hong Kong EE B LA
— Less than 50 years — LRATF 120,460 125,542
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17 PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT (continued) 17 MEBRGE)
(b) The analysis of the amount of properties b) PEZEHEBAR/ILRE
recognised as an expense and included in “cost BRERREABERRANMAK
of revenue” in the consolidated statement of profit NI E27) AT AT

or loss (note 27) is as follows:

2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
$’000 $'000
Frx Tt
Carrying amount of EEWERZIREE
properties sold 103,573 29,762
18 CASH AND BANK DEPOSITS 18 RERBITEX
@ Cash and cash equivalents comprise: @ REeELBSEEYEE:
2019 2018
—E-NE —E-N\F
$'000 $'000
Fr +T
Cash at bank and in hand TERER® 172,451 270,811
Time deposits E,HﬂT_IT 51,579 1,342
Cash and bank deposits in the ~ REREMBMRREZ
consolidated statement of RERIBITHER
financial position 224,030 272,153
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18 CASH AND BANK DEPOSITS (continued) 18 BERBITERGE)
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing b BMEETHFELEEEAD
activities
The table below details changes in the Group’s TRALEEKREREED Z
liabilities from financing activities, including both E%g@) - BRBESRIERE
cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from 2y WELHELEZRER
financing activities are liabilities for which cash ﬁ BeERNBEXARKENR
flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified SEGERERERTHEER
in the Group’s consolidated cash flow statement MERDMELRTRELZR
as cash flows from financing activities. f& o
Obligations
Bank under finance
borrowings leases Total
MEHEET
RITEE S &4
$'000 $'000 $'000
Tr Tr Tr
(Note 23)
(Fff &£ 23)
At 1 April 2018 —g-\EMA—H 625,902 — 625,902
Changes from financing MERESREZED:
cash flows:
Proceeds from new bank HPITEEZAER
borrowings 322,342 — 322,342
Repayment of bank borrowings (& R{TEE (327,902) — (327,902
Interest paid 2N E (37,094) — (37,094)
Total changes from financing RBIERERE 2
efow  =idE . waesy T 2659
Other changes: Hit 28 :
Interest expenses (note 29) F B 3 H (BT 7E29) 19,187 — 19,187
Capitalised borrowing costs BARCEERAK
(note 29) (B #£29) 17,907 — 17,907
Total other changes Hu@e8E 37,094 — 37,094
At 31 March 2019 —T-AF=A=t+—H 620,342 — 620,342
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18 CASH AND BANK DEPOSITS (continued) 18 RERVBITEFERGE)
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing b BMETEMEL2EERAD
activities (continued) (#&)
Obligations
Bank under finance
borrowings leases Total
MEMEET
RITEE A CE
$'000 $'000 $’000
T T T
(Note 23)
(Pt 7£23)
At 1 April 2017 —2-tEMA-H 539,800 128 539,928
Changes from financing MERSREZED:
cash flows:
Proceeds from new bank HMRTEEZABER
borrowings 166,200 — 166,200
Repayment of bank borrowings E&RITIEE (80,098) — (80,098)
Capital element of repayment of EEFEHRE 2
finance lease PN = 150) = (33) (33)
Interest paid BEARFE (27,143) (5) (27,148)

Total changes from financing R ERESREZ

cash flows 2y E 58,959 38 58921
Other changes: Hitn @8 :
Discontinued operations BERIEBEER

(note 34) (Pff 5£34) — (95) (95)
Interest expenses (note 29) F B 2 (P 5%29) 14,883 5 14,888
Capitalised borrowing costs BR(LEEXRAR

(note 29) (BF5E29) 12,260 — 12,260
Total other changes Hih 8@ E 27143 90) 27,053
At 31 March 2018 —E-N\FE=A=1t—H 625,902 = 625,902
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19 SHARE CAPITAL 19 KX
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\EF
Number of Nominal  Number of Nominal
shares value shares value
RHER HE mEB EE
000 $000 ‘000 $'000
T 7 F 7
Authorised: EERA:
Ordinary shares of ERREREE
HK10 cents each 107811 4,000,000 400,000 4,000,000 400,000
Issued and fully paid: BRITR
EHERE:
Ordinary shares of TR EREE
HK10 cents each: 107841l -
Beginning of the year F 4] 1,994,556 199,456 1,996,196 199,620

Issuance of shares under B EETET

share option schemes BTG 1,390 139 6,470 647
Cancellation of shares iR @,112) 412) (8,110) (811)
End of the year FK 1,991,834 199,183 1,994,556 199,456
(@ During the year ended 31 March 2019, the @ #H=E—_ZFT—NhhEFE=ZA=1+-—

Company has cancelled 4,112,000 shares of the HIEFEAR N2 AE T #H

Company, of which none of the shares were 4,112,000/ 8 &R F 1D + B

repurchased before 31 March 2018. BRODBR_-_Z—N\F=A=
+—HAIEE -
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19 REX(E)

SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

(b)

March 2019, the
Company repurchased its own shares on Stock

During the year ended 31

(b)

HE-_Z—NWF=A=+—H
IEFER  RARIEBRZFrE

Exchange as follows: BEARMHAOT:
Number
of shares  Highest price  Lowest price Aggregate
repurchased paid per share paid per share amount
= 5 K 4 gRER gREM

Month/Year £/R L ¢=] REE® REER BEH
$ $ $/000
JL It T
April 2018 —T-\50WA 1,066,000 1.16 1.12 1,215
May 2018 —E-N\FhA 630,000 1.20 115 736
June 2018 —E-\FRA 130,000 118 116 151
July 2018 —E-\EtA 318,000 117 115 369
September 2018 ~ —F—/\F /LA 830,000 1.03 1.00 845
October 2018 —ZE-\E1H 1,138,000 1.00 0.91 1,084
4,112,000 4,400

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to
receive dividends as declared from time to time
and are entitled to one vote per share at meetings
of the Company. All ordinary shares rank equally
with regard to the Company’s residual assets.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, share
options have been exercised to subscribe for
1,390,000 ordinary shares (2018: 6,470,000) in
the Company at a consideration of $973,000
(2018: $3,827,000) of which $139,000 (2018:
$647,000) was credited to share capital and the
balance of $834,000 (2018: $3,180,000) was
credited to the share premium. $363,000 (2018:
$1,341,000) has been transferred from share-based
compensation reserve to the share premium in
accordance with policy set out in note 2(v).

BB B A IR E
E2BE  BEHERATDR
RARLSR -T2 REM -
B B BB EARDBT
AETE EA RS0 -

BHE_T—NF=ZA=+—
HIEFER BREDET
&+ LAR 8973,0007T (= F —
J\FF :3,827,0007T) 3R HE A2 A
1,390,000% & i IR (ZZ — N\
F 1 6,470,0008%) * E #139,000
(= Z — /\F : 647,0007T) E
A IR AR - #4 BE834,0007T (=
=T — )\ £ :3,180,0007T) & 5t A
B9 R (B o 1B I, MY 5E2v) BT 8K
K+ 363,0007C (ZF—/\F -
1,341,0007T) E AR 15 2
e REBERERMEE -
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20

SHARE OPTIONS

The Company adopted a share option scheme on
24 August 2012 (the “Scheme”) under which it may
grant options to employees of the Group (including
executive directors of the Company) and other third
parties to subscribe for shares in the Company, subject
to a maximum of 30% of the nominal value of the
issued share capital of the Company from time to
time excluding for this purpose any shares issued on
the exercise of options. The exercise price will be
determined by the Company’s board of directors and
shall at least be the highest of (i) the closing price of the
Company’s shares on the date of grant of the options,
and (i) an average closing price of the Company’s
shares for the five trading days immediately preceding
the date of grant of the options.

On 11 August 2014, a total of 18,000,000 share
options (the “2014 Share Options”) were granted to
certain qualified participants of the Group (including
an executive director of the Company) under the
Scheme. The 2014 Share Options entitle the grantees to
subscribe for a total of 18,000,000 new shares of $0.10
each in the share capital of the Company. Depending
on the financial performance of the Group and other
conditions of the 2014 Share Options, not more than
50% of the 2014 Share Options will be vested on 1
August 2015 and not more than 50% of the 2014 Share
Options will be vested on 1 August 2017. The exercise
price of the 2014 Share Options is $0.419 per share,
which represents the highest of (i) the closing price
of the shares of the Company of $0.405 per share as
stated in the daily quotation sheet issued by the Stock
Exchange on the date of grant; (ii) the average closing
price of the shares of the Company of $0.419 per share
as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the
Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value
of the shares of the Company of $0.10 per share. All
the 2014 Share Options were accepted by the grantees.

KARRIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED =X B E#ERER AT

20

BB

AAFTR-_E——FEN\A=-+mMA
KA—EBEREE - JELERAAR
SEZEE(BREARGZHITES)
MEZEBRHERENEREAR
RZBHm  RZEUARARRTEE
BOTRABEACBRERTERR
BEMBEITZRD)Z0%ER - ZE
BETEBBHARRIZESSE
E o AGOARR DR B ER T
BzUWmE: ki) BERTERE
ARl AR S B ARG KD ZFEH
W fE o

—_E-—-mENAR+—HHXEH
18,000,000 Bk ([ ZF — Ui
REDERTAEEEETEERKZ
LHEBEARBIZHAITES) -
T ERERTERARES
REERBOIOTTZ AR ZBRAE H
18,000,000%F A% - 18 1% & B B 75 %
BEREM T —MERERGE T
FBB50% . —F — U REFR =
T—RFNA—BHEE KTHE
B50% 2 —E—NEREZTN_-F
—tF N \HA—BwEBE - —_T—0@©
BIRETEERETR0.4197T + LAG)
AARIBRMH AR BRER TFTE WS
BEM0.4057T ; (i) B R T B KR
ARl AR S B ARG KD ZFES
WM ESR0.4197T : K(i) AR A I
HZBREEION  =FEUES
ERE -FRE-_ZT—NERERH
AERANER -
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SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

On 27 October 2016, the Company granted a total of
24,700,000 share options (the “2016 Share Options”)
to certain qualified participants of the Group (including
executive directors of the Company) under the Scheme.
The 2016 Share Options entitle the grantees to
subscribe for a total of 24,700,000 new shares of $0.10
each in the share capital of the Company. The exercise
price of the 2016 Share Options is $0.70 per share,
which represents the highest of (i) the closing price
of the shares of the Company of $0.70 per share as
stated in the daily quotation sheet issued by the Stock
Exchange on the date of grant; (ii) the average closing
price of the shares of the Company of $0.656 per share
as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the
Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately
proceeding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value
of the shares of the Company of $0.10 per share. All
the 2016 Share Options were accepted by the grantees.

(@ The terms and conditions of the Share Options
are as follows:

20

BB RE(E)
TE-RNETA-tEBEARRH
£24,700,0003 B E(ZF — <
BEREDERTASEEEAER
Z2HE(BERARBZHITESR) °
T NERERTERARES
IREERBOIOTT 2 AR ZRAE H
24,700,000%1 I - —F — N BB R
TEEAFTROIOT AR T
BORBERERTFAZETESK
07070 (WEEE THEREHN R
BRSEBARRBRGD 2 FHIWKTE
F20.6567C : (i) ANARIRMD 2 E
IREEO0.10TT » =BEUKSE AL -
BT "ERESHEARALE
o

@ R 2R R

Exercise price  Number of
per share options Vesting condition Expiry date
R BhRE
TEER #8 BF 6t HHEH
Options granted to BRERTES:
directors:
—on 11 August 2014 —RZIZ-MF $0.419 5,000,000 Not more than 10 August 2024
NA+—H 5,000,000 options will
vest on
1 August 2015 *
% 15,000,00017 —ECF
BRERR-Z-0F NATH

NA-HEB*
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20 BRRE(E)

20 SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

(@) The terms and conditions of the Share Options @ BREBEREREHDT:
are as follows: (continued) (&)
Exercise price  Number of
per share options Vesting condition Expiry date
gR BRE
TEER %8 B F ot HHAH
Options granted to BRERTES:
directors: (continued) (&)
—on 11 August 2014  — RZZ-M% $0.419 5,000,000 Not more than 10 August 2024
NA+—H 5,000,000
options will vest on
1 August 2017*
FZR50000008  ZFZMF
BRESR-T-LF NAtH
NA—-BEE*
—on 27 October 2016 — RZE—51% $0.70 3,150,000 Vesting on 1 July 2017 26 October
+A=t+H 2026
RZE—tF+tA-H “EIRE
5B TH-TXH
—on 27 October 2016 — RZF—1% $0.70 3,150,000 Vesting on 1 July 2018 26 October
tAZt+tH 2026
RZB-\FtA-H ZEZR
58 TH-tRA
—on 27 October 2016 — RZT—R% §0.70 4,200,000 Vesting on 1 July 2019 26 October
+A=f+H 2026
RZZ-NE+A-H it Sy
F® tA-tR/A
Options granted to BREKFET:
employees:
—on 11 August 2014  —RZZ-M% $0419 4,000,000  Vesting on 1 August 10 August 2024
NAt+—H 2015
R-E-R¥NA-R “EomE
R NAtH
—on 11 August 2014 —RZE-m% $0.419 4,000,000  Vesting on 1 August 10 August 2024
NAt-H 2017
RZE-+F\A-H “EImE
BB NATH
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20 SHARE OPTIONS (continued)
(@ The terms and conditions of the Share Options

20 WBERRE(E)

@ BBEEZGRREFDT:

are as follows: (continued) (&)
Exercise price  Number of
per share options Vesting condition Expiry date
R BRE
TEER %R R¥##t HAAH
Options granted to BREKFET:
employees: (continued) (%)
—on 27 October 2016 — RZF—% $0.70 4,260,000 Vesting on T July 2017 26 October
tA=f+H 2026
RZE-—t5tA-A “EIAE
58 TH-tRA
—on 27 October 2016 — RZF—X% $0.70 4,260,000 Vesting on 1 July 2018 26 October
+A=t+A 2026
R-B-\FLH-H i S
FE tHA-tR/A
—on 27 October 2016 — RZT—R% §0.70 5,680,000 Vesting on 1 July 2019 26 October
tAZt+tH 2026
RZE-1%tA-R “EIRE
58 tA-txA

Total number of share BRESY
options

42,700,000

* The vesting of the Share Options granted to an
executive director of the Company is subject to the
performance of the Group and other conditions.

* AARARPITEZTRTZE
Pt 2 SR BBURNANEE

EREREMGES -

ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19 & ¥k

249



Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% AR MY aE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (S BEAAIN + LABITTHIR)

20 SHARE OPTIONS (continued) 20 BREGE)
(b) The number and weighted average exercise prices (b)y BIREHBRMEFSITHEE
of share options are as follows: W
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise  Number of exercise  Number of
price options price options
hn#E 3 BRE TS fE AR
TEE Eg= 1TfEE 28
000 ‘000
T+ T
Outstanding at the RE A 1=
beginning of the year K17 $0.58 35,730 $0.58 42,200
Exercised during the year FA&F AT $0.70 (1,390) $0.59 (6,470)
Lapsed during the year R & RK X $0.70 (420) — —

Outstanding at the end of A F & i#
the year RITIE $0.57 33,920 $0.58 35,730

Exercisable at the end of WREFEAI{T{E

the year $0.52 24,440 $0.47 18,790
The Share Options outstanding as of 31 March R_ZB-NF=A=+—QH"
2019 had an exercise price of $0.419 or $0.70 MARTTEZBREZITEE
(2018: $0.419 or $0.70) per share and a weighted 1% 8 180.4197 300.707T (=&
average remaining contractual life of 6.57 years — J\ % 1 0.4197T 3¢0.707T) &
(2018: 7.62 vyears). During the year ended 31 MEFHITEE D FH6.574F
March 2019, 420,000 share options have lapsed. (ZE—N\F:7.62%) - BHEZ
The value of vested options which lapsed during T-NF=A=+—HLEFE
the current year was amounting to $59,000 and W - B B420,0001) i AR # &
was released directly to retained profits. Mo REFRRDTBERBIRE

ZHIB{E A59,0007T I HH
STARE & F o
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20 SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

(o)

Fair value of the Share Options and assumptions
The fair value of services received in return for
share options granted is measured by reference
to the fair value of share options granted. The
estimate of the fair value of the 2014 Share
Options and 2016 Share Options granted was
measured based on the Trinomial Model, after
taking into account the terms and conditions
upon which the share options were granted.
The contractual life of the share option and
expectations of early exercise were incorporated
into the Trinomial Model. The significant
assumptions and inputs used in the valuation
model are as follows:

Fair value of and assumptions for 2014 share
options

Fair value at measurement date $0.176 to $0.194

Share price $0.405
Exercise price $0.419
Risk-free interest rate 1.97%
Expected volatility 52.84%
Expected dividend yield 2.47%
Expected exercise multiple 22 t0 2.8

Fair value of and assumptions for 2016 share
options

Fair value at measurement date $0.239 to $0.271

Share price $0.70
Exercise $0.70
Risk-free interest rate 1.00%
Expected volatility 51.27%
Expected dividend yield 5.00%
Expected exercise multiple 1.8 to 4.0

ot 75 ¥R 2% MY &

(BB - LUBTTIIR)

20 WBRRE(E)

(©)

BREZAFERMEBARR

PR s S ME R B EZ
Rz RFETIZBARLE
Bz NFERE - AIREZ
TMEEER T -NEK
Bz AFEMRFTRFRZER
P HE 43 DA IR o 22 1R R e AR 1
BRIBB=ZEARILGE - IE
BEZENFHRRERTE
ZIEHEMAZBAERA -

HERAAERZERNBR
K BRI

“E-HEREATERER
R 5%

REFEBZAFE $0.176%E
$0.194
mi%EAE $0.405
TEER $0.419
# [ fg ) 1.97%
T8 HA R 18 52.84%
TEHR K E X 2.47%
TEETTEEE 22%2.8
—REBRELFERKEEHR
B
REtE2AZAFE  $0.239%
$0.271
miEEAE $0.70
THEER $0.70
[ B2 F1| = 1.00%
T8 HA R 18 51.27%
TEHIR Bl & = 5.00%
FEHITHEEH 1.824.0
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BRE(E)

20

SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

(c)

d

Fair value of the Share Options and assumptions
(continued)

Risk-free interest rate is based on the vyields of
the Hong Kong Exchange Fund Notes at the
grant date. Expected volatility is based on the
historical volatility (calculated based on the
weighted average remaining life of the share
options). Expected dividend vyield is based on
historical dividend trend of the Company and
expected future dividend policy determined by
management.

The vesting of the share options granted are
subject to the performance of the Group and other
conditions. Such non-market conditions have not
been taken into account in the grant date fair
value measurement of the share options. There are
no market conditions associated with the share
options granted.
The Trinomial Model is subject to certain
fundamental limitations because of the subjective
nature of and uncertainty
assumptions and inputs to the model as well as
certain inherent limitations of the model itself. Any

relating to the

changes in the above assumptions or inputs may
materially affect the fair value estimation.

The total expense recognised in profit or loss for
the year ended 31 March 2019 in respect of the
Share Options is $1,186,000 (2018: $2,908,000)
(note 28(a)).

KARRIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED =X B E#ERER AT

20

(©)

d

BREZAFERMEBERR
(&)
ERRMNERZRERBINE
HEeErERBBZEEER -
B ET R IR AR B E 2R R (IR
1% B8 RCHE 2 O #E F 35 | 5
[RETE) - BHREXRRER
RA)Z I BE SR RE ek N IR
BEFARERBEEK -

REZBEREZZBIORR
REB 2 R B MEMIGME - 1t
FMHHRTEZBRERH
BRAZRIIAFEZEE -
RERA MR B ERREZ
MG EEAHKSE -

ZHRE R R B KR -
REB s HEREERREE
BTN ARETEAR
BAARG 2 BRME - LualifRE
K BIBAEMZ(CREH AT
BEHFELEERTE -

HE-_ZT-NF=ZA=+—H
HFEE REZCHERZE
AR EE & 51,186,000
(== —)\4F : 2,908,0007T )
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21  OTHER RESERVES 21 Htf#E
(@ Group @ &&
Other
Available-for- financial
Capital ~ Share-based sale assets assets Total
Share  Treasury Capital Merger redemption  compensati luati luati lati other  Retained
premium share  reserve  reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve  reserve  reserve  earnings
e HfER
EARE HROXA BEZ BEZ bR
RBER  EER  BARE  AHER B cMeRE ERRRE  EMRRE RERR &% REEA
$'000 $'000 $/000 $'000 §'000 §'000 §'000 §'000 $/000 $'000 $'000
i i i i i i i i i i i
Balance at 1 April 2017 “2-tE@A-A
P 4454 75 2608 (38000 459 4,848 65 — B0 212604 666279
Profit for the year EERF = = = = - - - - - — 182,563
Remeasurement of provision for long R ERH B8

service payments (note 25(b) (Fr3E2s(b) = = = = = = = = = = (2,213)
Dividends paid in respect of the LEERRRA

previous year - - - - - - - - - —  (103,803)
Dividends paid in respect of current  KFERIER S

year = = = = = = = = = = (31942)
Currency translation differences EhpEzg = = = = = = = = 65,974 65,974 -
Equity settled share-based transactions MRH% A2 25

(note 20(d)) (M 3E20(d) — — — — — 2,908 — — - 2,908 —
Fair value gains on other financial ~ Ett & MEEATFEZNE

assets = = = = = = 23 = s 3 =
Cancellation of shares (note 21(c)ii) 3 ) (#F & 21(c)i) = 9577 = = 811 = = = - 10388 057)
Issuance of share upon exercise of  fTREREX TR

share options (note 19(c) (K3t19(0) 4521 - = = = (1,341) - - - 3,180 =
Release of exchange reserve upon ~ HENERAFEHELHE

disposal of subsidiaries (note 34) (F3t34) = = = = = = = = 944 944 -
Repurchase of shares (note 21(c)ii)  EIE& AR 3 (R 2 211c)(ii) = 8,702) = = = = = - - (8,702) -
Balance at 31 March 2018 “®-\fZBZ+-R

&8 278975 — 2608 (38000 1270 6,415 28 — B9 87519 701307
Balance at 1 April 2018, as previously —E—/\FBA—-B2 &8

reported TEEE 278975 = 2,608 (38,000) 1,270 6,415 288 = 35,963 287,519 701,307
Reclassification on initial adoption of &R EAE BB &S

HKFRS 9 (note 2(c)ai) RARIRZEH DR

(HrE20/a0) = = = = = = (268) 28 = = =
Balance at 1 April 2018, restated B -E-\EMA-AH

a3 ] 278975 = 2,608 (38,000) 1,270 6,415 - 288 35,963 287,519 701,307
Profit for the year FRER - - - - - - - - - — 22138
Remeasurement of provision for long  RERB L EREHNHE

service payments (note 25(b)) (M 3E25(b) — — — — — — — — — — 415
Dividends paid in respect of the LEERERS

previous year — — — — — — — — — — (145,552)
Dividends paid in respect of current  AFEERHR S

year = = = = = = = = = = (59,755)
Currency translation differences EEBEER - - — — - - - - B5677)  (35,677) -
Equity settled share-based transactions ARH X2 %5

(note 20(d) (Hf 20 = = = = = 1186 = = = 1,186 =
Fair value gains on other financial ~ Etb 2B EERTE Mz

assets - - - - - - - 2 - 2 -
Cancelation of shares (note 21(c)ii) 53 B 9 (¥ &21(0)i) = 4400 = = 412 = = = = 4812 (4400
Issuance of share upon exercise of 7 EREAETRH

share options (note 19(c)) (B 319(c) 1197 = = = = (363) - - — 834 -
Release upon lapse of share options 38 BAETE i (M 20(b)

(note 20(b)) = = = = = (59) = = = (59) 59
Repurchase of shares (note 21(c)ii) B &R {3 (Ff & 211c)(ii) — (4400 = = = = = - — (4400 -
Balance at 31 March 2019 ZE-NEZAZT-R

i 280,172 = 2,608 (38,000) 1,682 7179 = 290 286 254217 713,460
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OTHER RESERVES (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7 3R 3k MY &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B SBFAAIN + LAAETTIIR)

21 HtifEE(E)

Company by AR
Other  Available-for-
Capital Share-based financial assets ~ sale assets
Share Treasury  redemption  Contributed  compensati revaluati [uati Total Retained
premium share reserve surplus reserve reserve reserve  other reserve earnings
R EtER  WHEE
BXRE xffz BEZ BEz  EftER
RiEE EER  AHEE BE  HEBE  EGRR  EfRR &% REEH
§000 $000 $000 §1000 §000 §000 §000 $000 $000
i r r T i i i r Fr
Balance at 1 April 2017 ZR-tERA-AZER 274454 (875) 459 193,185 4,848 = 65 472,36 186,862
Profit for the year EREF = = = - - - - 199,341
Remeasurement of provision for long ~ RARKLEEENE
service payments = = = — — = = (147)
Dividend paid in respect of the previous  FEEEIEMR &
year = = = = = = = = (103,803)
Dividend paid in respect of current year  AFEREH S = = = = = = = = (31,942
Equity settled share-based transactions  BAR{3 (1 2 %5 (B 3
(note 20(d) 20(d) = = = 2908 = = 2908 =
Fair value gains on other financial assets  E & BEELFE ME = = = = = = 03 03 =
Repurchase of shares (note 21(clii) B R 15 (K3 21(c)i) - (8,702) = = = - (8,702)
Cancelltion of shares (note 21(clii) 33 (H E21(0)i) = 9577 811 = = = = 10388 9577)
Issuance of share upon exercise of share 7% ERER E1T R
options (note 19(c) (B t19(0) 4521 = = (1341 = = 3,180 =
Balance at 31 March 2018 Z§-N\fZA=t-H
268 218,975 - 1270 193,185 6,415 - 268 480,133 240,734
Balance at 1 April 2018, as previously ~ =B-NEMA-A2 &8
report LERE 218,975 - 1,270 193,185 6,415 - 268 480,133 240,734
Reclassification on initial adoption of ~ ERERERHHRE
HKFRS 9fnote 2(c)al() EHROR2ERAR
(M £2001al) - = = = = 268 (268) - -
Balance at 1 April 2018, restated ESl—%-\§MA-R
244 278975 = 1270 193,185 6,415 268 = 480,133 0734
Profit for the year ERET - = = = = = = = 184,884
Remeasurement of provision for long ~~ RERKLEEENHE
service payments = = = = = = = = 21
Dividend paid in respect of the previous £ 2R &
year = = = = = = = = (145,552)
Dividend paid in respect of current year  AEEEER S - - - - - - - (59,755)
Equity settled share-based transactions ~ MRH%f 225
(note 20(d) (Bti200) = = = = 1,186 = = 1186 =
Fair value gains on other financial assets X s & BEEATE M & = = = = 2 = 2 =
Repurchase of shares (note 21(clii) B8 £ (H3E21(cli) = 4,400 = = = = - (4,400 -
Cancelltion of shares (note 21cli) &R (A (1 2100 = 4400 4 = = = = 46812 (4400)
Issuance of share upon exercise of share 172 B R B % 2T/ 17
options (note 19(c)) (R z£19(0) 1,197 = = = 363) - - 834 -
Release upon lapse of share options XHERERL
(note 20(5) (Bt&E20(0)) - - - - (59) = = (59) 59
Balance at 31 March 2019 ZE-AEZR=t-A
&4 20172 = 1,682 193,185 77 29 = 482,508 215,949

KARRIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED EZFIBIFRZRBR A A



Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

21 OTHER RESERVES (continued)

(b)

(c)

Company (continued)

Under the Bermuda Companies Act 1981,
contributed surplus is distributable to
shareholders, subject to the condition that the
Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or
make a distribution out of contributed surplus if
(i) it is, or would after the payment be, unable to
pay its liabilities as they become due, or (ii) the
realisable value of its assets would thereby be less
than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued
share capital and share premium account.

At 31 March 2019,
reserves available for distribution to equity
shareholders of the Company was $409,134,000
(2018: $433,919,000). After the end of the
reporting period, the directors proposed a final

the aggregate amount of

dividend of HK5.0 cents per ordinary share
(2018: final dividend of HK4.75 cents per
ordinary share), amounting to $99,592,000 (2018:
$94,661,000) (note 33(a)). This dividend has not
been recognised as a liability at the end of the
reporting period.

Nature and purpose of reserves

(i) Translation reserve
The translation reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of
entities outside Hong Kong. The reserve is
dealt with in accordance with the accounting
policies set out in note 2(z).

(ii) Other financial assets revaluation reserve
The other financial assets revaluation reserve
comprises the cumulative net change in the
fair value of other financial assets held at the
end of the reporting period and is dealt with
in accordance with the accounting policies
set out in note 2(g).

ot 75 ¥R 2% MY &

(BB - LUBTTIIR)

21 HfbfE B (&)

(b)

(©

RNTE (&)
$ETF§;@25—?L/\—¢“?5£
%?ﬁ()\ﬁﬁ%—ﬂﬁ“/)ﬁ%ﬂx
% BEXNEEROAR
TREXNEIMEE i(n)ﬁéﬁ
EZr2REESEAMIR

ﬁ%lﬁi\&ﬁaﬁﬁﬂx$&ﬁ§ﬁ
wE AR BIARFEAR
AEf - AR SREHA
BBRELEDIK

—h&=A=+—8"
A REARIERIBTEAZ
15 42 58 /5409,134,0007T (—
T — )\ £ : 433,919,0007T) °
$&¢Hﬁﬂ<1§ EEeREAER
BRERBEFREERRS0E
W(ZZE—NF: RKRHAKREF
B% I 4. 7558 1L) - R A
99,592,0007T (= & — )\ % :
94,661,0007T) (MI7E33(a)) °
S AR B RS BRI R I R 7 7R
BEE-

=

HEZHEEREN

iy BERME
hE#ERERR
BLAINE Eﬂﬁﬂw#‘ﬁ%ﬁﬁ
EEZHABHNEZR -
BRAREIIREN 22
I 2T HRERE -

(i HtsMEESMEREE
HttemMEESMHRHE
BRRBERRFRZ
HiteMEERFELZ
REEHFE ARE
MY EE2(g) B 2 &5t R
BRIE o
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7 3R 3k MY &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (S BEAAIN + LABITTHIR)

21

KARRIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED =X B E#ERER AT

OTHER RESERVES (continued)

(c)

Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)
(iii) Treasury share

The Group repurchased a total of 4,112,000
(2018: 7,142,000) of the Company’s shares
during the year ended 31 March 2019. The
total consideration paid to repurchase these
shares was $4,400,000 (2018: $8,702,000),
which has been deducted from equity
attributable to the owners of the Company.
March 2019,

During the year ended 31
4,112,000 shares (2018: 8,110,000)

cancelled. Accordingly, the premium of
$4,400,000 (2018: 9,577,000) paid on the
repurchase of shares was charged to retained

earnings.

(iv) Capital redemption reserve

Upon cancellation of 4,112,000 shares
(2018: 8,110,000), an amount equivalent
to the par value of the shares cancelled of
$412,000 (2018: $811,000) was transferred
from share capital to the capital redemption

reserve.

were

21

Hith (&)
0 RBHEZHEERBN(E)
(i) EFER

(iv)

HE_FT-NF=A=
+—HLEFER A&
H @ B§4,112,000% A
NAIRHG(ZE—NEF:
7,142,0000%) - & [ &
ZBRhBIHRER
4,400,000t (= & — N\
£ :8,702,0007T) * % &
BHERARFREEN
BmPHR BHEZT
—h&F=A=+—81t
FE R 4,112,0008% 5
—Z — )\ : 8,110,000
ROEH T - Atk - &
[ f& A% (0 i 215 2 % B
4,400,000t (= & — N\
£ :9,5770007T) B B R
Bim A8 o

BERBE O % B

R 5E $54,112,0000% 12 (=
= — )\ : 8,110,0004% )
% HERDFTHEKRMD
ME{E412,0007C (ZZE—N
#F:811,00070) 2 &£ REE
AR AN E iR E & AR FE D
{1 -



Notes to the Financial Statements

Rt 75 ¥R R MY &E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (FSBBEIN + LAEITIIR)

TRADE PAYABLES, ACCRUALS AND OTHER 22 BESEMNKRN -  BEtERARHEME
PAYABLES 19 & X
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
$’000 $'000
Fr Tt
Tedie peyelalies L S 155,469 208,737
Accruals for rental expenses Bt € 13,587 17,323
Accruals for purchase of property, [EFtBEEYX BKF
plant and equipment B 22,740 24,053
Salaries and staff welfare payable EftHe REIEHN 169,759 175,491
Accruals for properties under EFHEEME
development 26,884 14,487
Other payables and accruals H At & - iR 50 &
B EA 88,327 114,532
Receipts in advance (see note (a) T8 U5 iR X
below) (5T P 5 (a) 115,854 65,411
437,151 411,297
592,620 620,034
The carrying amounts of trade payables, accruals and BHEMNIRR - BT E R K HAbE
other payables approximate their fair values. All trade IR R Z IR E{E B A AT - 1
payables and accruals as at 31 March 2019 and 2018 —E-AFR_FE-NF=ZA=+
are expected to be settled within one year. —BZABEESRNIRR N EAE
RSN —FRBN -
Trade payables ageing analysis, based on invoice date, BHRMNIRFIZEZBHRAE IR
is as follows: B OMIT
2019 2018
—E-hF —T—N\F
$000 $'000
T TT
0 to 90 days 0ZE90H 154,666 197,284
91 to 180 days 912180H 692 8,047
181 to 360 days 181£2360H 90 2,794
Over 360 days 360H A £ 21 612
155,469 208,737
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B 7% AR MY aE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (S BEAAIN + LABITTHIR)

22 TRADE PAYABLES, ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES
(continued)

(@

Receipts in advance

The balance represent the excess of cumulative
made by customers over the cumulative revenue
recognised in profit or loss at the end of the
reporting period, and are recognised as contract
liabilities (see note 2(q)).

Typical payment terms which impact on the
amount of contract liabilities recognised are as
follows:

Manufacturing segment

When the Group receives a deposit before
the production activity commences, this will
give rise to contract liabilities at the start
of a contract, until the revenue recognised
on the project exceeds the amount of the
deposit. The amount of deposit is negotiated
on a case by case basis with customers.

Property development

The Group receives receipts in advance
from customers when they sign the sale
and purchase agreement. These receipts in
advance are recognised as contract liabilities
until the properties are completed and
legally assigned to/accepted by customers.

KARRIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED =X B E#ERER AT

22 EBFEMKRXK:

BT B AR HAME

TR (E)

(@

T8 W IR K
HRBERBRERREFAEL
ZRFNKERBAER ST
RLZBRFTWAZE D - AR
BHEIE - (RMiE2(9)

— WEEHB

EARKREELEEDAM
AR B IR 2 &R
EEHNRBEREEER
BfE BICHRAREAK
ABBEBRESHEASIL-
ZeeBERBARER
HEFWHE -

— BEEE

AEBRRTEE h#
REEWBEP MR-
ELEFHEREREYD X
TRATEERATP®
REWRZAERBERL
BfE-



22

TRADE PAYABLES, ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES 22 EZEMNIE B EARHEME
(continued) SRR (EZ)
@) Receipts in advance (continued) @ TFEWIRFR(ZE)
Movements in contract liabilities: aRNaEzE
$'000
Tt
Balance at 1 April 2018 —ZE-NFHUA—Hz& 65,411
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of RF AR A Y E 4
recognising revenue during the year that BEZEERAEHEL
was included in the contract liabilities at & & &k 2
the beginning of the period (43,126)
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of WHRTEN IR R EH S DN EE
receiving receipts in advances o 96,359
Exchange difference H#BER (2,790)
Balance at 31 March 2019 —E-AFE=ZA=t—HZ
iR 115,854

Notes to the Financial Statements

ot 75 ¥R 2% MY &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (FSBBEIN + LAEITIIR)

All contract liabilities are expected to be
recognised as revenue within one year.

The group has applied the practical expedient in
paragraph 121 of HKFRS 15 to its sales contracts
for manufacturing products and properties
development such that information about revenue
that the group will be entitled to when it satisfies
the remaining performance obligations that had
an original expected duration of one year or less
need not to be disclosed.

PIEEHBERAEN —FR
FERASUWA

REBE ST BMEHREER
FISRENNR ZAIITERE A
EEARERBEEREME
EBHEEARY  ALBERA
SEREZREEHENARTEEH
HAIR A—F AT FIR B A
EEZHEBRA EERTE
ZEHHE -
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260

23 BANK BORROWINGS 23 RITEERE
2019 2018
—ZE-hEF —E-)N\F
$000 $'000
Fr T
Portion of bank borrowings repayable —% K& & I 7 %8
within one year and classified as RRBABZRT
current liabilities & & 2 #17 66,588 135,002
Portion of bank borrowings repayable —%F{&{E&E I 5 8
after one year and classified as non-  AIERBEEZ
current liabilities  BOE‘EZ®G 333,754
Total bank borrowings RITEERSE 620,342 625,902
Representing: Ra&:
Secured gHEF 239,442 190,000
Unsecured £ 380,900 435,902
Total bank borrowings RITEE RS 620,342 625,902

KARRIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED EZFIBIFRZRBR A A
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Notes to the Financial Statements

ot 75 ¥R 2% MY &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (FSBBEIN + LAEITIIR)

BANK BORROWINGS (continued)

As at 31 March 2019, banking facilities of
$558,600,000 (2018: $240,000,000)
by the property under development for sale of
HK$385,464,000 (2018: $nil) and the share capital of
the two wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company,
Castfast Industrial (Yan Tien) Limited and Zf 2= 3z &
B EF AR AR, such facilities were utilised to
extent of $239,442,000 as at 31 March 2019 (2018:
$190,000,000).

were secured

At 31 March 2019, bank borrowings totalling
$66,588,000 (2018: $135,002,000) have a contractual
maturity within one year or are subject to repayment on
demand clauses. Some of the Group’s banking facilities
are subject to the fulfilment of covenants relating to
certain of the Group’s statement of financial position
ratios. If the Group were to breach the covenants
the drawn down facilities would become payable on
demand. The Group regularly monitors its compliance
with these covenants. As at 31 March 2019 and 2018
none of the covenants relating to drawn down facilities

had been breached.

The carrying amounts of bank borrowings approximate
their fair values and are denominated in HK$.

23

RITEEE)

R-ZT—hE=ZA=+—H K&
R 17 @ & 58558,600,000 T (=&
—\4F : 240,000,0007T) * AFESHE
EY)%£385,464,0007T (—T—/)\F :
EINARNTMEEZENBRAR &
HEBE2PBRASHAERARRES
REIFHERBERARZRAE
KR MR- hEF=A=1+—
HE® B 2 B & 58 4239,442,000
7t (== — )\ : 190,000,0007T) °

R-ZB—NEF=ZA=1+—8 ' B17E
BEAHNRSHBEAE—FRIFZENIZ
ZREEIE R 2 © 5 2£66,588,000
T (= Z — )\ £ : 135,002,0007T) °
REBPHRITHEAFAREE
HETHBRAREEREE 2 AR
BITERAEE - WAKEERE
BRFE - AEXRzRERIEEX
BE AEETHERHETHES
REZBER NZBE-HAER-Z
—\F=ZA=+—H8 #@EHEX
BEMERMyRAEEER -

RITEEZRAERLRQTERD
KRIAB TR B -
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24 TAXATION IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 24 MRHEEBHBRRERDFHIE
FINANCIAL POSITION

(@ Current taxation (@ AHEAHIE
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
$’000 $'000
Fr T

Provision for Hong Kong Profits FE /AR EH 2

Tax for the year i 15,622 19,224
Provisional Hong Kong Profits Tax B 15 & & & &
paid M (18,771) (14,656)
(3,149) 4,568
Balance of Hong Kong Profits Tax PARIEEEBFEH
provision relating to prior years % 2 & & 4,880 5,513
Provision for PRC taxes FEISH I ER 70,243 61,508
71,974 71,589
Current tax recoverable R HA AT Uy [B] 7 1B (632) (138)
Current tax payable 7N HA B A< 75 18 72,606 71,727
71,974 71,589

262 KARRIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED EF/ BB ZERERE AT
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Rt 75 ¥R R MY &E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (FSBBEIN + LAEITIIR)

TAXATION IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 24

FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

(b) Deferred taxation

REGEEMBRRKRFREAE)

(b) I FE B IR

Fair value gain
Accelerated of investment

depreciation  properties Others Total
RENE
Deferred tax liabilities EEREEE NERFE ALEZHE Hit At
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T
At 1 April 2017 “E-tEMA-H 5,681 1,850 4257 11,788
(Credited)/charged to profit or loss ~ RB#&(FTA) /T 2,098) 519 - (1,579)
Discontinued operations (note 34) BRILRERH
(B 3E34) — - (4,257) (4,257)
Exchange difference RBzER - 201 - 201
At 31 March 2018 and 1 April 2018 =Z-\#=A=+-H
k=E-N\FMA-H 3,583 2,570 — 6,153
(Credited)/charged to profit or loss RERGIA) /S # (936) 224 4414 3,702
Exchange difference RBER - (144) — (144)
At 31 March 2019 “E-hEZR=1-H 2,647 2,650 4,414 9,711
Tax losses Others Total
Deferred tax assets EEREBEE HEER Hi GRS
$'000 $'000 $'000
T T T
At 1 April 2017 “E—-t+tHEWMA—H (2,132) (1,525) (3,657)
Credited to profit or loss REZFA (1,526) (4,354) (5,880)
At 31 March 2018 and —E-N\f=ZA=t-—H
1 April 2018 E-E2-\¥WmA—-H (3,658) (5,879) 9,537)
Credited to profit or loss RE@EA (1,183) (319) (1,502)
At 31 March 2019 —E-NE=A=t-—H (4,841) (6,198) (11,039)
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (S BEAAIN + LABITTHIR)

RGEMBRRKRFREAE)

24

TAXATION IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

(b)

Deferred taxation (continued)

The deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to set
off and when the deferred income taxes relate to
the same tax jurisdiction. The following amounts,
determined after appropriate offsetting, are shown
in the consolidated statement of financial position:

24

(b)

i SE B E ()

ERETEENAHELTHAE
EEEEHAERERE - ME
SRS R — ISR -
AU AT % I AE 7 TR & B R R KT
BIRBEEREHE - REtA#E
EHEIHER T SRAREEH

BARARARER
2019 2018
—E-F —FE-N\F
$000 $'000
Fr Tt
Deferred tax assets EEFREE E (5,001) (7,354)
Deferred tax liabilities BEEHREAR 3,673 3,970
(1,328) (3,384)
At 31 March 2019, in accordance with the N-—E—hE=Ag=+—8 -

accounting policy set out in note 2(w), the
Group had unrecognised deferred tax assets of
approximately $16,957,000 (2018: $14,133,000)
primarily representing the tax effect of cumulative
tax losses (subject to agreement by relevant tax
authorities) which can be carried forward against
future taxable income, of which, tax losses of
$102,770,000 (2018: $98,173,000) can be carried
forward indefinitely.

KARRIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED =X B E#ERER AT

RRHE NS BRME2wW)
AEERBERECHEBEEE
#916,957,0007C (=& — )\ F :
14,133,0007T) - FER K RZ5T
MEBBZHEFYE(ERE
ARG KEARE) Z28A
HARRHBBBWAESE - MR
TH E5 18 49102,770,0007C (=&
— J\4F : 98,173,0007T) A £& R
H 588 o
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (FSBBEIN + LAEITIIR)

25 RUKBANEE

25 RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

(@

(b)

Defined contribution plans

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong
employees to join the Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”), a defined
contribution scheme managed by an independent
trustee. Under the MPF Scheme, each of the
Group and monthly
contributions to the scheme at 5% of the
employees’ defined under the
Mandatory Provident Fund legislation. Both
the Group’s and the employees’ mandatory

its employees makes

earnings as
contributions are subject to a cap of monthly

income of $30,000 and thereafter,
contributions are voluntary.

relevant

As stipulated by rules and regulations in the
PRC, the Group contributes to state-sponsored
retirement plans for its employees in the PRC.
The Group’s annual contributions to these plans
represent defined contributions, and the Group
has no further obligations for the actual payment
of pensions or post-retirement benefits beyond
the annual contributions. The state-sponsored
retirement plans are responsible for the entire
pension obligations payable to retired employees.

Defined benefit retirement plan — Long service
payments

Provision for long service payments represents
the Group’s obligations for long service payments
to its employees in Hong Kong on cessation of
employment in certain circumstances under the
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance.

The obligation is calculated using the projected
unit credit method, discounted to its present
value and reduced by entitlements accrued under
the Group’s retirement plans that are attributable
to contributions made by the Group. Such long
service payment obligations are valued by BMI
Appraisals Limited, an independent qualified
actuary valuer.

(@

(b)

REMEE
rEBECELHEEAREDH
BN R ([AE S
g2l - aESFEBRATEM
HEFE ABUBTAETRE o
BEEESTE  AEEK
HESsBAHZREBEREZ
AB(ERRBRHEERERE
B1)5% ¥ ZETEIELHR -
REBREEZEAARTMN
30,000 B LR - Eig 2%
AlEEREEE -

REBEPBEEERE AEEA
ARTEEEMRECBERE
BhRRETEIE K - N H
A it 5t &) 2 F 5K s R E #
7 RMEEEAMEREAKRE
X EGR KRR A AV B A E
EALE - RINMEB ZFIAR
ReEXh—HHEREY R
REtEIBE -

RERKBANE — RERK
B
RHRBEEBHAKERE
FRERRIEHIES THERTR
IFEAE& M 2 REIRF
ETEZEE -

A LR AR 5 AR
% Wi EARERABAK
PP e
2 fEstiERs « HRMEB S A
E B A B S 40 T 56
BT EERARGE -
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25 RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (continued) 25

(b)

Defined benefit retirement plan — Long service
payments (continued)

The amounts recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position are determined as

RANBEREEE)
(b) RERKERFTE — RBRK

BE(#E)
RERB BN KRR 2 &
BENITAETE:

follows:
2019 2018
—E-NF —T-)N\F
$’000 $'000
T Tt
Present value of unfunded RIEEEEZEBER
obligations and liability in RER e M BRI R
the consolidated statement of W Z EB&
financial position 7,388 7,718

A portion of the above liability is expected to
be paid after more than one year. However, it
is not practicable to segregate this amount from
the amounts payable in the next twelve months,
as future contributions will also relate to future
services rendered and future changes in actuarial
assumptions and market conditions. The Group
expects to pay $nil in contributions to defined
benefit retirement plan for the year ending 31
March 2020 (2019: $123,000).

KARRIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED =X B E#ERER AT

FiaEZ—HoEHERE
B—FBIMA - Rl Bt
BMERKRRT_EAENZE
BORLAAIT  REBKRK
HRINE R AR R 2 RIS &
ARBEBRZETHBRZK
B oHE_T-_TF=-A=1
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (FSBBEIN + LAEITIIR)

25 RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (continued) 25 BRAKBENEEE)
(b) Defined benefit retirement plan — Long service b RERKEBFNFTE — RER
payments (continued) BE(#E)
The amounts recognised in the consolidated RirABELREMEEKA
statement of profit or and other RERZ BT
comprehensive income are as follows:
2019 2018
—E-NF —T-N\F
$’000 $'000
Fr T
Current service cost 7N B R 75 A 72N 154 166
Interest on obligation BEFMNE 152 101
Total amounts recognised in REZEERZ
profit or loss (note 28(a)) # 2 7 (M 5E28() 306 267
Net actuarial (gains)/losses REA 2 EHA
recognised in other ERRZEE
comprehensive income FUR)EA (415) 2,213
Total (109) 2,480

The current service cost and the net interest on
obligation were included in the “general and
administrative expenses” in the consolidated

statement of profit or loss.

AHRERALFEENED
BERNEEBRERT —RETT
BERA -
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RANBEREEE)

25 RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (continued) 25
(b) Defined benefit retirement plan — Long service
payments (continued)
Movements in the provision for long service
payments of the Group are as follows:

AERKEFNGTE — RER
k& (#E)
AEERARGSEFES A
T

2019 2018
—E-NF —EF-N\EF
$'000 $'000
T Tt
Beginning of the year F14 7,718 5,642
Remeasurements: ERE
— Actuarial (gains)/losses — BAABRMES
arising from demographic ZHRE (W)
assumptions 518 @51) 1,398
— Actuarial losses/(gains) arising — E1 B 75 B2 3% 2t &
from changes in financial FEEXZRE
assumption & () 231 (169)
— Actuarial (gains)/losses — HERARMES
arising from experience ZHEE W),/
adjustment B8 (195) 984
(415) 2,213
Payments made during the year & A E {5 484) (404)
Refund received during the year 4 PRI E] iR 5k 263 —
Current service cost 7N HA AR 75 A AR 154 166
Interest cost M BB A 152 101
End of the year FR 7,388 7,718

The weighted average duration of the defined
benefit obligation is 10.3 years (2018: 10.7 years).
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (FSBBEIN + LAEITIIR)

25 RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (continued)

(b)

Defined benefit retirement plan — Long service
payments (continued)

Significant actuarial assumptions and sensitivity
analysis are as follows:

25 RBRABANEMFEGE)

(b)

AERKEFNGTE — RER
k& (#E)
EZRBRERILRBRESHTN
T

2019 2018

—ZE-hEF —E-)N\F

Per annum Per annum

g4 G

Discount rate A5 38 =X 1.66% 1.98%
Expected rate of future salary KR % B 2

increases TEHfIE R X 3.00% 3.00%

The below analysis shows how the defined benefit
retirement plan — long service payments as at
31 March 2019 and 2018 would have increased/
(decreased) as a result of 0.50% change in the
significant actuarial assumptions:

RZE-—NAERZF—NF=H
=t+t— B EZREBRKXIE
o/ CRid) 0.50% % FE@EF
RIRETE — RERB e 2#
5T :

2019 2018

“E-RE S N:3
Increase in ~ Decrease in  Increase in - Decrease in
0.50% 0.50% 0.50% 0.50%
BM0.50%  WA0.50%  EIN0.50% 5 40.50%
$'000 $'000 $000 $'000
T r Tr Tr
Discount rate BH% (361) 389 (375) 457
Expected rate of future salary increases 7 %7 B < 78 #i % R X 16 (18) 15 (22)

The above sensitivity analysis is based on the
assumption that changes in actuarial assumptions
are not correlated and therefore it does not
take into account the correlations between the
actuarial assumptions.

ANEHRESMZERKRE
NERERRZELEERH
B FR Bt ERILAER
Mg g -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B SBFAAIN + LAAETTIIR)

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME/GAINS AND (LOSSES)

26 WA HttlA WER(ER)

Discontinued
Continuing operations operations
BECEEER BRLBEEH
2019 2018 2018
—E-hE TN\ TN\
$'000 $'000 $'000
r T T
Revenue from contracts with customers within & B85 & &5 &A1 E 155
the scope of HKFRS 15 HERNEEFZEHNA
Sales of merchandise and provision of services  Em#HERIEERH
— Metal and plastic business — I BBEK 1,348,230 1,576,143 —
— Electronic manufacturing services business —ETERRIER 1,077,231 1,294,778 —
— Others — Bt — 419 25,89
2,425,461 2,871,340 25,896
Sale of properties NEHE 225,708 48,540 =
2,651,169 2,919,880 25,896
Other income/gains and (losses) BN/ KBER(ER)
Rental income BeWA 4,477 2,622 —
Gain/(loss) on disposal of property, plant and HMEWE  BERRELZ
equipment Yess /(B H8) 293 3,175 (93)
Others i 2,762 9 1
7532 5,889 92)

KARRIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED EZFIBIFRZRBR A A
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (FSBBEIN + LAEITIIR)

EXPENSES BY NATURE 27 BUMEIBEZER
Discontinued
Continuing operations operations
BECEER BRLEEEK
2019 2018 2018
ZE-NE “2-N\EF —E-N\fF
$'000 $'000 $'000
r T T
Carrying amount of inventories sold EEFEZKER
(note 16(b)) (Ft £ 16(0) 1,807,116 2,134,068 15,306
Carrying amount of properties sold EENZE ZREE
(note 17(b)) (Bt 717(0)) 103,573 29,762 -
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  #1% - BERREZTE
(note 7): (M3t7) :
— owned assets — BREE 51,663 49119 5,844
— leased assets —HEEE - — 27
51,663 49,119 5,871
Amortisation of land use rights (note 6) 13008 P18 2 % 8 (o) 473 47 —
Amortisation of intangible assets (note 9) BYEE 2 &H (M) 1,322 1,293 2,400
Employee benefit expenses (including directors’ EEBFIF L (EEESHE)
remuneration) (note 28(a)) (Ft £ 28(a) 325,177 385,912 17,329
Operating lease rental of premises MEZBENERS 6,671 5,565 12,759
Net exchange (gain)/loss BRKE)/ BEFE (13,003) (4,947) 359
Auditors’ remuneration BEMM £ 3,616 3,300 18
Reversal of loss allowance on trade receivables & 5 & I i 31 /5 18 15 [l 5
(note 14) (Ft &E14) (692) - -
Other expenses B 57,846 59,112 6,670
2,343,762 2,663,656 60,712
Representing: f&:
Cost of revenue N 2,210,972 2,497,094 50,087
Distribution and selling expenses DHRBEER 24,918 29,677 1,699
General and administrative expenses —RRTHER 107,872 136,885 8,926
2,343,762 2,663,656 60,712
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28 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES — INCLUDING
DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

(@ Employee benefit expenses during the year are as

28

BEEANXH — BEES
B <
@ FARAEEBAZHWOT:

follows:
Discontinued
Continuing operations operations
BEEEREK BREEERH
2019 2018 2018
—g-NF N\ ZEN\fF
$000 $'000 $'000
r T T
Wages and salaries FMRIE 304,029 361,492 16,894
Contributions to defined contribution R FR Mz 8 2 5
retirement plans 19,656 21,245 435
Provision for long service payments R AR 22 4 (7 25(0)
(note 25(h)) 306 267 =
Share option expenses (note 20(d)) Mg = (Mt 20(d) 1,186 2,908 —
325,177 385,912 17,329

KARRIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED EZFIBIFRZRBR A A
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28 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES — INCLUDING 28 EERAXH — BREES
DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) ME (&)
(b) Directors’ remuneration b ==&
Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant RIBEEB(RAEHI)E383F
to section 383 of the Hong Kong Companies NRARMED 2 % Z 8 (B @
Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies EFERMCREERD RO Z
Ordinance (Disclosure of Information about EEMeWELT:

Benefits of Directors) Regulation is as follows:

2019
“E-hE
Employer’s
contributions Share-based
Discretionary to retirement payments
Name of director ESEB Fees  Salaries honuses plans  Sub-total (note) Total
BERR  BHREHE MR A3
e e 2 ZEEHX NG SR (R EE) et
$000 $'000 $/000 $/000 $'000 $'000 $/000
Tr Tr Tr Tr Fr Tr Tr
Executive directors HITEZE
Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai EBEE — 4,736 2,495 — 7,231 — 7,231
Mr. Zhao Kai el kA — 1,204 1,681 18 2,903 — 2,903
Ms. Chan Ming Mui, Silvia R % f&/)\ @ — 860 1,065 18 1,943 242 2,185
Mr. Chan Raymond BRI EE — 1,002 1,218 18 2,238 242 2,480
Non-executive directors HRTEE
Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming DD 220 — 30 — 250 — 250
Mr. Ho Kai Man AR EAE — 449 143 18 610 - 610
Independent non-executive B TTEE
directors
Mr. So Wai Chun BEREE 110 — — — 110 - 110
Mr. Fong Hoi Shing pabi3 ¥ 110 - — — 110 — 110
Mr. Yam Chung Shing FEHLE 110 — — — 110 24 134
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28 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES — INCLUDING
DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)
(b) Directors’ remuneration (continued)

ABTTIIR)

BEEANXH — BEES

28

[ EAG-Y)

b) ESEME(E)

2018
—Z-\F
Employer’s
contributions Share-based
Discretionary  to retirement payments
Name of director EEEA Fees  Salaries bonuses plans  Sub-total (note) Total
BEER  BResE AR 7 %
ik 2 2L ZEFHR N R (R ) CES
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T Tr T T
Executive directors HITEE
Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai e 5 4 — 471 2,395 = 7,116 = 7116
Mr. Zhao Kai pic e = 1,126 2,079 16 3,221 94 3,315
Ms. Chan Ming Mui, Silvia &4 /) 18 = 836 891 18 1,745 537 2,282
Mr. Chan Raymond BRR X %4+ = 978 1,022 18 2,018 537 2,555
Non-executive directors — FHHTEZE
Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming 2 B % & 150 = 30 = 180 = 180
Mr. Ho Kai Man R kAL = 433 136 18 587 = 587
Independent non-executive BV HHTEE
directors
Mr. So Wai Chun BRELE 100 = = = 100 = 100
Mr. Fong Hoi Shing TBEEE 100 = = = 100 = 100
Mr. Yam Chung Shing FEHEE 100 = = = 100 54 154
Note: These represent the estimated value of share options B 5T - b RABIR AR QB BB AR HE 5T

granted to the directors under the Company’s share
option scheme. The value of these share options
is measured according to the Group’s accounting
policies for share-based payments as set out in note
2(v). The details of these share options, including
the principal terms and number of options granted,
are disclosed in note 20 to the financial statements.

KARRIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ZFIEBR = BRBR QA

AR TERZMAABRER
B - WEBEEEELRE
N5 ) 0 B R 2(v) A B 2
R 2 & F BORETE o 1
EEBREZFE BRER
R BRI ERE - RAE
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (FSBBEIN + LAEITIIR)

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

(o)

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the
highest in the Group for the year include four

(2018: four)

directors whose emoluments are

reflected in the analysis presented above. The
emoluments payable to the remaining one (2018:
one) individuals during the year are as follows:

28

BEEANXH — BEFEES

< (&)

© DEESFMAL
AEREERRARSFHMZ
ALTEEOBR(CTE-NE: T
REF EMEEHRNLEX
DI REREH—R(ZE
—N\F:—R)REHFALZE
BT

2019 2018

—EB-hEF —ET-N\F

$’000 $000

T T

Basic salaries and allowances EARF e KER 1,130 1,098
Discretionary bonus (A g P S 344 332
Contributions to retirement plans R {REHE] 2 5K 18 18
Share-based payment VA BR 199 32 1~F 3 B 103 234
1,595 1,682

The emoluments fell within the following band:

ZEMSENINASBER

Number of individuals

$1,500,001 to $2,000,000

1,500,001 &
2,000,0007T

ATEHE
2019 2018
—EB-hEF —ET-N\F
1 1
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29 FINANCE COSTS, NET 29 BB A - FE
Discontinued
Continuing operations operations
BELEER BRIELEXR
2019 2018 2018
“E-nFE  ZE-N\EF —T-)N\F
$'000 $'000 $'000
Tr T T
Finance costs B BB
— Interest expense from — RBHKATELZ
financial liabilities measured SRAGEHNEX M
at amortised cost 37,094 27143 =
— Finance charges on obligations ~ — Bl & ET#&HE
under finance leases HBER — — 5
Less: interest expenses capitalised il - FEAER M EF &
into property under X B AL (5E)
development for sale (Note) (17,907) (12,260) —
19,187 14,883 5
Finance income BN
— Interest income from — REHEKAGTELZ
financial assets measured SREERBRA
at amortised cost (2,336) (1,128) )
— Other interest income from — BRAYEFAREMEZE
financial assets measured WA (FTEE) G &2
at FVOC! (recycling) SREEEMABWA (407) 414) —
(2,743) (1,542 @
Finance costs, net BB A  F8 16,444 13,341 1
Note: The borrowing costs have been capitalised at a rate of B EERAAFERNEI35% (ZF—
3.35% (2018: 3.23%) per annum. N :3.23%) WE A -
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INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF PROFIT OR LOSS

The amount of taxation charged to consolidated
statement of profit or loss represents:

REBEEBRBRPAESB

REABERIHZIHBENT

Discontinued
Continuing operations operations
BEREXRY BRLEEERH
2019 2018 2018
“g-0E ZE0\f T\
$'000 $'000 $'000
r T T
Current taxation KHHE
Hong Kong Profits Tax BB NEH
— current year — RER 15,622 19,224 —
— (over)/under-provision in prior years — EFZ(BE)/TRER (5,200) 135 -
PRC taxes EHE
— Corporate Income Tax — ERMEM 12,431 16,212 —
— Land Appreciation Tax — T ER 53,647 5,903
Deferred taxation (note 24(b) BEBUR (M E24(0) 2,200 (7459) —
78,700 34,015 -

Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at the rate of
16.5% (2018: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit
for the year for all group companies incorporated in
Hong Kong.

The Group’s operations in the PRC are subject to
Corporate Income Tax Law of the PRC at the standard
tax rate of 25%. Land Appreciation Tax is levied on
properties in mainland China developed by the Group
for sale, at progressive rates ranging from 30% to
60% on the appreciation of land value, which under
the applicable regulations is calculated based on
the revenue from sale of properties less deductible
expenditure including lease charges of land use
rights, borrowing costs and all property development
expenditure.

AR BBRIL ZEEBRRTIRIE

T—N\F 165%) ZHMERAIRE B
FIEHERE -

AEERPEZ EBAETHED
EABHARIZERE25% AT -
AEERPERMFAEEHEERR
ZUEFTH T MIEESBARER
E30%E60% ZEEHRZ L MILE
o RBRED - LHIBESE
TR IR W) 5 S5 &S W AR AT 0% 1B B
(BELMEAEHEAEER  BEKX
ARFIEMEZERAI)MEE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19 & %k

277



Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% AR MY aE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (S BEAAIN + LABITTHIR)

30 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 30 RESEZXRDFAEH ()
OF PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

The tax on the Group’s profit before taxation differs RNEE B MR AR N 2 IR R R
from the theoretical amount that would arise using the HRAERREBE LN 2 MEM
profits tax rate in Hong Kong, the Group’s place of EMABEZ BwmBIEZRNT:

domicile, as follows:

Discontinued

Continuing operations operations
BEREEER BRIEBEER
2019 2018 2018
ZB-hE —E)\F —E)\F
$'000 $'000 $'000
r T T
Profit/(loss) before taxation BHAEH/(BR) 300,086 251,722 (35,414)
Calculated at taxation rate of 16.5% (2018: BRHZE165% (22— \F:
16.5%) 16.5%) 5t & 49,514 41,534 (5,843)
Effect of different taxation rates in other EHEMBEZEHEZR B2
countries 21,424 6,491 (1,242)
Associate’s results reported net of tax BERRRE  MRHE (114) (144) -
Income not subject to taxation BERMIMA (53,554) (25,136) -
Expenses not deductible for taxation purposes A1 2 it} 12,955 4,186 4,383
Land appreciation tax on sales of properties ~ ¥IE#H%E 2 T L ETH 53,647 5903 —
Temporary difference not recognised AERCERER 53 6 341
(Over)/under-provision for Hong Kong taxation A& FEHE 2 (B%),/
in prior years TRk (5,200) 135 -
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses {3 {F 6 A W R 1 38 B 8 (215) (27) -
Unused tax losses not recognised AERZAFRRESR 190 1,067 2,361
Income tax expense FEHE M 78,700 34,015 —

31 PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS 31 ZAAREZIEEAEMEEFR
OF THE COMPANY

The profit attributable to equity shareholders of the AREERFERBEAERE RN
Company is dealt with in the financial statements of the 184,884,000t (= T — J\ %
Company to the extent of approximately $184,884,000 199,341,0007T) * ERAR A Z 8%
(2018: $199,341,000). WAL
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32

Basic earnings/(loss) per share is calculated by dividing
the profit/(loss) attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company by the weighted average number of ordinary

shares in issue during the year.

Diluted earnings/(loss) per share is calculated by
dividing the profit/(loss) attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company by weighted average
number of ordinary shares in issue after adjusting the
potential dilutive effect of the outstanding options

during the year.

BRER

BRERGHN (BR)DBREAR
AR A AREEN, (BB &G
NEARD BT 2E BB IS8

5 -

EErelos (BB IREAR
NRIERFAEARE RSN, (BER)
FRAFRERITZE B INE T

BN HEELES

BAERSE -

ZE RATIE

2019 2018
ZE-NE —ZE-N\F
Profit/(loss) attributable to equity RARIERFE AR
shareholders of the Company arises REUATEEZ
from ($'000) A (B 18) (T L)
— Continuing operations — REBREER 221,386 217,707
— Discontinued operations — BERIEEERK — (35,144)
221,386 182,563
Weighted average number of ordinary ~ B#17TE @R 2 INHE
shares in issue (in thousand shares) EE(FRED 1,992,426 1,995,081
Effect of outstanding share options WMAITEBRELTE
(in thousand shares) (F s 16,505 18,265
Weighted average number of BETEEKREE) 2
ordinary shares (diluted) in issue o0 #E 5 B (F AR ET)
(in thousand shares) 2,008,931 2,013,346
Basic earnings/(loss) per share BRERRF,/(BE)
(HK cents) (F&AL)
— Continuing operations — RERLERK 11.1 10.9
— Discontinued operations — BERIEERERB — (1.7)
11.1 9.2
Diluted earnings/(loss) per share BEREREN,/(B18)
(HK cents) (&)
— Continuing operations — BEREER 11.0 10.8
— Discontinued operations — BRIERERK — (1.7)
11.0 9.1
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33

DIVIDENDS 33

(@

Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the
Company attributable to the year

iR 2

(@

BRAFEERNAARERE
BAZKE

2019 2018
—E-hEF —T-)N\F
$’000 $000
T T
Interim dividend declared and B &5 & Bk % B
paid of HK3.0 cents per BEEBEAKR3.0
ordinary share (2018: HK1.6 B ZE—-N\F:
cents per ordinary share) BEERKL.6E) 59,755 31,942
Final dividend proposed after 72 ¥ &5 Hi R 1& ¢ K K
the end of the reporting HRR B & & A AR5.0
period of HK5.0 cents per BI(ZE—N\%F:
ordinary share (2018: HK4.75 & & @ i%4.75%8 1)
cents per ordinary share) 99,592 94,661
Special dividend proposed after 72 %k & 8 R 1& % ¢ Ik
the end of the reporting BRI B (ZZE—N
period of HKnil cents per F EEMBRKEE
ordinary share (2018: declared 3@ % 2.55%1Il)
of HK2.55 cents per ordinary
share — 50,861
159,347 177,464

The final dividend proposed after the end of the
reporting period have not been recognised as a
liability at the end of the reporting period.
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DIVIDENDS (continued) 33
(b) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the
Company attributable to the previous financial
year, approved and paid during the year

BB (&)

b BRE-FRFE IRFR
HERIKE ZEBAAQFES
BREAZKRE

2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\F
$’000 $'000
Fr T
Final dividend in respect of HE—HRFE - 24t
the previous financial year, ERERFRIRE 2
approved and paid during RER BT EBR
the year, of HK4.75 cents per ~ 4.75%II(=ZZ—N\
ordinary share (2018: HK4.2 FHEAER42E
cents per ordinary share) fill) 94,691 83,841
Special dividend in respect of Bt E—BIEFE - 2t
the previous financial year, ERERFRIRE 2
approved and paid during B Bl IR B B AR
the year, of HK2.55 cents per ~ 2.55&lI(=ZZ— N\
ordinary share (2018: HK1.0 F:HEAERKIOOE
cent per ordinary share) fill) 50,861 19,962
145,552 103,803
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS 34 CRIEKEXK

On 12 January 2018, the Company entered into an
agreement with a related party, The Wedding Square
Company Limited, to dispose of the Company’s entire
equity interest in a wholly-owned subsidiary, Full
Benefit Global Holdings Limited, and its subsidiaries
at an aggregate consideration of $51,000,000. The
transaction was completed on 29 March 2018. A loss
on disposal of $505,000 was recognised in profit or loss
for the year ended 31 March 2018 under discontinued
operations. Further details are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 15 January 2018.

RZZ2—N\F—A+=H &~ FH
MESIEEEERARIGI MM
LA 48 X {&51,000,0007C HEFT 5 2
mERKIERERATARENBEA
Rz ERE  ZRHFERET—
NEFZAZ+NLBEK - HEER
1F #% 45 3£ 75 5 18 )% §8505,0007T 51
ABEZE—\F=ZA=+—8HLt
FEZEZR - FHARERE
—NFE—A+HEBEBAEERERB
HEA o
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34 DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued) 34 BRIEREXRK(E)
Full Benefit Global Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries BFERKERERARLRENBA
are principally engaged in consumer and services RXERNEFE PELERARR
business under the brand of “Fullhouse World”, such as ZImEHERIRETZBEEE KR
provision of catering services and sales of themed gifts BERL  WRHEKRBREE
in Hong Kong, the PRC and Malaysia. In accordance TERMm - RIBASEERIIN M
with the accounting policy set out in note 2(ad), as the 2@) 2 BFT K - HRNERIEKE
discontinued operations represented a separate major EBRAEE-—BEEBFEEK
line of business of the Group, its financial information HMBERNKNER 2 A EHREKT
were separately presented in the financial statements of BB -
the Group.
The carrying amounts of assets and liabilities as at 29 R-F-N\F=A-t+NARHER)
March 2018, the disposal date, were as follows: EENRBGBEZRAERT:
$'000
T
Property, plant and equipment (note 7) ME - BB NFRE(HE7) 32,194
Intangible assets (note 9) B & E (M 5E9) 12,491
Inventories FE 4,269
Trade and bills receivable B 5k EREEWIRK 157
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TE{f 3k » & & K H fh & YL 1R 3K 9,283
Cash and bank deposits Re RBITEX 2,900
Trade payables g5 R IRR (3,299)
Accruals and other payables FE&HE M & H At FE A IR 5K (5,102)
Obligations under finance leases MEMRE N EE (95)
Deferred tax liabilities (note 24(b)) A FE i 8 B & (KT 524 (b)) (4,257)
Net assets disposed of HEEEFE 48,541
Add: non-controlling interests o SEYE R RE 2,020
Net assets disposed of attributable to the ARATERIFHEAEL
equity shareholders of the Company HEEEFE 50,561
Less: consideration S AEE (51,000
(439)
Release of exchange reserve upon disposal of HEME AR 2 BRE
subsidiaries Z IR 944
Net loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBLARZRER 505
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DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued)

34 BRIEKEXR(E)

The result of the discontinued operations for the period REKRIEREEBKH_T—+FMN
from 1 April 2017 to 29 March 2018 is set out below: A—RZE-_ZE-N\F=AZ+AH

HRZXEEERWT

Period from
1 April 2017 to
29 March 2018

H-ZT—tF
MA—H=Z=
—E-N\F
=A=-+AhH
HA
$'000
T+t
Revenue KA 25,896
Cost of revenue NN (50,087)
Gross loss EZ%| (24,191)
Distribution and selling expenses DIHNIEHEE R (1,699)
General and administrative expenses —mEITHRER (8,926)
Other losses H b E5 18 92)
Operating loss  ®&¥& (34,908)
Finance income 81 7% WA 4
Finance costs B 75 Bk AR (5)
Finance costs, net  ®#@HKA-FR ()
Loss after tax from discontinued operations REECARILKE XK
REREEE (34,909)
Net loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBRR 2 FER (505)
Loss for the period from HAKXRBERIE
discontinued operations EFEK 2 R (35,414)

ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19 & ¥k

283



284

Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% AR MY aE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (S BEAAIN + LABITTHIR)

34 DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued)

34 BRIEKEXK(E)

Period from
1 April 2017 to
29 March 2018

H-T—t%F
MA—RBZ
—E-N\F
=A=+hA
A
$000
TT
Attributable to: FE1h
Equity shareholders of the Company RABIEEFAA (35,144)
Non-controlling interests IE 122 A #E 2 (270)
Loss for the period from HMAREEALE
discontinued operations REXBKeBR (35,414)
Cash flow RERE
Operating cash inflows RERTMA 16,417
Investing cash outflows REBRS R (21,296)
Financing cash outflows MERLRH (24)
Net cash outflows FREREH (4,903)
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COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 35 RERIAREME
The Group had the following significant commitments REBEUTRERERGE MK ®
and contingent liabilities which were not provided for REAREFBZEEAERIARE
in the consolidated financial statements: f&:
@) Capital commitments @ BEBXREE
The Group had the following authorised and R-ZB-NAF=R=1+—8
contracted capital commitments at 31 March AEEBUTERERENZ
2019: BARAESE
2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\F
$’000 $'000
Fr Tt
Purchase of property, BEWE BEK
plant and equipment & 9,809 12,780

(b) Planned expenditure
At 31 March 2019, the Group has contracted for
further property development expenditure and
the related costs of internal fixtures and fittings
amounted to $311,483,000 (2018: $26,151,000).

(b) FFEIXH

REECTOE—TWERE
X AR RIEE KRB
B 7R £311,483,0007T (Z & —
J\EE :26,151,0007T) °
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35 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 35 EERIAKEE)
(continued)
() Operating lease commitments (0 ReHERIE
The Group had lease commitments in respect REEBZENAREEZ i
of land and buildings under various non- MEFREMEE B - RN
cancellable operating lease agreements. The total EEEDHTIT

commitments payable are analysed as follows:

2019 2018
—EB-hF —E)\F
$'000 $'000
T T
Not later than one year BB —F 5,727 2,374
Later than one year and not later #8i8 — 1818 8
than five years hE 4,430 135
10,157 2,509
The Group had future minimum lease rental REBMBLUAT AR RHLEM
receivable under non-cancellable operating leases B2 RKEKERRIWES
as follows:
2019 2018
—E-NF —E)N\F
$’000 $°000
T Tt
Not later than one year BB —F 1,426 53
(d) Guarantees d) HER
At 31 March 2019, the Company has given RZZE-NF=A=+—8"
guarantees totalling approximately $1,324,735,000 KRB T EEES IR
(2018: $1,215,295,000) to financial institutions in HRITHETEMMBRARZ
connection with the banking facilities granted to HBIEIR © B84 41,324,735,000
its subsidiaries. Such banking facilities utilised as 7T (ZZF—/\%F : 1,215,295,000
at 31 March 2019 amounted to approximately T RZB-—hAhF=RA=+
$620,342,000 (2018: $625,902,000). —B BEERZRITRENR

620,342,000C (=& — \ & :
625,902,0007T) ©
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36 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 36 TEFEBEBALIRS
(@) Transactions with related parties @ HEBEEALTZRS
2019 2018
—B-hEF —FE-NF
$’000 $'000
Fr Tt
Sales of goods: SHEEY:

Sales of finished goods to related [ 8 i A 7]
companies 84 & S K an 237 —

Others: Hith:

Rental income from an associate [A) B & A & W ERFE &

WA 308 278
Proceeds from disposal of HEM B AR TRIE
subsidiaries to a related NAZFT1FHR
company (note 34) (B 5£34) — 51,000
Rental charged by a e TFHEERF
related company 2,870 2,870
Purchase of machinery from R NG
an associate 22,995 18,370
Repair and maintenance charged ZfI#ERREET
by an associate /NS 3,470 1,388
Rental income from a related ) B 3 2 AN &
company A 411 —
Management fee income from [ 8 2 1 B W & 32
a related company EA 960 —
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36 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

(b)

Balances with related parties

36

TEREALRS(E)

(b) HBEEALZHEEK

2019 2018

—E-hEF —E-)\F

$’000 $°000

Fr T
Amount due to an associate JIE 1] Bt 2 2 B) R 3K

(note 11) (M 7E11) 35 2,587
Amount due from the Project FE Y TE B 2 Al IR 3K

Company (note 12) (B 5E12) 19,494 —
Amounts due from other related  F& Ug E b 88 58 2 )

companies iR R 2,009 —
Amounts due from related JIE Ut 88 22 R R BR 5K

companies 21,503 —
Amounts due to the Project FE I8 B 2 Al IR K

Company (note 12) (B 5E12) — 123,397
Amounts due to other related JE A~ EL A B8 3 2 A

companies R R 394 —
Amounts due to related JE 1< A i 2 A IR 3K

companies 394 123,397

The amounts due from/(to) an associate and FEU (FE) Bt & A F) R B &
related companies are unsecured, interest-free and RARR A EEH - A5 H

repayable on demand.

KARRIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED EZFIBIFRZRBR A A
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36 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 36 FEBHEAEIXRZ(E)

(continued)

(c Key management personnel remuneration c FEEEEREMS
Remuneration for key management personnel AREBzTZEEASFHH -
of the Group, including amounts paid to the BREYXNFARRREEZHKIE
Company’s directors as disclosed in note 28(b) R EF280) I E - ME T &
and certain of the highest paid employees as = R B 2 F B RO R
disclosed in note 28(c), is as follows: 28() T - HHIWT

2019 2018

—B-hEF —E-N\F

$’000 $°000

T Tt

Short-term employee benefits RHEEEER 21,385 21,541
Post-employment benefits B B 18 A 144 163
Share-based payment VA B A7) 32 A5 ¥ BA 816 2,007
22,345 23,711

(d

Total remuneration is included in “employee
benefit expenses” (see note 28(a)).

Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to
connected transactions

Except for the rental charged by a related
company, rental income and management fee
income from a related company as disclosed in
note 36(a) that constitute connected transactions,
none of the related party transaction mentioned
above falls under the definition of connected
transaction or continuing connected transaction as
defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

eEaiEEMEEEF L]
A (R M 5E28(@)) °

d EBEEXZEEzZLTHRAUZ
iz
BT A 5E36(a) P E 2 <N
& TERR - RABEAFK
BHEEBANERERABKX
BERZ SN - A LR R 2 =
ALRBIEFA ETHRANE
T4ABFTRE 2 BE R 4T
BRERS -
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37 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 37 RAEEZMBMRRR
POSITION
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
Note $’000 $'000
B 5E T Tt
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries REB AR ZIEE 901,731 869,541
Other financial assets HEthemEE 19,325 18,916
921,056 888,457
Current assets REEE
Prepayments, deposits and B Ea Kk
other receivables oA fE U R 5K 1,373 1,283
Current tax recoverable 7N B A] W [B] % 18 29 117
Cash and cash equivalents RehREEZEEY 2,619 56,165
4,021 57,565
Total assets EE#AE 925,077 946,022
EQUITY =
Capital and reserves AAREEREA
attributable to equity LR AR 1% 1
shareholders of the Company
Share capital [N 19 199,183 199,456
Other reserves Hinf# 21 482,508 480,133
Retained earnings =88 % 21 215,949 240,734
Total equity EEAE 897,640 920,323
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37 AREEzZUHBMRRERGE)

COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL

POSITION (continued)

2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\F
Note $’000 $'000
B 5 Fr Tt
LIABILITIES a&
Non-current liabilities kRBER
Provision for long service REARG £ H
payments . 6B4 647
Current liabilities nBEE
Accruals and other payables FEETE R R HAM
1) 1.2 S 26,753 . 25,052
Total liabilites ~ &f®& = 274 25,699
Total equity and liabilities EaRkAEBEHAE 925,077 946,022
Net current (liabilities)/assets R B (E1&)
EEFE (22,732) 32,513
Total assets less current EEAEBERRD
liabilities =N 898,324 920,970

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of

directors on 26 June 2019.

Ho Cheuk Fai
1At 8
Director

2

R-ZE—NAFNA-Z+/"BEHE=E
SHOE R IRETE -

Chan Ming Mui, Silvia
BR & ok

Director

EFE
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38

39

IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING PARTY
At 31 March 2019, the directors regard TMF (B.V.1.)
Limited, which beneficially owns 41.05% of the
Company’s equity interests, to be the immediate and
ultimate controlling party of the Company. Mr. Ho
Cheuk Fai, Ms. Ho Po Chu, and Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming
are the beneficial owners of TMF (B.V.l.) Limited. TMF
(B.V.l) Limited is incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands and does not produce financial statements
available for public use.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT
NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
MARCH 2019

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a number of amendments and new
standards which are not yet effective for the year ended
31 March 2019 and which have not been adopted in
these financial statements. These include the following
which may be relevant to the Group.

38

39

BEERRREHAL
R-ZE—hE=ZA=+—H &=
R ATMF (BV.L) Limited * BiHEA
RAFE41.05% D F & - W AERRD
RIZEBERREZEFIAL - /e i8
e -MBRZEIRAMERLLE S
TMF (BV.L) LimitedZ BB A ©
TMF (BV.L) Limited R B X B S
R REEAREMBIRE -

EEAEERREE-Z-AF=
A=t —BLEFEERZMET - #
ZEARZEBAEBRZEE

EEAMBHRERERER  BAS
AEAEREMTEZERBE—T—
NE=ZA=1T—HLEFERKREX
ZAERT M F AR - T 3 RN RE 75
HWRAKM o THSEFPAEER
SEAH -

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or
after
RUTEHH 2%
Bz E BB LXK

HKFRS 16, Leases
B BREENE165HE ]

HK(FRIC) 23, Uncertainty over income tax treatments

ER(BRMBERERBREQ)REEBRINTEHEEZTHEE L]

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle

1 January 2019
—E-NA¥—H—H

1 January 2019
—E-NA¥—H—H

1 January 2019

EREVBREEN _E-HAFE_T-LFERAHICE

Amendments to HKAS 28, Long-term interest in associates and
Joint ventures

FERE G EUNF2BRZERNBEELAREEL AR B ]

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Prepayment features with negative compensation

BEAMBRELNFEOR ZERAF R W EZIEFTEFIFIE]

KARRIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED =X B E#ERER AT
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POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT
NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
MARCH 2019 (continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments, new standards
and interpretations is expected to be in the period
of initial application. So far the Group has identified
some aspects of the new standards which may have
a significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements. Further details of the expected impacts
are discussed below. While the assessment has been
substantially completed for HKFRS 16, the actual
impacts upon the initial adoption of the standards may
differ as the assessment completed to date is based on
the information currently available to the Group, and
further impacts may be identified before the standards
are initially applied in the Group’s interim financial
report for the six months ended 30 September 2019.
The Group may also change its accounting policy
elections, including the transition options, until the
standard is initially applied in that financial report.

HKFRS 16, Leases

As disclosed in note 2(k), currently the Group classify
leases into finance leases and operating leases and
accounts for the
depending on the classification of the lease. The Group
enter into some leases as the lessor and others as the

lease arrangements differently,

lessee.

39

CEEBEHSRRBE-Z-NF=
A=t —BLEFEER BT - #
HFARBREBUEBRZTE(E)

AEELFELFER - FHEMR
EERYARERGEZTZE - £H
AL REBERBBFER 2 X
LT HAEHREMBERRENE
TE o BHBNMPEEE—FF
B anT - EARBT B K RE
ERIFE165E 2 FHEEARTK B
AR ERZFHERAEER
RIRIER 2 ER  FILERERMAE
AIZERZERESERTH M
BEZEENEREANAEER
E-E-AFAA=THIEREA
ZHRMBREMAEEERES
T8 NEBENA RN E G R
EE BRERER HIZFE
AIEREZMBRETER -

BERMBHREENF165KHEHE
an bt FE2(k) P 3 BR - B ORI AN 5 B A
HE T HARMEHERKEHE
YR TRBEEZ D RIARK - AN
E{ERLMEARAMBAGTZHSHE
# o
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39

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT
NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
MARCH 2019 (continued)

HKFRS 16, Leases (continued)

HKFRS 16 is not expected to impact significantly
on the way that lessors account for their rights and
obligations under a lease. However, once HKFRS 16
is adopted, lessees will no longer distinguish between
finance leases and operating leases. Instead, subject to
practical expedients, lessees will account for all leases
in a similar way to current finance lease accounting,
i.e. at the commencement date of the lease the lessee
will recognise and measure a lease liability at the
present value of the minimum future lease payments
and will recognise a corresponding “right-of-use” asset.
After initial recognition of this asset and liability, the
lessee will recognise interest expense accrued on the
outstanding balance of the lease liability, and the
depreciation of the right-of-use asset, instead of the
current policy of recognising rental expenses incurred
under operating leases on a systematic basis over the
lease term. As a practical expedient, the lessee can
elect not to apply this accounting model to short-term
leases (i.e. where the lease term is 12 months or less)
and to leases of low value assets, in which case the
rental expenses would continue to be recognised on a
systematic basis over the lease term.

HKFRS 16 will primarily affect the Group’s accounting
as a lessee of leases for properties which are currently
classified as operating leases. The application of the
new accounting model is expected to lead to an
increase in both assets and liabilities and to impact on
the timing of the expense recognition in the statement
of profit or loss over the period of the lease.

KARRIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED =X B E#ERER AT
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CHEBESRRBE-Z-NF=
A=t -—BLEFEERZMBT - #
HARBREBUEBRZE(E)

EREMBREENF16REE]
(&
FRMBRELNFBIRAT TS
HBHBEAEBEOT BN R EBH
BZANEREATE - A —
BEAEEMBEREERFI65 -
ERAAGITBERIBEHERK
SHE MR EEHBL AHEA
RARERMERESH AN
AYMEREETTSHRE A
MEMBZH  AHAABRRBRE
ARBEEMNR 2R EEBNTER
ERE YHEEWERMEREIE
E-HEAERERZEENAEBR
AHAKBERHEERERERER
BHELEZMNEERARERESR
E2HE BREMREERARNE
AW ERREHEEL CHESE
RZBE - BB L AHEARNE
B RAEARNEHEE
(APEERST _EAKER)FME
BEEEZHE £EEBEBERT -
HEERKEBEEEENANA RS
M HERR o

FERMBRELENBIRHERR
EXREEERYMEAMA - MBA
BREAREHECHEZEFRE
2 BHF et BN ZEAKER
BEMBEEN YXEHEHR
BaXkPZERBERRH -
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POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT
NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
MARCH 2019 (continued)

HKFRS 16, Leases (continued)

HKFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 April 2019. The Groups plan to elect to use
the modified retrospective approach for the adoption
of HKFRS 16 and will recognise the cumulative effect
of initial application as an adjustment to the opening
balance of equity at 1 April 2019 if the effect is material
and will not restate the comparative information. The
Groups expect that the transition adjustments to be
made upon the initial adoption of HKFRS 16 will not
be material. In addition, the Groups plan to elect the
practical expedient for not applying the new accounting
model to short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets.

39

CEEBEHSRRBE-Z-NF=
A=t —BLEFEER BT - #
HFARBREBUEBRZTE(E)

BEREMBREEANE165RHE]
(&
FEEVBREEREIHRN T —
NFOA-—Ho 2 RRABRZFELE
Mo REBEEERALETZ
EWEANERRE BV B RS ER
FleF MPEEKR BRERZ
ERFER_ZT-NFOA—A%
S ANRERERSHE A TE
ERLERER - AREBRHANER
ERE BT REERE165E K
HZBRERBZELTEK - it
Sh - AREEFEERERK ST A
FHEARTERANEREER
EEEEECHE -
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Five-year Financial Summary

IFMBERE

AEBBE_T-NF=A=+—HItA
EHRFE2EE  RZE—0F T
—RE T T \ER-T
—NE=ZRA=1+—RzZEEIRBENT:

REEE

Year ended 31 March
BE=A=1t-HLFE

The results of the Group for the last five financial years
ended 31 March 2019 and the assets and liabilities of the
Group as at 31 March 2015, 2016, 2017, 2018 and 2019 are
as follows:

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

296

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
“E-0F —F-N\F —T—+tF Z—T-RF —F-af
§/000 §/000 §/000 §000 §/000
T T T T T
(Restated)
(B&E5I)
Note 1
P 1
Revenue A 2,651,169 2,919,880 2,699,838 2,897,605 2,590,623
Operating profit =] 315,837 264,191 220,469 150,371 93,978
Finance income WA 2,743 1,542 1,058 1,533 3,538
Finance costs B B AR (19,187) (14,883) (11,579) (16,039) (13,188)
Share of profits/(losses) 155t & A7)
of associates w A/ (BE) 693 872 247 294 (193)
Profit before taxation BR %% A1 )% R 300,086 251,722 210,195 136,159 84,135
Income tax FiEm (78,700) (34,015) (20,642) (19,488) (8,429)
Profit for the year from &7 R E
continuing operations ~ FALEXEK 221,386 217,707 189,553 116,671 75,706
Loss for the year from FEXAERIE
discontinued operations 4% ¥ 7% 2 E 18 — (35,414) (21,341) — —
Profit for the year FERF 221,386 182,293 168,212 116,671 75,706
Attributable to: 1 :
Equity shareholders AREERFAA
of the Company 221,386 182,563 168,333 117,076 76,298
Non-controlling interests  JF % fX # & — (270) (121) (405) (592)
221,386 182,293 168,212 116,671 75,706
Note 1: The disposal of subsidiaries for the year ended 31 March FfiE1: HE-_FT-N\F-A=1+—HILFE
2018 constituted discontinued operations. In accordance HEMBARBKE R IFEEXR o
with HKFRS 5, Non-current Assets Held for Sales and RIBBBMERMEER B[ HEH
Discontinued Operations, the Group has re-presented the RBEERBRIBERFE] RE
comparative information in 2017 in this regard. However, it BoAUR-_T—LFEH2IULR
is not practicable to restate the financial information for the Bt - BR - BTHEAGMENIR
earlier years for comparison purposes. HATEF 2 B EEALTDEALT -
Note 2: The Group adopted HKFRS 9, Financial instruments, from 1 BfiE2: AEEE_—F—/\F/NH— Bl KEA
April 2018. As a result, the group has changed its accounting R MEERIEIF [/ LA |-
policies in relation to financial instruments. As allowed by At ARBECENFHERTA L
HKFRS 9, the Group has not restated information relating BETECR - RIBF BN B RESLELE
to prior years. Differences in the carrying amounts of the PR RE  AEEWEBIA B
financial assets resulting from the adoption of HKFRS 9 were EFEEZER - RINEBUBRELE
recognised in retained earnings and reserves at 1 April 2018. AIFIRELE SR EERAEER
There was no difference in the carrying amounts of the RZF-\FOA—BERBEF R
financial liabilities. Prior to 1 April 2018, figures were stated FETRER - SRAEIRAELE
in accordance with the policies applicable in those years. ER T /\FNA—HZH
EREBERIBEATRAENZR -
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Five-year Financial Summary

EE,\M&%E

CONSOLIDATED ASSETS AND LIABILITIES HREEERERE
At 31 March
R=ZA=+-—H
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
—E-hEF —N\F ZT—+F ZT—F ZT—1F
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE 867,636 900,492 853,555 922,326 991,959
Current assets mBEE 1,596,282 1,743,125 1,482,949 1,155,765 973,809
Total assets EERE 2,463,918 2,643,617 2,336,504 2,078,091 1,965,768
EQUITY B
Share capital % A& 199,183 199,456 199,620 199,620 199,620
Reserves ] 967,677 988,826 878,883 817,560 788,529
1,166,860 1,188,282 1,078,503 1,017,180 988,149
Non-controlling interests ~ FE 1% % 1 % — — (1,750) (1,344) (939)
Total equity —~  W@m@&E 1,166,860 1188282 1076753 1015836 987210
LIABILITIES afE
Non-current liabilities FERBDEE 564,815 502,588 504,875 78,044 26,560
Current liabilities mEAE 732,243 952,747 754,876 984,211 951,998
Total liabiliies ~ BEME 1297058 1455335 1,259,751 1062255 978,558
Total equity and liabilities #z &K BEALE 2,463,918 2,643,617 2,336,504 2,078,091 1,965,768
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Properties Held by the Group
$El%ﬁ2%¥

As at31 March 2019 R = Z—AF=A=+—H
PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR SALE THERUMRE
Stage of Percentage
Location Site area  Lease expiry Completion holding
ih B THER HERYE BREE BEEOL
(sq.m.)
(F5K)
1 No.47-1, Jiahui Lu, 61,864 2085  Under 100%
Youganpu Da Long Industrial District, (residential ~ Construction
Fenggang Town, Dongguan City, purpose) £
Guangdong Province, (EE /)
The People’s Republic of China (note 1)
B EIRE RS /AL 2055
0 KR T R 5 B IR 4757 -1 (M 5 1) (commercial
purpose)
GES:E:)
2 Jin San Jiao Development Zone, 4,798 2087 Under 100%

Dongping Village, Zhangning Town,
Boluo County, Huizhou City,
Guangdong Province,

The People’s Republic of China (note 2)

B E R BN AR

REARTNE=ARZERAMR
(Kt &E2)

Note:

1. The construction is expected to be completed in mid-2021 or
before.

2. The construction is expected to be completed in mid-2021 or
before.

KARRIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED =X B E#ERER AT

(residential  Construction

(F

purpose) FEEH
ERH)

2057

(commercial

(7

purpose)

XRB)

GEE

1.

2.

TITREANR-_ZE-_—FhZpET-

TITREANR-_ZE-_—FhZpET-



Properties Held by the Group
rEBFHREZY %

As at 31 March 2019 R=ZE—NF=ZA=+—H

COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE FohYE

Percentage
Location Gross floor area Lease expiry holding
B BHEEE HERH BEEDL
(sq.m.)
(75 3K)

1 Unit 25B, 165 2062 100%
Sunlight Court, Castfast Villas,
Fenggang Town, Dongguan City,
Guangdong Province,
The People’s Republic of China
B ERE R =T R R
FIE 5 EHEE25EBR

2 Unit 16A, 148 2062 100%
Twilight Court, Castfast Villas,
Fenggang Town, Dongguan City,
Guangdong Province,
The People’s Republic of China
o B & R & 3R 52 T B el R
FERENEMEI6IZAR

3 Unit 25C, 143 2062 100%
Skylight Court, Castfast Villas,
Fenggang Town, Dongguan City,
Guangdong Province,
The People’s Republic of China
BB IR & R =M Rl R R
RIESEZIEM2SBCR

4 “Forest Town”, Phase 3, Castfast Villas, 61,730 2084 50%

Fenggang Town, Dongguan City, (residential

Guangdong Province, purpose)

The People’s Republic of China (EE M)
B JE PR A R 2 B R

REXE = HIHRE] 2054

(commercial

purpose)

(A% A
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Properties Held by the Group
REBF ﬁ 2 7] %

Asat31 March2019 R=Z—NF=A=+—R
PROPERTIES HELD FOR INVESTMENT MEFERE
Percentage
Location Existing use holding
b B A7 FEAOL
1 East of Jingyi Road and South of Wenzhuang Road, Idle 100%
Yixing Economic Development Zone, =g
Wuxi City, Jiangsu Province,
The People’s Republic of China
FEITERE EHT
RS R il
2 B R Al
2 Wenzhuang Road, Idle 100%
Yixing Economic Development Zone, =8
Wuxi City, Jiangsu Province,
The People’s Republic of China
BT & & &
B AR B B R S B
Note: The above properties are either freehold, held on long or [isE: A EMER/BEE T - REZLHEF

KARRIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED =X B E#ERER AT

medium-term leases or have no specified lease term.

HEOFAXREEEHED -
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